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COMPAnY PROFIlE

For more than a century, the Hillenbrand name has represented a family tradition of quality, 
service and dedication that extends to our customers, our nearly 3,900 employees and our 
investors. We focus on a few simple core principles to achieve our goals:

•  creating innovative products of superior quality,
•  providing excellent service,
•  forging enduring customer relationships,
•  treating our employees with fairness and respect, and
•  relentlessly pursuing continuous improvement.

Following these tenets has enabled our company to generate decades of solid financial 
results. Furthermore, our commitment to principles-based leadership has formed the 
Hillenbrand enterprise into an organization that attracts and retains the best talent, often 
welcoming generations of employees who want to become part of our heritage.

Headquartered in Batesville, Ind., Hillenbrand is a diversified enterprise with multiple 
subsidiaries concentrated around two distinct businesses.

BATESvIllE CASkET COMPAnY

In 1906, John A. Hillenbrand purchased the Batesville Casket Company. It has since grown 
from a small, local business into the casket industry leader with six manufacturing plants 
and more than 80 distribution centers across north America — all dedicated to helping 
families honor the lives of those they love®. Funeral directors and their client families rely on 
Batesville for burial and cremation products constructed to the highest quality standards. 
The company’s history of manufacturing excellence, product innovation, superior customer 
service, and reliable delivery has helped it become, and remain, a leader in funeral products 
in north America.

k-TROn

k-Tron International, Inc., is a new Jersey corporation founded in 1964. It is a leading 
global provider of bulk solids material handling equipment and systems for a wide variety 
of manufacturing and other industrial processes, particularly in the plastics, food, chemical, 
pharmaceutical, power generation, coal mining, pulp and paper, and wood and forest  
products industries. The company serves these customers through two product lines, which 
focus on feeding and pneumatic conveying equipment (the Process Group) and on size 
reduction equipment, conveying systems and screening equipment (the Size Reduction 
Group). k-Tron has manufacturing facilities in the United States, Switzerland and the 
People’s Republic of China, and its equipment is sold and serviced throughout the world.

(Amounts in millions, except dividends per common share) 2010 2009 2008

net revenue $ 749.2 $ 649.1 $ 678.1
Gross profit $ 313.3 $ 274.4 $ 280.5
Operating profit $ 137.9 $ 155.0 $ 149.6
net income $ 92.3 $ 102.3 $ 93.2
net cash provided by operating activities $ 118.2 $ 123.2 $ 101.8
Total shareholders’ equity $ 371.9 $ 304.0 $ 288.4
Cash dividends per common share* $ 0.75 $ 0.74 $ 0.365

* Hillenbrand, Inc.’s first dividend as a stand-alone public company was paid June 30, 2008. As a result, there are 
no dividends reported for the first two quarters of fiscal 2008.
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As-adjusted operating margin excludes the fol-
lowing items:

2007 — Costs associated with antitrust litigation 
($7.8 million) and becoming a separate public 
company ($5.1 million);

2008 — Costs associated with antitrust litigation 
($3.3 million) and becoming a separate public 
company ($15.6 million);

2009 — Costs associated with antitrust litigation 
($2.2 million) and becoming a separate public 
company ($0.1 million);

2010 — non-recurring acquisition accounting 
effects ($13.3 million) and costs associated with 
business acquisition ($10.5 million), antitrust 
litigation ($5 million) and restructuring ($3 mil-
lion), offset by a sales tax adjustment ($4.7 million).
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businesses all around the world 
began the year still gripped by 
the uncertainty created by the worst economic downturn in 
modern times. even the funeral services industry, including 
batesville casket company, was negatively affected by the 
decline in consumer confidence — something we had not pre-
viously experienced. Fortunately, as 2010 progressed, funeral 
consumers began to return to their family traditions and we, 
along with batesville’s customers, began to see stability return.

on april 1, 2010, we completed the 
acquisition of K-tron international. 
this significant event was an impor-
tant inflec tion point in your company’s 
history. the addition of the two 
K-tron business platforms enables us 
to pursue new pathways to profitable 
growth as a complement to the stable 
earnings and cash f low provided by 
batesville. So in addition to being a 
strong, predictable generator of cash and paying an attractive 
dividend, Hillenbrand now also provides a significant growth 
component.

bateSville’S Solid earningS and  
Stable caSH Flow

we have long been a company with a strong ability to execute 
our plans. even in the face of consumer uncertainty and a 

decline in the number of buri-
als, driven primarily by increas-

ing cremations, batesville maintained relatively consistent 
revenue. the batesville team effectively used lean business 
skills to improve its cost structure, yielding a gross margin per-
centage increase for the year of 110 basis points. in 2010, 
batesville became even more efficient and effective, all while 
providing customers with industry-leading quality and service.

batesville also continued to lead the 
funeral products industry in creativity, 
launching several uniquely differen-
tiated offerings. these new products 
help funeral directors provide their cli-
ent families with more meaningful 
choices to meet a wide range of funeral 
needs. in addition, batesville created 
new ways of helping funeral homes 
increase their profits in a challenging 
economy. Most notable was the expan-

sion of the batesville interactive connectivity Suite™ to help 
funeral homes add new online revenue streams, such as elec-
tronic obituaries, digital video tributes and, most recently, a 
partnership with Ftd® florists.

as a result of these and other initiatives, batesville’s solid earn-
ings and stable cash f low will continue to fuel our growth 
strategy. not only is batesville a strong cash engine, it is the 

tHiS HaS proven to be a MoMentouS year For your coMpany.

dear Fellow SHareHolder



origin of Hillenbrand’s culture of execution and the source of 
our core competencies in strategy management, lean business 
practices and talent development.

tHe FirSt Step in our acquiSition Strategy

at the time of the spin in april 2008, when we first emerged 
as a stand-alone public company, we knew the conditions in 
funeral service that provide stability also limit growth oppor-
tunities. it was clear that batesville would long be the core  
of Hillenbrand. it was also clear that we had to identify addi-
tional growth opportunities to increase shareholder value at  
an accelerated pace.

therefore, after a significant amount of thoughtful evaluation, 
we chose to embark on a strategy to prudently acquire selected 
manufacturing businesses that had a record of success, but 
which could benefit from our core competencies to spur faster 
and more profitable growth. we formed an experienced acqui-
sition team that reviewed hundreds of potential targets, search-
ing for companies that met our criteria and had healthy 
cultures and experienced leadership in place. of equal impor-
tance were the inherent growth opportunities in the industries 
they served.

we ultimately narrowed the choices down to a final few com-
panies, with one rising repeatedly to the top of the list. after 
18 months of searching and a very thorough due diligence  
process, we acquired K-tron international. with K-tron came 
two successful business platforms serving the dry bulk solids 
material handling industry. the process group manufactures 
equipment and systems used to convey and control the flow of 
dry bulk solids materials, primarily in the plastics, food and 

pharmaceutical industries. the Size reduction group tackles 
larger materials, such as coal, wood and mined minerals, 
reducing them to sizes that can be efficiently used for such 
processes as generating power, making paper or producing  
fertilizer. both groups have very strong brands and compete  
in a wide range of geographies.

an important part of my responsibility is ensuring that we 
assess and manage risk throughout the enterprise. acquisitions 
entail risk — just as staying in place entails risk. the K-tron 
acquisition changed our risk profile in several ways. before the 
K-tron acquisition, we had one line of business and now we 
have three. as a result, 75 percent of our revenue is generated 
by batesville and 25 percent by K-tron. we also diversified the 
source of our earnings and cash flow, not only by industry, but 
also by geography. while we will naturally have some added 
exposure to economic cycles, we also now have significantly 
greater growth opportunities that represent a long runway 
ahead. exclusive of one-time acquisition costs and related 
accounting effects, the K-tron transaction has been immedi-
ately accretive.

we’ve had no surprises in the nine months since the transac-
tion and the experienced K-tron leadership team is in place 
and executing its growth plans. perhaps most important, its 
leaders are readily drawing on the Hillenbrand core compe-
tencies to further accelerate their performance as we move 
toward an economic recovery in many parts of the world.

tHe yearS aHead

our long-term goal is to consistently increase shareholder 
value at a rate exceeding the weighted average cost of capital. 
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our enterpriSe-level Strategy continueS to FocuS on building a Strong, diverSiFied organization 
tHat SupportS operating coMpanieS in Multiple growtH-oriented induStrieS.

we measure this return primarily by the amount of cash that 
we generate. as you have seen in previous shareholder letters, 
our view is that cash is a fact, while profit is an accountant’s 
opinion.

our strategy is to grow revenue, net income and cash f low  
in the operating companies through a combination of organic 
growth and, primarily in the growth businesses, selected 
acquisitions.

our tactics are to provide effective governance and leverage 
the operating company results by applying the following few 
core competencies:

•  Strategy management is the foundation for developing an 
effective game plan in any business. Strategy without execu-
tion is an academic exercise and execution without strategy 
is prone to chaos. we can help acquired companies sharpen 
their focus to execute the “critical few” objectives that provide 
the greatest competitive leverage and generate the best results.

•  Lean business practices eliminate waste, improve quality 
and increase operational efficiencies. lean business is also 
the backbone of our culture of execution. batesville has 
proven that even a slow-growth business can drive superior 
financial returns by employing continuous improvement/
lean business practices throughout the entire value chain. 
we will do the same for acquired companies.

•  Intentional talent development is part of Hillenbrand’s 
“genetic code.” the business with the best talent has a 
marked advantage and is best positioned to execute its strat-
egy. we manage the leadership development of our high-
potential associates through a variety of assignments to 

broaden their viewpoint and stretch their abilities. this 
enables us to consistently recruit, develop and retain top  
talent, while providing a strong pipeline for succession 
planning.

SuMMary

in 2010, batesville again demonstrated its ability to provide 
stable earnings and cash flow in the face of a soft burial mar-
ket and high competitive pressures. the batesville team has 
also launched several initiatives that will create future revenue 
streams and increase profit margins.

our business strategy provides a clear map for future organic 
growth and prudent acquisitions. the K-tron acquisition was 
a significant step and we are even more enthusiastic about 
K-tron today than we were on the day of closing. we believe 
that future generations will look back on this as the successful 
start of the next 100 years for Hillenbrand, inc.

we are ever mindful of the responsibility of being effective 
stewards of the capital you entrust to us and we will work dili-
gently to increase the value of your investment in Hillenbrand.

Sincerely,

Kenneth a. camp
President and Chief Executive Officer

Hillenbrand, inc.
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batesville casket is the leader in the design, 
manufacture, sales and delivery of caskets 
and cremation products in the united States and canada. we under-
stand that our job, at its most basic level, is to help funeral directors 
create a professional personalized experience for a grieving family.  
to do that, we create high-quality products that give families a wide 
variety of choices. we also give funeral directors the freedom to  
concentrate on caring for their client families by providing them with 
easy-to-use tools and reliable delivery. at the same time, our support 
services can help them maintain — and even grow — their profitabil-
ity. understanding this mission is what helped us succeed during a 
challenging fiscal year in 2010.

MarKet overview
echoing the economy, the death care industry experienced more stable 
conditions in 2010 than in 2009, although they have not yet returned 
to pre-recession levels. the number of deaths in north america 
remained relatively f lat or slightly declining in 2010. better health 
care, a minimal flu season, and improved exercise and nutrition habits 
have resulted in longer lives for much of the populace. although the 
death rate has remained stable, demand for burial products has steadily 
declined. For several decades, the rate at which families chose crema-
tion increased at a very consistent and measured pace. that changed in 
2009, when the economy struggled and families looked for low-cost 
alternatives — even when it came to funeral services. the growth in 
cremation was unprecedented. then in 2010, we saw the cremation 
adoption rate gradually return to a more normal pattern.

concerned about the economic uncertainty, families had also turned 
to lower-priced casket alternatives in 2009. that opened the door for 
some manufacturers and distributors in the lower tiers, who were 
already battling manufacturing overcapacity and high fixed costs, to 
apply aggressive pricing pressure in an attempt to gain market share. 
that pressure, though less severe, continued in 2010, driven by the 
still-weak economy and lower demand for our products.

year in review
primarily as a result of lower demand for 

burial caskets, we posted a 1 percent decrease in 2010 revenue, com-
pared to the previous year. we believe this was consistent throughout 
the industry, where pricing pressures and product mix-down  
challenged average selling price and market share for everyone.  
we responded by implementing successful selling programs mid-year 
that helped us retain our relative share. in addition, lower commodity 
costs and supply chain cost efficiencies helped us improve our gross 
profit margin percentage.

a number of strategic initiatives were key to our stable results in 2010. 
because we’re a high-touch company committed to helping funeral 
homes create more meaningful experiences for grieving families, we 
introduced new products aimed at ref lecting a loved one’s interests  
and beliefs. For example, the lifeStories™ products provide families 
with an innovative way to personalize the casket cap, then supply the 
family with keepsakes they can display, carry or wear to honor a loved 
one. Similarly, the new lifeviews™ products turn the casket lid into  
a canvas for family photographs and mementos. our batesville 
interactive connectivity Suite™ increased the ability for families to 
memorialize the deceased online through electronic obituaries and 
digital video tributes.

we also helped our funeral home customers improve their profitability, 
while simultaneously increasing their client families’ satisfaction, 
through a many-layered merchandising program. in 2010, those efforts 
included our options® cremation products, helping funeral directors 
promote the value of a service with each cremation, along with per-
sonalized products at the time of the funeral and after the service  
has concluded.

our capabilities in lean business processes also played an important 
role in helping us maintain strong profitability by delivering opera-
tional efficiencies across the supply chain. these efforts are recog-
nized throughout our industry and culminated in our metal casket 

the lifeStories® collection takes personalization to a 
new level. it includes 15 caskets, 24 bronze display 
medallions and smaller medallions that can be engraved 
and lovingly passed from one generation to the next.

the lifeStories® collection helps families create a last-
ing link to their departed loved one. both display and 
keepsake medallions can be used for a touching home 
tribute, using one of several display accessories.

with batesville’s lifeview® collection, the casket 
becomes a canvas for telling a life story, using the  
family’s own photos and precious keepsakes to create a  
personalized display in the lid.

bateSville caSKet

4



Hillenbrand, inc.  2010 annual report

manu facturing plant in Manchester, tenn., being named ASSEMBLY 
Magazine’s 2009 plant of the year and a 2010 IndustryWeek top 10 
plant. in december 2010, our vicksburg, tenn., wood processing 
plant was named a 2011 IndustryWeek top 10 plant.

tHe year aHead
we expect to see the ongoing introduction of new strategies and busi-
ness models in 2011 as competitors and customers look for ways  
to improve their bottom-line results in a changing customer and  
consumer environment. as the industry leader, batesville casket is 
uniquely positioned to address these changes. the core of our business 
is highly stable, so we will continue to maintain our focus on the sale of 
burial caskets and cremation products to licensed funeral directors in 
licensed funeral homes. at the same time, we can capitalize on the 
strength of our brand to extend our industry reach with new, comple-
mentary products and services.

in the long term, we will continue growing our core burial business in 
several ways, including:

•  leveraging our comprehensive high-velocity distribution system;
•  driving differentiation with new products that add value to a service 

through personalization and memorialization;
•  improving selling effectiveness through merchandising, call manage-

ment, customer segmentation and well-aligned sales compensation 
programs; and

•  continuing to reduce our cost structure by employing lean business 
principles throughout the organization.

we also will continue exploring growth within non-burial revenue 
streams.

•  the batesville interactive connectivity Suite™ helps funeral home 
customers connect with consumers for information and education 
needs. in 2010, we added greater customization to our website offer-
ings by acquiring Memorial Solutions, partnering with legacy.com 

to offer online obituaries and introducing video tributes. as we start 
2011, we are pursuing other opportunities that will give funeral 
homes more ways to add value for their families, while generating 
additional revenue, such as a partnership with Ftd we announced 
in november 2010 to provide customized, co-branded floral websites 
to funeral homes that use one of our weblink™ sites.

•  Many families who choose cremation do not have a service, a choice 
many have indicated in studies that they regret later. Many also are 
unaware that they can personalize the cremation experience through 
a wide variety of memorialization products and keepsakes. our 
options® team plans to change that by continuing to provide new 
products and capabilities that will help funeral directors improve the 
quality and frequency of funeral services that accompany a crema-
tion and give families personalized ways to remember loved ones 
both during and after the ceremony.

•  in 2010, batesville purchased the intellectual property of a company 
that designed polyresin burial vaults. building on that work, we 
began to develop and test a new version of the product that meets 
standards of quality and durability worthy of the batesville name. 
late in the year, we began a limited beta test of this strong, light-
weight vault with a small group of customers in the Midwest. 
throughout 2011, we will continue to refine the product, develop  
a new service model and explore ways to add personalization to  
the vault.

SuMMary
in the face of an economy that’s still uncertain and a highly competi-
tive industry that’s fighting for share and bottom-line results, batesville 
casket has a singular focus: to leverage our strengths and brand to 
drive profitable growth. our reputation is built on high-quality prod-
ucts, dependable delivery, a capable sales and service organization, and 
strong operations and manufacturing capabilities. as we look to the 
future, we plan to expand that reputation by continuing to help 
improve the quality of funerals and the profitability of our customers 
— which will help batesville remain the overwhelming choice for 
funeral homes.

weblink, the foundation of batesville’s connectivity 
Suite™ by batesville interactive, offers templated and 
custom website designs to allow every funeral home to 
build a powerful and effective online presence.

Memorial rocks, such as the Sandstone dual Memorial 
rock, create a customized remembrance of loved ones 
who have chosen cremation, adding a personalized 
touch to a memorial garden or cemetery.

the natural warmth and beauty of wood is reflected in 
every hardwood urn by options®. the aldin™ mantel 
clock, a dual-capacity hardwood urn, is as distinct as 
the lives of the individuals it celebrates.

our reputation iS built on HigH-quality productS, dependable delivery, a capable SaleS and 
Service organization, and Strong operationS and ManuFacturing capabilitieS.
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late in 2008, as part of Hillenbrand’s strategy to supplement our core batesville casket operating company with new 
platforms for growth, we outlined specific criteria necessary for a successful acquisition. the target should have:

•  a strong brand in its defined space;

•  talented, proven management with close customer relationships;

•  robust sales and marketing capabilities, primarily in a business-to-business environment;

•  a strong cultural fit with Hillenbrand; and

•  the ability to benefit from our core competencies and share its own competitive strengths.

a disciplined buyer, we evaluated more than 400 companies and closely scrutinized dozens. then in January 2010, 
Hillenbrand announced the impending acquisition of K-tron international, a company that designs, manufactures  
and sells equipment used in bulk solids materials processing. we engaged in a comprehensive due diligence process, giving 
us a high level of confidence that this purchase would provide us with everything we expected in a transaction of  
this magnitude.

we completed the acquisition april 1, 2010. K-tron’s entire management team chose to remain with us, including  
ed cloues, the company’s former chairman and ceo, who took a seat on the Hillenbrand board of directors. we were 
also excited to meet K-tron’s employees, who reinforced our belief that we share a quality-oriented, innovative culture that 
values customer service.

the transition was carefully planned to minimize interruption to K-tron’s business, which we would manage as a  
completely separate operating company from batesville. the first priority was to ensure we had effective financial  
processes to provide the right level of controls and to yield timely and accurate financial reporting. K-tron had been  
a public company on the nasdaq exchange, so it was acclimated to the requirements. our teams worked together to  
transition that information into Hillenbrand’s processes. as a result of acquisition timing, K-tron joined the Hillenbrand 
family during planning for the 2011 fiscal year, which began october 1, 2010. the Hillenbrand Strategic Management 
process includes assessing the competitive arena, formulating strategic initiatives and, finally, identifying and deploying 
resources for those initiatives. through the process, we found that K-tron’s growth potential, both organically and 
through targeted acquisitions, was greater than we had anticipated during the due diligence process.

as planning was concluding, K-tron began to receive training in lean business concepts that will help the company 
improve its profitability and cash generation ability. while batesville is moving into advanced techniques, K-tron is  
starting with the basics, but we anticipate the company will learn quickly.

K-tron has a vast amount of industry knowledge and very capable employees, many of whom have significant longevity 
with the company. at Hillenbrand, we value those qualities, but also know that an important driver of sustainable  
business results is having — and deploying — talent effectively. late in 2010, the Hillenbrand Human resources team 
introduced our talent management process, which will help K-tron match the best people with the highest-value  
initiatives, provide succession planning and give the company more flexibility with its top-grade talent.

as Hillenbrand’s first acquisition, K-tron has not only met, but exceeded our expectations. the transition process went 
very well in 2010 and will continue in 2011, as we continue to use our core competencies to help K-tron reach the next 
level of growth.

april 1, 2010

K-tron JoinS Hillenbrand FaMily oF coMpanieS
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when you eat a f lavored potato chip, it 
should have just the right combination of 
spices. when you use medication, you take for granted that it will  
contain the proper amount of the active ingredient. and when you flip 
a light switch, you expect the light to come on. you’ve probably never 
wondered how those things occur, but the employees at K-tron 
international’s companies understand that these are complicated  
processes. their solutions-based expertise, coupled with the superior 
designs of K-tron equipment, provides real value to our customers.

K-tron serves a variety of industries through two business lines: the 
process group and the Size reduction group.

proceSS group MarKet overview
K-tron’s process group is a global leader in designing, manufacturing 
and selling feeding and pneumatic conveying equipment used pri-
marily in dry process manufacturing. we market products under two 
brands: K-tron Feeders and K-tron premier. the largest end market 
served by the process group is the plastics compounding and base resin 
industry, with significant sales also coming from food processing, 
chemicals and pharmaceuticals.

the process group is recognized in the industry for precision feeding 
technology that includes accurate weighing and control capabilities. 
this is critical for ensuring that medications and foods meet govern-
ment guidelines and that plastics have exactly the amount of ingredi-
ents to ensure the end products are stable and consistent.

the group has strong engineering, manufacturing and sourcing in 
north america and western europe, which is also where we have the 
majority of our sales and support. approximately 75 percent of the 
process group’s revenue is generated through equipment sales and 25 
percent through maintenance and the sale of replacement parts.

the market for the process group is highly fragmented, global and 
growing at a rapid rate as more industries in diverse geographies begin 
to put more automated processes in place.

proceSS group year in review
generally, the process group lags the economy by three to six months 
as our customers change their production lines to meet demand. this 

means that the effect of the economic reces-
sion in 2009 wasn’t evident in K-tron’s 

financial results until late in the year. as the recession continued in 
early 2010, the process group continued to experience lower numbers 
of original orders and fewer requests for replacement parts.

as the year progressed, we began to see an uptick in orders for replace-
ment parts, indicating that customers were encouraged enough to 
restart or increase production on some lines, but not yet confident 
enough to buy new equipment. K-tron’s process group finished its 
first fiscal year under Hillenbrand with u.S. business relatively flat, 
but showing signs of improvement.

the recovery appeared more pronounced in china, Korea and certain 
other asian countries, where factories are beginning to install more 
automated processes. we also saw some strength in europe and the 
americas late in 2010.

global gross domestic product grew in 2010 and is expected to con-
tinue growing in 2011, which should lead to increased orders for capital 
equipment.

proceSS group year aHead
originally, the process group was known only for its feeders. over 
time, we started to sell additional third-party components, such as 
pneumatic conveying. the acquisition of premier pneumatics in 2006 
positioned the company as a single-source supplier of material han-
dling systems under one highly respected brand. in 2011, we intend to 
capitalize more on this system integration strategy to drive revenue  
and margin growth. we also anticipate adding other system compo-
nents through acquisition in the coming years to further support this 
solutions-based system strategy.

the process group’s key competency is managing a continuous flow 
process. Many manufacturing processes are batch-oriented, such as  
in the pharmaceutical industry. as technology has improved, more 
companies are moving to fast, efficient continuous flow processes, and 
we see great potential for our products, both domestically and abroad. 
this is also a good opportunity to expand our reach with pneumatic 
conveying equipment and integrated systems on a global basis as facili-
ties retool or bring new operations online.

K-tron produces pneumatic conveying 
and feeding systems specifically designed 
to meet the high demands of the pharma-
ceutical industry, where accurate measure-
ment and sanitary materials are critical.

K-tron is the leading producer of gravi-
metric feeders, such as these loss-in-weight 
models. our patented precision weighing 
modules and controls are designed for  
high performance in difficult industrial 
environments.

From rotary valves (front left) to blowers 
(middle left) to vacuum receivers (front 
right) to silos (rear), K-tron premier pro-
duces or engineers all the components 
required for a complete pneumatic convey-
ing system.

K-tron’s bulk solids pump uses break-
through technology to provide gentle,  
precise feeding of free-f lowing pellets, 
granules and friable products. they can be 
paired with K-tron premier conveying 
systems.
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our products are well-known in europe and the americas, but there 
are significant opportunities to increase our presence in asia, the 
Middle east and the pacific rim, particularly in high-growth economies.

Size reduction group MarKet overview
the Size reduction group deals in much larger materials than its 
process group counterpart, with three primary brands: gundlach, 
pennsylvania crusher and Jeffrey rader.

gundlach equipment is most often found at a mining site, turning 
basketball-sized chunks of coal into softball-sized pieces that can be 
more easily transported. it also has a strong brand position in north 
american minerals mining used in fertilizer production. pennsylvania 
crusher is well-known and respected at north american coal-fired 
power plants, where its equipment reduces the coal even further, creat-
ing particles the optimal size for efficient burning in a utility’s boiler. 
pulp and paper is the key industry for Jeffrey rader equipment, which 
coincidentally has also been used for years in batesville casket’s wood 
processing plant in vicksburg, Miss.

these brands derive 40 percent of their revenue from new equipment 
sales. large pieces of equipment, they tend to stay in place for decades 
and have been specifically engineered to fit into that facility’s process. 
the majority of revenue in the Size reduction group — 60 percent 
— comes from the sales of consumable parts, which experience signifi-
cant wear and tear and require regular maintenance and replacement.

Size reduction group year in review
K-tron’s Size reduction group generally experiences the effects of  
economic volatility six to nine months later. throughout 2010, u.S. 
coal production and energy consumption began to increase, and we 
saw a resulting gradual growth in consumable parts orders. as power 
plants and coal mines increase production to meet demand, we expect  

to see these orders increase further. the continuing soft economy,  
however, has resulted in relatively flat orders for new equipment in the 
u.S. in 2010.

international demand for equipment used for coal and mineral mining, 
steel production and biomass energy generation was strong in 2010, 
particularly as china and india bring new coal-fired energy plants 
online at a rapid pace. we expect this trend to continue in 2011.

Size reduction group year aHead
well-known domestically, the Size reduction group plans to export  
its capabilities to a wider world marketplace in 2011. although it  
often exports products to other countries, the design, installation and 
maintenance of this equipment is often a high-touch process. by  
having a local presence in key geographies, we can be viewed as a 
domestic supplier of equipment and spare parts in a number of devel-
oping markets, including:

•  energy generation and fertilizer production, which are fairly mature 
industries in the u.S., but are rapidly growing elsewhere. bookings 
for coal mines and utilities in china have grown over the past four 
years, and we plan to increase our penetration there.

•  biomass energy production in europe, where Jeffrey rader’s exper-
tise in wood processing is a competitive advantage.

•  Mined minerals in europe, where there’s a growing demand for com-
ponents used in fertilizer production.

SuMMary
Hillenbrand is pleased with K-tron’s results as a member of the 
Hillenbrand family and we’re excited about the company’s potential to 
generate additional revenue and margin growth both domestically and 
globally in 2011 and beyond.

gundlach is the preferred crushing solution for coal, potash, salts, lime 
and other industrial minerals where precise product sizing and maxi-
mized yield are important. we are the industry leader in this category.

the centroload™ feeder is the latest innovation from Jeffrey rader 
corporation. it is used to feed aggregates into crushers and impactors 
more evenly, producing a more uniform product at a reduced cost.

pennsylvania crusher’s coalpactor reversible hammermill crushes coal 
and limestone for fluid bed boiler operations in the production of electric 
power. it is also used for sizing many other minerals in various industries.

replacement parts are an important component of pennsylvania crusher’s 
business. electric power plants choose our replacement parts, such as this 
hammer, because their performance can improve boiler operation.

8



Hillenbrand, inc.
2010 Form 10-K



UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K
Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d)  

of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010

Commission File No. 001-33794

HILLENBRAND, INC.
(exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

 Indiana 26-1342272
 (State or other jurisdiction of  (i.r.S. employer
 incorporation or organization) identification no.)

 One Batesville Boulevard
 Batesville, Indiana 47006
 (address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (812) 934-7500
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

 Title of each class name of each exchange on Which registered

 Common Stock, without par value New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.

Yes   no 

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934.

Yes   no 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such 
reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes   no 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every 
Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding  
12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).

Yes   no 

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,  
and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by 
reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. 



Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, non-accelerated filer, or a smaller 
reporting company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

large accelerated filer    accelerated filer    non-accelerated filer    Smaller reporting company 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).

Yes   no 

State the aggregate market value of the voting and nonvoting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant.

aggregate market value of the voting stock (which consists solely of shares of common stock) held by non-affiliates of the registrant as 
of march 31, 2010: — $1,369,013,552.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

common Stock, without par value — 62,284,165 shares outstanding as of november 15, 2010.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
list hereunder the following documents if incorporated by reference and the Part of the Form 10-K (e.g., Part i, Part ii, etc.) into which 
the document is incorporated: Portions of our definitive proxy statement for the 2010 annual meeting of Stockholders are incorporated 
by reference into Part iii of this report. These will be filed no later than January 15, 2011.



3

Hillenbrand, inc.  2010 annual rePorT

Hillenbrand, inc.
annual report on Form 10-K

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010
Table oF conTenTS

Page
ParT i
disclosure regarding Forward-looking Statements 4
item 1. business 4
item 1a. risk Factors 13
item 1b. unresolved Staff comments 17
item 2. Properties 18
item 3. legal Proceedings 18
item 4. removed and reserved 20

ParT ii
item 5. market for registrant’s common equity, related Stockholder matters, and issuer Purchases of equity Securities 20
item 6. Selected Financial data 22
item 7. management’s discussion and analysis of Financial condition and results of operations 22
item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative disclosures about market risk 33
item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary data 34
item 9. changes in and disagreements With accountants on accounting and Financial disclosure 69
item 9a. controls and Procedures 69
item 9b. other information 69

ParT iii
item 10. directors, executive officers, and corporate Governance 69
item 11. executive compensation 69
item 12. Security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management, and related Stockholder matters 69
item 13. certain relationships and related Transactions, and director independence 70
item 14. Principal accountant Fees and Services 70

ParT iV
item 15. exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules 70
Signatures 71



4

ParT i

diScloSure reGardinG ForWard-looKinG 
STaTemenTS

Throughout this Form 10-K, we make a number of “forward-
looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities 
litigation reform act of 1995. as the words imply, forward- 
looking statements are statements about our future plans, objec-
tives, beliefs, and expectations that might or might not happen  
in the future, as contrasted with historical information. our  
forward-looking statements are based on assumptions that we 
believe are reasonable, but by their very nature they are subject to 
a wide range of risks.

accordingly, in this Form 10-K, we may say something like,

“We anticipate that the burial rate will be flat to slightly declining in 
future years.”

That is a forward-looking statement, as indicated by the word 
“anticipate” and by the clear meaning of the sentence.

other words that could indicate we’re making forward-looking 
statements include the following:

intend believe plan expect may goal would
become pursue estimate will forecast continue should
targeted encourage promise improve progress potential could

This isn’t an exhaustive list but is simply intended to give you  
an idea of how we try to identify forward-looking statements. The 
absence of any of these words, however, does not mean that the 
statement is not forward-looking.

Here’s the key point: Forward-looking statements are not guaran-
tees of future performance, and our actual results could differ mate-
rially from those set forth in any forward-looking statements. any 
number of factors — many of which are beyond our control — 
could cause our performance to differ significantly from those 
described in the forward-looking statements.

For a discussion of factors that could cause actual results to differ 
from those contained in forward-looking statements, see the  
discussions under the heading “risk Factors” in item 1a of this 
Form 10-K. We assume no obligation to update or revise any  
forward-looking statements.

iTem 1. buSineSS

in this section of the Form 10-K, entitled “business,” we provide 
you a basic understanding of our company, our reportable seg-
ments, the products we manufacture and sell, how we distribute  
our products, with whom we compete, and the key inputs to pro-
duction (in the form of raw materials, labor, and manufacturing  

locations). We also provide you background on industry trends, 
regulatory matters, and key patents and trademarks important  
to our business. We also provide an explanation of our business 
strategies. Finally, we provide you a brief background on our  
executive officers so that you can understand their experience  
and qualifications.

General Information

Hillenbrand, inc. (“Hillenbrand”) was formed on november 1, 
2007, and became a publicly traded company as the result of the 
separation of Hillenbrand industries, inc. (our “Former Parent”, 
“Hill-rom Holdings, inc.”, or “Hill-rom”) into two separate 
publicly traded companies, Hillenbrand and Hill-rom, through a 
tax-free distribution (the “distribution”) of Hillenbrand shares to 
Hill-rom’s shareholders. This distribution took place following 
the close of business on march 31, 2008. unless the context oth-
erwise requires, the terms “Hillenbrand,” the “company,” “we,” 
“our,” or “us” refer to Hillenbrand, inc. and one or all of its  
consolidated subsidiaries.

Hillenbrand, inc. is an indiana corporation with our principal 
executive offices located at one batesville boulevard, batesville, 
indiana, 47006. our telephone number at this address is (812) 
934-7500. our website is www.hillenbrandinc.com. We make 
available on this website, free of charge, access to press releases; 
conference calls; our annual, quarterly, and current reports; and 
other documents filed with or furnished to the Securities and 
exchange commission (“Sec”) as soon as practicable after such 
reports are filed or furnished. We also make available through this 
website position specifications for the chairman, Vice chairman, 
members of the board of directors and the chief executive 
officer; our code of ethical business conduct; the corporate 
Governance Standards of our board of directors; and the charters 
of each of the standing committees of the board of directors.  
all of these documents are also available to shareholders in print 
upon request.

all reports and documents filed with the Sec are also available 
via the Sec website, www.sec.gov, or may be read and copied at 
the Sec Public reference room at 100 F Street, ne, Washington, 
dc 20549. information on the operation of the Public reference 
room may be obtained by calling the Sec at 1-800-Sec-0330.

Hillenbrand Corporate Operations

Background. Hillenbrand, inc. is the parent holding company 
of our wholly owned subsidiaries, batesville Services, inc. 
(“batesville”) and K-Tron international, inc. (“K-Tron”), includ-
ing their wholly owned subsidiaries. in addition to implementing 
our business strategy discussed below as a holding company, we 
generally oversee the operations of our subsidiaries, allocate  
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resources among them, and manage their capital structures.  
additionally, we provide our subsidiaries with certain centralized 
functions such as reporting, treasury, taxes, internal audit, and 
risk management. We also centrally coordinate our business 
acquisition and lean business strategy initiatives. as of September 
30, 2010, we employed 43 people in our corporate operations, all 
of whom are located at our principal offices in batesville, indiana.

Strategy. We believe we can most effectively continue to increase 
shareholder value by building a diversified enterprise with strong 
positions in multiple industries. our long-term value creation 
strategy consists of:

 •  Growing revenue and Income Before Taxes via organic 
growth within our existing platforms and through tar-
geted acquisitions. each operating company has specific, 
targeted business plans to achieve organic growth, which 
may also include select “add-on” acquisitions that are com-
plimentary to their growth strategies. The operating compa-
nies also plan to increase profit margins by employing 
Hillenbrand’s core competencies of:

  •  Lean business, continuously looking for ways to improve 
quality and customer satisfaction, increase effectiveness 
and operational efficiency, drive costs down, and develop 
lean leaders;

  •  Talent development, providing opportunities to success-
fully recruit, develop, and deploy talent; and

  •  Strategy management, which serves as the basis for annual 
and long-term business planning, while strengthening 
technical capabilities and product and service strategies.

 •  Using our cash flow and debt capacity to invest in addi-
tional growth platforms. We will focus on companies that 
can take advantage of our core competencies and that meet 
our financial and cultural criteria. in support of this effort, 
we will continue to develop our public company capabilities 
to ensure that we remain compliant, efficient, well-con-
trolled, and capable of supporting future acquisitions.

Batesville

Background. batesville is the leader in the north american death 
care products industry, where it has been designing, manufactur-
ing, distributing, and selling funeral service products to licensed 
funeral directors operating licensed funeral homes for more than 
100 years. batesville-branded products consist primarily of burial 
caskets, but also include cremation caskets, containers and urns, 
selection room display fixturing for funeral homes, and other  
personalization and memorialization products and services, 
including web-based applications and the creation and hosting of 
websites for licensed funeral homes.

Products and Services. batesville designs, manufactures, and sells 
gasketed caskets made of carbon steel, stainless steel, copper, and 
bronze. it also produces and markets non-gasketed steel, hard-
wood, and veneer hardwood caskets. in addition, batesville man-
ufactures and sells cloth-covered caskets, all-wood construction 
caskets suitable for green burials, and a line of urns, containers, 
and other memorialization products used in cremations. To assist 
with displaying these products, batesville supplies selection room 
fixturing through our System Solutions® by batesville. batesville 
has recently been evaluating the possibility of expanding its prod-
uct line into lightweight polyresin burial vaults, a line that would 
be complementary to its casket products.

most batesville® brand metal caskets are gasketed caskets that 
are electronically welded and utilize rubber gaskets and a locking 
bar mechanism. batesville premium steel caskets also employ an 
alloy bar to help protect the casket cathodically from rust and  
corrosion. We believe that this system of cathodic protection is a 
feature found only on batesville-produced caskets.

batesville solid and veneer hardwood caskets are made from a 
variety of woods, and are offered in more than eight different  
species. The batesville veneer caskets are manufactured using a 
proprietary process for veneering that allows for rounded corners 
and a furniture-grade finished appearance. batesville also manu-
factures and provides select lines of marsellus® premium solid 
wood caskets to its funeral home customers.

The options® by batesville cremation line offers a complete cre-
mation marketing system for funeral service professionals. in 
addition to a broad line of cremation caskets, containers, urns, 
jewelry, and keepsakes, the system includes training, merchandis-
ing support, and marketing support materials. cremation caskets 
and containers are manufactured primarily of hardwoods and 
fiberboard. batesville’s wide assortments of memorial urns are 
made from a variety of materials, including bronze, acrylic, wood, 
cloisonné, and marble.

integrated online technology products and services are avail-
able through the batesvil le interactive suite of products. 
Weblink™ funeral home websites, Tributelink™ online videos, 
and obitlink™ online obituary content form an integrated solu-
tion that provides funeral directors additional ways to generate 
revenue streams and connect with consumers for information  
and education needs. batesville’s alliance with legacy.com® gives 
funeral directors access to the largest networked obituary system 
in the nation. batesville’s technology products help to improve the 
visibility of the local funeral home to the families they serve.
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Sales, Distribution and Operations. batesville offers several mar-
keting and merchandising programs to funeral professionals for 
both casket and cremation products. batesville-branded caskets 
are marketed by batesville’s direct sales force only to licensed 
funeral professionals operating licensed funeral establishments 
(or, in the absence of state licensing requirements, to full-service 
funeral establishments offering both funeral goods and funeral 
services in conformance with state law) throughout the united 
States (“u.S.”), Puerto rico, canada, mexico, the united Kingdom, 
and australia. a significant portion of batesville’s sales are made 
to large national funeral service providers under contracts. one 
customer, Service corporation international, accounted for 
approximately 13% of batesville’s consolidated net sales during 
the year ended September 30, 2010. in contrast to our large 
national accounts, we also serve more than 12,000 independent, 
privately-owned customers across north america.

over the past decade, funeral home customers have sought to 
minimize their inventory costs by shifting the inventory burden 
to their suppliers. Today, many funeral homes maintain minimal 
casket inventory and expect their casket suppliers to provide 
same-day or next-day delivery to satisfy their funeral require-
ments. The batesville distribution network maintains inventory  
at 85 company-operated customer Service centers (“cScs”) and 
6 rapid deployment centers (“rdcs”) in north america. 
batesville caskets are generally delivered in specially equipped 
vehicles owned by batesville. This system enables batesville to 
deliver the majority of its product, including uniquely personal-
ized caskets, within 24 hours of receiving the customer’s order. 
over the last three years, batesville delivered the “right casket at 
the right time” in excess of 99% of the time. We believe this 
highly effective distribution network is aligned with the increas-
ing time demands of families and the inventory reduction expec-
tations of batesville’s customers.

batesville primarily manufactures and distributes its products in 
the u.S. it also has 2 manufacturing facilities in mexico and dis-
tribution facilities in Puerto rico, canada, mexico, the united 
Kingdom, and australia. its export revenues constituted less than 
10% of its consolidated revenues in fiscal 2010 and prior years.

batesville’s foreign operations are subject to risks inherent in 
doing business in foreign countries (which include political, social, 
and economic instability, expropriation, and changing govern-
ment regulations), but are substantially limited to sales activities 
in canada and manufacturing activities in mexico.

Quantitative information about foreign operations is set forth in 
tables relating to geographic information in note 15 to our con-
solidated financial statements included in Part ii, item 8 of this 
Form 10-K.

Demographics and Customer Preferences. The death of a family 
member or loved one causes most people to seek the services of a 
state-licensed funeral director to provide specific services regard-
ing handling and preparing the deceased. most consumers have 
only limited familiarity with funeral-related products and usually 
expect funeral directors to provide information on product and 
service alternatives. although caskets and urns can be purchased 
from a variety of sources, including directly from internet sellers 
and casket stores, the overwhelming majority of those who arrange 
a funeral purchase these products directly from the funeral home 
as a matter of choice and convenience.

For the past several years, the total number of deaths in north 
america (where most of batesville’s products are sold) has been 
decreasing. during the same period, the rate of cremation selec-
tion has been slowly but steadily increasing to the point where 
cremations as a percentage of total deaths now represent more 
than one-third in the u.S. and more than one-half in canada. 
These factors have yielded a slow but steady decline in the total 
number of burials in north america. The current trends are 
expected to continue for the foreseeable future until the post-
World War ii spike in births causes an increase in deaths. While 
the primary drivers of market size are population and age, the 
actual number of deaths (and, therefore, the actual number of cas-
kets sold) is affected by a variety of additional factors, including 
improving healthcare and the varying timing and severity of sea-
sonal pneumonia and influenza outbreaks. The unpredictability 
of these factors can cause periodic f luctuations in industry 
demand patterns and revenue generated in any given fiscal period. 
While it is difficult to accurately predict the number of deaths on 
a month-to-month or even a year-to-year basis, we anticipate that 
the number of deaths in north america will remain relatively  
f lat and the cremation rate will continue to gradually increase, 
resulting in a modest, but steady decline in the demand for burial 
caskets for the foreseeable future.

along with the declining number of burials, the death care prod-
ucts industry has experienced a long-term gradual decline in the 
product mix of burial caskets sold, a trend that has also affected 
our financial results. one of the factors that has affected mix is 
the pricing practice of many funeral homes to place most of the 
margin expectation on the sale of products (principally caskets) 
instead of the services provided. We have observed changes in  
the pricing practices of many funeral homes, wherein they are 
recovering margin on their services and reducing the mark-up  
of products, primarily caskets, which now have more pricing visi-
bility through online retailers. additionally, more consumers  
are expecting higher levels of personalization, both in products 
and services.
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Competition. We believe batesville is the recognized north 
american industry leader in the sale of death care products. 
competition in the death care products industry is based on  
product quality, design features, personalization, price, and  
delivery service. batesville competes in the sale of burial and  
cremation containers with several national casket manufacturers/
distributors, regional manufacturers/distributors, and more than 
100 independent casket distributors, most of whom serve fairly 
narrow geographic segments. The industry also has seen a few 
foreign manufacturers, mostly from china, import caskets into 
the u.S., and canada. additionally, some retail stores and inter-
net retailers sell caskets directly to consumers, although we believe 
that total sales among this latter group represent approximately 
3% of annual burial casket volume.

The effect of gradually declining casket demand continues to 
result in economic pressures on casket manufacturers and dis-
tributors as they seek to maintain volume. existing domestic  
over-capacity and the added burden from commodity price 
increases, which began increasing in early 2010, further increases 
these pressures, resulting in higher per unit costs.

Raw Materials. batesville uses carbon and stainless steel, copper 
and bronze sheets, wood, fabrics, finishing materials, rubber gas-
kets, zinc, and magnesium alloy in the manufacture of its caskets. 
although most of these raw materials are generally available from 
several sources, some are currently procured from a single source.

Volatility in the prices batesville pays for raw materials used in its 
products, including steel, fuel, petroleum-based products, and 
fuel-related delivery costs, has a direct effect on profitability. 
batesville generally does not engage in hedging transactions with 
respect to these purchases, but does enter into fixed-price supply 
contracts at times. batesville regularly takes steps and actions to 
offset the impact of volatility in raw material and fuel prices, 
including lean business initiatives, various sourcing actions, and 
rebalancing of production capacity.

most of batesville’s sales are made pursuant to supply agreements 
with its customers, and historically it has instituted annual price 
adjustments to help offset some, but not necessarily all, raw mate-
rial costs.

Patents and Trademarks. batesville owns a number of patents on 
its products and manufacturing processes that are of importance, 
but we do not believe any single patent or related group of patents 
is of material significance to its business as a whole. it also owns a 
number of trademarks and service marks relating to products and 
product services which are of importance, but, except for the 
mark “batesville®,” we do not believe any single trademark or ser-
vice mark is of material significance to its business as a whole.

batesville’s ability to compete effectively depends, to an extent, on 
its ability to maintain the proprietary nature of its intellectual 
property. However, it may not be sufficiently protected by its  
various patents, trademarks, and service marks. additionally, cer-
tain of its existing patents, trademarks or service marks may be 
challenged, invalidated, cancelled, narrowed, or circumvented. 
beyond that, it may not receive the pending or contemplated  
patents, trademarks, or service marks for which it has applied  
or filed.

in the past, certain of its products have been copied and sold by 
others. batesville vigorously seeks to enforce its intellectual prop-
erty rights. However, we cannot ensure that the reproduction and 
sale of its products by others would not materially affect the sale 
of its products.

Employees. as of September 30, 2010, batesville employed approx-
imately 3,200 people in its operations. approximately 1,100 of 
these individuals within its logistics and manufacturing opera-
tions in the u.S. and mexico work under collective bargaining 
agreements. in the u.S. and mexico, the collective bargaining 
agreements have expiration dates ranging from January 2011 to 
June 2015.

batesville strives to maintain satisfactory relationships with all its 
employees, including the unions representing those employees. as 
a result, batesville has not experienced a significant work stoppage 
due to labor relations in more than 20 years. although it cannot 
ensure that such a stoppage might not occur in the future, there  
is no reason to believe that this trend will not continue for the 
foreseeable future.

Strategy. While volume growth in the burial casket space contin-
ues to be limited, there are opportunities to generate additional 
business within a wider range of funeral services. leadership of 
batesville is focusing on three categories of strategic initiatives to 
drive growth:

Profitably Grow the Core Burial Business

 •  The batesville® brand is widely recognized as the premier 
brand in the industry among funeral professionals, offering 
the broadest range of metal and wood caskets. its legacy of 
innovation and leadership in the funeral industry has allowed 
customers and the families they serve to commemorate the 
lives of those they love through quality construction and 
compelling designs that provide personal expressions of a life 
well-lived. To enhance its leadership position, batesville will 
continue to invest in its marketing capabilities, specifically in 
research, new product development, and brand promotion. 
batesville will utilize its capabilities to continue launching 
products with consumer-oriented features and expand its 
personalization platforms throughout the product line.
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 •  batesville will continue to demonstrate the value its batesville-
branded products and services bring to the operations and 
families of funeral home customers of all sizes across north 
america. batesville is focused on improving the quality of all 
of its customer interactions through better call management 
and compensation alignment. its actions are focused on 
ensuring the success of funeral home customers, which in 
turn will position batesville to be successful in the future.

 •  batesville’s ability to apply proven merchandising principles 
and proprietary database tools enables it to help customers 
increase their average mix and drive greater profitability, all 
while increasing the satisfaction of their clients. batesville 
will continue to differentiate itself as a solutions provider. in 
2011, it will continue to focus on moving customers up the 
merchandising ladder, emphasizing the value of using its full 
system. Fully merchandised accounts continue to have a 
higher rate of revenue growth, and a higher retention rate.

 •  The number of casket manufacturers has dwindled over the 
years, but there are opportunities to capitalize on acquisitions 
and alliances in other parts of the death care products indus-
try. batesville will continue to remain alert to these opportu-
nities and capitalize on them when it’s prudent to do so.

Grow Profitable New Revenue Streams Within the Death 
Care Products Industry

 •  The options® by batesville brand has a long history of pro-
viding business solutions to our customers and assisting 
them with meeting the needs of the cremation consumer. in 
addition to these solutions, which include business analysis 
merchandising, and training, options also has the broadest 
product line in the industry, consisting of cremation caskets, 
containers, urns, and other cremation memorialization prod-
ucts. We expect continued growth in these product lines as 
more consumers choose cremation over burial. in fiscal 2011, 
batesville plans to implement key actions aimed at improv-
ing revenue performance by further implementation of its 
system, which is designed to improve the frequency of fami-
lies selecting products and services over direct cremation, 
additional development of new products, and implementing 
after-market programs for our funeral home customers to 
market to consumers.

 •  batesville has expanded its position as the largest provider of 
funeral home websites in north america, a service we believe 
provides many small, family-owned funeral homes access to 
resources and capabilities they may not otherwise have or 
develop on their own. in 2011, batesville will continue to 
provide funeral directors with additional ways to generate 
revenue and connect with consumers for information and  

   education needs. batesville interactive offers integrated 
online products that include Weblink™, Tributelink™ online 
videos, and obitlink™ through its alliance with legacy.com 
that gives funeral directors access to the largest networked 
obituary system in north america. as additional consumers 
use the internet as their first point of contact when making a 
purchase decision, batesville technology offerings help to 
improve the visibility of the local funeral home to the fami-
lies they serve.

 •  Fiscal 2010 was batesville’s fourth full year offering the 
northStar® product line to independent casket distributors. 
These are private-label burial caskets and because these prod-
ucts do not contain any of the batesville proprietary features, 
designs, or specifications, they are differentiated from the 
premium batesville brand.

 •  batesville will leverage its strong brand and deep sales and 
service relationships to continue to expand new product and 
service offerings that complement its core product line. 
additional product and service offerings within the death 
care products industry will enable batesville to provide an 
integrated solution to funeral homes, helping them provide 
quality funerals to consumers and drive improved profitabil-
ity for their businesses.

Utilize Lean Business Principles As An Integrated Business 
System To Deliver Operational Efficiencies

 •  batesville’s highly integrated manufacturing facilities in the 
u.S. and mexico utilize “one-piece f low” to manufacture  
caskets and “pull production” from their stamping and wood 
processing facilities that feed its high-velocity distribution 
network with products quickly and efficiently. These pro-
cesses allow batesville to carry lower inventory in its distri-
bution network while still meeting the growing demand of 
its customers. batesville intends to continue to leverage its 
processes to allow it to carry lower inventory per sales dollar 
than its competitors, enabling customers to carry few or no 
products in their funeral homes, and on average over the past 
three years, still achieve on-time delivery more than 99% of 
the time.

 •  batesville’s effective execution of Hillenbrand lean business 
(derived from the Toyota Production System) improves prod-
uct quality and customer satisfaction while enabling annual 
lead time and cost reductions in its operations, distribution 
and administrative functions.

 •  batesville’s leadership position as the largest manufacturer 
and distributor of caskets and containers in north america 
provides scale and scope that enables it to capitalize on effi-
ciencies and compete with a low cost structure.
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K-Tron

Background. K-Tron was acquired by us in april 2010. K-Tron 
designs, produces, markets, and services material handling equip-
ment and systems for a wide variety of industrial markets, partic-
ularly in the plastics, food, chemical, pharmaceutical, power 
generation, coal mining, pulp and paper, wood and forest prod-
ucts, and biomass energy generation industries. K-Tron serves the 
bulk solids material handling market, which focuses primarily on 
feeding, size reduction, conveying, and screening equipment.

Products and Services. K-Tron’s products and services for the bulk 
solids material handling markets are generated within two main 
business lines: the Process Group and the Size reduction Group.

Process Group (“PG”). PG designs, produces, markets, sells, and 
services feeders and pneumatic conveying equipment under two 
main brands: K-Tron Feeders® and K-Tron Premier®. These can 
be sold as stand-alone products or as part of engineered systems 
where one or more feeders are combined with pneumatic convey-
ing and other complementary materials handling equipment. it 
also designs, produces, markets, and sells a separate line of volu-
metric and gravimetric feeders, pelletizers, screen changers, pneu-
matic conveying equipment, and other equipment under the 
K-Tron colormax® brand name, specifically targeted at domestic 
chinese compounding and injection molding manufacturers.

Feeding equipment controls the flow of materials into a manu-
facturing process by weight (known as gravimetric feeding) or  
by volume (known as volumetric feeding) and is used in many 
different industries, including plastics compounding, base resin 
production, and food, chemical, and pharmaceutical production.

PG’s pneumatic conveying equipment and related systems are 
used in many of the same industries as the feeders to transport 
bulk solids from point to point using either negative pressure 
(known as vacuum conveying) or positive pressure (known as 
pressure conveying).

Size Reduction Group (“SRG”). SrG designs, manufactures, mar-
kets, and sells size reduction equipment that is used to reduce 
various materials to a smaller size. it has three primary brands 
that serve a variety of industries. The Pennsylvania crusher® and 
Gundlach® brands are used in the power generation industry to 
crush coal before it is used as fuel in the steam furnaces of coal-
fired power plants. These products also serve mining, quarrying, 
glass making, salt processing, fertilizer manufacturing facilities, 
and other industrial applications. The Jeffrey rader® brand 
includes equipment used in the pulp and paper, wood and forest, 
and biomass industries.

Several key products include hammer mills, which crush materials 
by impact from hammers and then scrub the materials against a 
screen for desired size; double roll crushers, which break material 
by compression; a variety of wood and bark hogs, chip sizers, 
screening equipment, pneumatic and mechanical conveying sys-
tems; and storage/reclaim systems. SrG also offers specialty 
crushers and other equipment, such as the accu-Grind®, a small 
crusher designed for sampling applications and the nanosiz-r®, 
which provides fine grinding for the mineral industry.

a significant portion of K-Tron’s revenue is derived from the sale 
of replacement parts. SrG has a large installed base of long-lived 
equipment, and every machine and part sold, including specifica-
tions and drawings, is registered in a digital database to provide 
customers with fast and efficient support.

We aggregate the financial results of PG and SrG into a single 
reportable segment due to the similarities of these business lines.

Sales, Distribution and Operations. K-Tron sells its material 
handling equipment and systems throughout the world to a wide 
variety of industrial and engineering customers using a combina-
tion of a direct sales force and a global network of independent 
sales representatives and distributors.

K-Tron has contracts with its independent sales representatives 
and distributors that provide for specific commissions or in  
situations where a representative is acting as a distributor, net 
transaction prices, depending on the type of product sold. 
discounting below its target margins is uncommon, but when it 
occurs, K-Tron’s representative may be asked to share the cost and 
the distributor may receive a lower transaction price from K-Tron.

due to the nature of K-Tron’s business, orders are often unique, 
built-to-order items. Therefore, K-Tron does not typically main-
tain significant amounts of raw material and component stock 
inventory on hand at any one time, except to cover replacement 
parts orders. Products are generally assembled and tested at 
K-Tron facilities and then shipped to a customer’s desired 
location.

K-Tron conducts its manufacturing operations in seven manufac-
turing facilities located in the u.S., Switzerland, and the People’s 
republic of china (“china”) and also maintains foreign sales 
offices and service centers in the united Kingdom, Sweden, 
France, Germany, canada, and Singapore. over the past three 
years, K-Tron’s export revenues have accounted for approximately 
one-third of its net revenues.
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Similar to batesville, K-Tron foreign operations are subject to risks 
inherent in doing business in foreign countries. For K-Tron, its 
risks are primarily related to euro-denominated sales and manu-
facturing activities in Switzerland and manufacturing activities in 
china. To the extent it receives revenue from u.S. or Swiss export 
sales in currencies other than u.S. dollars or Swiss francs, the 
value of assets and income could be, and in the past have been, 
adversely affected by fluctuations in the value of local currencies.

Quantitative information about foreign operations is set forth in 
tables relating to geographic information in note 15 to our con-
solidated financial statements included in Part ii, item 8 of this 
Form 10-K.

Demographics and Customer Preferences. K-Tron’s customers exist 
in multiple industries, including the plastics, food, chemical, 
pharmaceutical, power generation, coal mining, pulp and paper, 
wood and forest products, and biomass energy generation indus-
tries. These customers range from large, global companies to 
regional and local businesses, none of which accounted for more 
than 10% of K-Tron’s consolidated net revenues during the six 
months ended September 30, 2010.

as an industrial capital goods supplier, many of the markets for 
K-Tron’s products are cyclical, and for the past several years 
domestic capital equipment purchases have been in decline due in 
part to lower demand for power and a weak economy. However, 
capital equipment orders for export (particularly to china and 
asia) have been strong due to demand for increased power pro-
duction and economic growth. during periods of economic 
expansion, when capital spending normally increases, K-Tron  
generally benefits from greater demand for its products. during 
periods of economic contraction, such as the recent global  
recession, when capital spending normally decreases, K-Tron  
generally is adversely affected by declining demand for its  
products. more recently, we are seeing modest signs of increased 
economic activity.

Competition. We believe K-Tron has a superior reputation and 
holds leading positions in key industries because of the design and 
quality of its products, years of experience, and its commitment to 
serving the needs of its customers. in other areas of the business, 
such as digital control and digital weighing technologies, we 
believe K-Tron’s engineering capability and integration of technol-
ogy allows it to maintain an advantage over the competition in 
these areas.

in the bulk solids market, strong competition exists in every mar-
ket K-Tron serves, and its competitors range in size from small, 
privately held companies serving narrow markets or geographical 
areas to large, well-known companies, such as Schenck Process 
GmbH, serving national and international markets with multiple 
product lines. as a capital goods supplier, we believe K-Tron’s 

strong base of replacement parts business and K-Tron’s worldwide 
network of suppliers and dealers allows K-Tron to maintain strong 
margins even during economic downturns.

Raw and Component Materials. The manufacturing of K-Tron 
products involves the machining and welding of raw materials 
(primarily sheet metals and steel) and castings into machined 
parts. These parts are then combined and assembled with other 
component parts purchased from its third-party vendors into  
finished goods. although most of these raw materials and compo-
nents are generally available from several sources, some of these 
items are currently purchased from sole sources. K-Tron has not 
experienced any significant production delay that was primarily 
attributable to an outside supplier.

Patents and Trademarks. K-Tron, like batesville, owns a number of 
patents on its products and manufacturing processes that are 
deemed to be important, but not materially significant to its busi-
ness as a whole. in addition, K-Tron owns a number of trademarks 
that are important to its business, most notably the Pennsylvania 
crusher®, Gundlach®, Jeffrey rader®, and the K-Tron Premier®, 
Feeder®, electronics®, and colormax® brands. depending on the 
jurisdiction, trademarks are generally valid as long as they are in 
use and/or their registrations are properly maintained.

K-Tron’s patents, trademarks and intellectual property are subject 
to the same business risks as described earlier for batesville.

Employees. at the end of fiscal 2010, K-Tron had approximately 
650 employees, of which approximately 430 were located in the 
u.S., 150 in europe, and 70 in china and other foreign locations. 
none of its employees are represented by labor unions, and we 
consider relations with these employees to be good.

Strategy. as the capital equipment markets are recovering from 
the global recession of the past two years, there continues to be 
significant opportunities for K-Tron’s products and services both 
domestically and internationally. leadership of K-Tron is focusing 
on the following strategic initiatives to drive organic growth as 
well as growth through acquisitions:

Profitably Grow Top Line Revenues In Our Core K-Tron  
Business Lines

 •  K-Tron is widely recognized as a leader for material handling 
equipment, systems, and services in a wide range of process 
industries. To enhance that leadership position K-Tron will  
continue to invest in key areas, particularly new product 
development, systems engineering, and human resources to 
maintain and extend its technological leadership. K-Tron 
plans to promote its capabilities as a total solutions provider 
to capture a larger share of existing customers’ capital invest-
ments in material handling systems.
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 •  K-Tron provides niche products and services that have sig-
nificant market presence in the north american coal-fired 
power, coal mining, fertilizer and mineral extraction, and 
biomass energy industries. These products have significant 
sales potential in other areas of the world, and as such, 
K-Tron will initiate more aggressive sales and marketing ini-
tiatives for these products and services in targeted markets 
outside its current base of business.

 •  K-Tron serves its existing customers through a well-established 
distribution and service organization that spans the globe. it 
will continue to expand its global leadership by dedicating 
resources to the expansion of its distribution network into 
new and developing high-growth potential geographic mar-
kets and industries that are less prone to cyclical swings.

 •  The strategy of increasing its worldwide capabilities requires 
K-Tron to evaluate its current branding strategy as part of a 
goal to present a unified and consistent message to global 
target markets in the new fiscal year. K-Tron’s commitment 
to efficient delivery of technological capabilities around the 
world will be supported by ongoing and new investment in 
strategically placed manufacturing, sales and service support 
capabilities, and testing facilities.

 •  K-Tron is dedicating human resources to the development of 
centralized market intelligence systems. management believes 
that gathering, analyzing, and reporting market information 
and leading economic indicators will facilitate early detec-
tion of technology and market trends, which in turn will 
help K-Tron to maintain and expand its leadership position 
in the industries it serves across the globe.

Continue Growth Through Acquisitions

 •  The material handling equipment manufacturing industry is 
very fragmented both in terms of product offering and geo-
graphic reach, whereas many customers operate on a global 
basis. K-Tron will continue to search for add-on acquisition 
opportunities that will allow it to expand its product offering 
with complementary products and to sell these products 
through its global distribution network. This will position 
K-Tron to offer its global customers standardized solutions 
for use in their worldwide facilities and will also position it  
as the local supplier of choice for national and regional 
customers.

 •  consistent with the strategy of globalization, K-Tron will 
continue to look for acquisitions that either expand its inter-
national footprint outside the u.S. or accelerate the execu-
tion of its strategy to build a leadership position in material 
handling systems to targeted industries.

Utilize Lean Business Principles to Increase Profit Margins

 •  K-Tron has started to implement the Hillenbrand lean 
business Principles at select engineering and manufacturing 
facilities in order to improve efficiencies and reduce costs in 
operations, distributions, and administrative functions.

 •  K-Tron is dedicating financial and human resources to create 
a globally standardized and integrated business processes 
which maximize efficiencies in its product design, manufac-
turing, sales, and services functions.

Other

Regulatory Matters. both batesville and K-Tron are subject to a 
variety of federal, state, local, and foreign laws and regulations 
relating to environmental, health, and safety concerns, including 
the handling, storage, discharge, and disposal of hazardous 
materials used in or derived from our manufacturing processes. 
We are committed to operating all of our businesses in a manner 
that protects the environment. in the past, we have voluntarily 
entered into remediation agreements with various environmental 
authorities to address onsite and offsite environmental impacts. 
From time to time we provide for reserves in our financial state-
ments for environmental matters. We believe we have appropri-
ately satisfied the financial responsibilities for all currently known 
offsite issues. based on the nature and volume of materials 
involved regarding onsite impacts, we do not expect our cost for 
the onsite remediation activities in which we are currently involved 
to exceed $0.5 million in the future. Future events or changes in 
existing laws and regulations or their interpretation may require 
us to make additional expenditures in the future. The cost or need 
for any such additional expenditure is not known.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

our board of directors is responsible for electing the company’s 
executive officers annually and from time to time as necessary. 
executive officers serve in the ensuing year and until their respec-
tive successors are elected and qualified. except for board mem-
bers Gus Hillenbrand and Tom Johnson, who are first cousins to 
ray Hillenbrand, there are no other family relationships between 
any of our executive officers or between any of them and any 
members of the board of directors. The following is a list of our 
executive officers as of november 15, 2010.

Kenneth a. camp, 65, was elected President and chief executive 
officer of Hillenbrand effective February 8, 2008. mr. camp  
was also elected as a board member on that same date. Prior  
to his appointment as President and chief executive officer  
of Hillenbrand, mr. camp had served as President and chief  
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executive officer of batesville since may 1, 2001. mr. camp cur-
rently serves as chairman and chief executive officer of K-Tron 
international following the acquisition on april 1, 2010. He was 
elected Senior Vice President of our Former Parent on october 1, 
2006, having been a Vice President of that company since october 
8, 2001. He was employed by our Former Parent from 1981 until 
the separation on march 31, 2008. mr. camp previously held the 
position of Vice President of administration of our Former Parent 
from 2000 to 2001. Prior to that assignment, he held various posi-
tions at batesville, including Vice President/General manager of 
operations from 1995 to 2000; Vice President, Sales and Service; 
Vice President, marketing; and Vice President, Strategic Planning.

cynthia l. lucchese, 50, was elected Senior Vice President and 
chief Financial officer of Hillenbrand effective February 8, 
2008. From 2005 to 2007, she served as Senior Vice President and 
chief Financial officer for Thoratec corporation. Prior to that, 
she worked 10 years for Guidant corporation, now a part of 
boston Scientific corporation, in a variety of senior finance roles, 
including Vice President and Treasurer, corporate controller and 
chief accounting officer, and Vice President of Finance and 
administration of the Guidant Sales corporation. ms. lucchese 
was also previously employed by eli lilly and company and ernst 
& Young llP.

Joe a. raver, 44, was elected President and chief operating 
officer of batesville, effective June 16, 2008, and Senior Vice 
President of Hillenbrand on July 15, 2008. Prior to his appoint-
ment as an officer of batesville and Hillenbrand, mr. raver served 
as Vice President and General manager of the respiratory care 
division of Hill-rom, a leading global provider of medical equip-
ment and services. He joined Hill-rom in 2004 as Vice President 
of Strategy and Shared Services. Prior to joining Hill-rom,  
mr. raver spent 10 years in a variety of leadership positions at 
batesville and Hill-rom, including being appointed Vice 
President of Strategy in 2001 and Vice President of logistics at 
batesville in 2002.

Kevin c. bowen, 59, was appointed President of the K-Tron 
Process Group, following K-Tron’s acquisition on april 1, 2010. 
Prior to the acquisition of K-Tron, mr. bowen had served as 
Senior Vice President, Process Group, since July 2005 and as 
President and chief executive officer of K-Tron america, inc.  
(a subsidiary of K-Tron international, inc.) since march 1995.  
mr. bowen began his career with K-Tron in 1979, and has held a 
variety of other senior leadership positions with the company.

donald W. melchiorre, 62, was appointed President of the K-Tron 
Size reduction Group, following K-Tron’s acquisition on april 1, 
2010. Prior to the acquisition of K-Tron, mr. melchiorre had  
served as Senior Vice President, Size reduction Group, since may 
2006 and as President and chief executive officer of Pennsylvania 
crusher corporation (a subsidiary of K-Tron international, inc.) 

since october 2004. mr. melchiorre has approximately 24 years 
with K-Tron serving in a variety of senior management positions 
and roles.

John r. Zerkle, 56, was elected Senior Vice President, General 
counsel, and Secretary of Hillenbrand effective February 8, 
2008. most recently, mr. Zerkle had served as Vice President and 
General counsel of batesville since march 2004. From September 
2002 to February 2004, mr. Zerkle served as Vice President and 
General counsel of Forethought Financial Services, inc., then a 
subsidiary of Hill-rom. He also served as compliance officer  
for Forethought investment management, inc. Prior to joining 
Forethought, mr. Zerkle was in private practice for 20 years, 
where he focused his practice on corporate, securities, regulatory, 
and banking law matters.

Paul douglas Wilson, 58, was elected Senior Vice President, 
Human resources, of Hillenbrand effective march 14, 2008. 
most recently, mr. Wilson served as Vice President, Worldwide 
merger integration, for boston Scientific corporation, following 
the close of the merger between boston Scientific and Guidant 
corporation in 2006. mr. Wilson joined Guidant corporation in 
2002 and served as Vice President of Human resources. Prior to 
Guidant, mr. Wilson was President and a Principal of ronald 
blue & co., a privately held firm providing financial planning, 
investment management, tax planning, and philanthropic coun-
sel. mr. Wilson began his career with eli lilly and company, 
where he spent 20 years in a variety of increasingly senior execu-
tive human resource roles.

Hinesh b. Patel, 42, was elected Vice President, Strategy and 
business development, of Hillenbrand effective august 18, 2008. 
Prior to accepting his current position with Hillenbrand,  
mr. Patel served as director of Strategy and business develop-
ment for Honeywell international inc., a position he had held 
since april 2007. Prior to joining Honeywell international inc., 
mr. Patel held other management roles in business development, 
strategy, and operations with milliken & company, caspian 
networks inc., eaton corporation, and arthur d. little.

lukas Guenthardt, 52, was appointed Senior Vice President, 
corporate development and Secretary, of K-Tron international, 
inc., following K-Tron’s acquisition on april 1, 2010. Prior to the 
acquisition of K-Tron, mr. Guenthardt had served as Senior Vice 
President, corporate development, of K-Tron international, inc. 
since July 2005. Prior to that, he was Senior Vice President, 
Pneumatic conveying Group, and chief Strategy officer of  
K-Tron from February 2002 to July 2005; Senior Vice President, 
new businesses, and chief Strategy officer from June 2000 to 
February 2002. mr. Guenthardt has approximately 18 years with 
K-Tron serving in other management roles, including director of 
international research and development.
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Jan m. Santerre, 49, was elected Vice President, lean business, of 
Hillenbrand effective december 1, 2008. Prior to accepting her 
position with Hillenbrand, ms. Santerre served as Vice President 
of operations, Hydraulics Group, for Parker Hannifin corpora-
tion, a position she had held since april 2005. From 2003 to 
2005, ms. Santerre served as Parker Hannifin’s Vice President of 
lean enterprise and Quality, where she developed and deployed 
the Parker lean System. Prior to that, ms. Santerre was with 
delphi automotive Systems and General motors for 18 years with 
responsibilities in engineering, quality, and manufacturing, cul-
minating in executive operations roles.

Theodore S. Haddad, Jr., 46, was elected Vice President, 
controller and chief accounting officer of Hillenbrand on 
February 8, 2008. Prior to joining Hillenbrand, mr. Haddad had 
served as Senior manager in the audit and business advisory 
Services Group of Pricewaterhousecoopers llP since July 2002. 
Prior to that, mr. Haddad served as a Senior manager in the audit 
group of arthur andersen llP, having been with that firm since 
July 1991. mr. Haddad is a certified Public accountant and 
certified management accountant.

iTem 1a. riSK FacTorS

In this section of the Form 10-K, we describe the risks we believe are 
most important for you to think about when you consider investing in, 
selling, or owning our stock or publicly traded debt. This information 
should be assessed along with the other information we provide you in 
this Form 10-K. Like most companies, our business involves risks. The 
risks described below are not the only risks we face, but these are the 
ones we currently think have the potential to significantly affect stake-
holders in our Company if they were to develop adversely (due to size, 
volatility, or both). We exclude risks that we believe are inherent in 
all businesses broadly as a function of simply being “ in business.” 
Additional risks not currently known or considered immaterial by us 
at this time and thus not listed below could also result in adverse  
effects on our business. In the risk descriptions below, we have assigned 
the risks into categories to help you understand where they emanate 
from (e.g. the overall company or a specific segment).

riSK relaTed To our oVerall comPanY

Our growth strategy involves the potential for significant acquisitions, 
some of which may be outside our current industry. We may not be 
able to achieve some or all of the benefits that we expect to achieve 
from these acquisitions. If an acquisition were to perform unfavor-
ably, it could have an adverse impact on our value.

one component of our strategy contemplates our making acquisi-
tions. all acquisitions involve inherent uncertainties, some of 
which include, among other things, our ability to:

 •  successfully identify targets for acquisition,

 •  negotiate reasonable terms for any particular deal,

 •  properly perform due diligence and determine all the signifi-
cant risks associated with a particular acquisition,

 •  properly evaluate target company management capabilities, and

 •  successfully transition the acquired company into our busi-
ness and achieve the desired performance.

We also may acquire businesses with unknown or contingent lia-
bilities, including liabilities for failure to comply with potential 
industry or environmental regulations or tax contingencies. We 
have plans and procedures to conduct reviews of potential acquisi-
tion candidates for compliance with applicable regulations and 
laws prior to the acquisition and will also generally seek indemni-
fication from sellers covering these matters. despite these efforts, 
we may incur material liabilities for past activities of acquired 
businesses.

in the event that we acquire a business that operates outside of our 
current industries, we may not achieve the intended benefits of 
the acquisition and our business could be materially impacted.  
under such circumstances, management could be required to 
spend significant amounts of time and resources in the transition 
of the business of the acquired entity due to the lack of experience 
in the industry of the acquired business. in addition, any benefits 
we anticipate from application of our lean manufacturing and 
lean business expertise may not be fully realized. also, if we 
acquire a company that operates in an industry that is different 
from the ones in which we operate, our lack of experience with 
that company’s industry could have a material adverse impact on 
our ability to manage that business and realize the benefits of  
that acquisition.

Global market and economic conditions, including those related to 
the credit markets, could have a material adverse effect on our busi-
ness, financial condition, and results of operations.

The severity of the recent economic recession caused by the ongo-
ing worldwide financial and credit market disruptions have 
reduced the availability of credit generally necessary to fund eco-
nomic growth and activity, and there is not yet clear evidence to 
suggest that efforts undertaken by the various government entities 
to mitigate this recession will be successful.

a prolonged or double-dip recession could adversely affect our 
business in several ways. a continuation or worsening of the cur-
rent credit markets and economic conditions could adversely 
affect our customers’ ability to obtain sufficient credit or pay for 
our products within the terms of sale and, as a result, our reserves 
for doubtful accounts and receivable write-offs could increase.  
a prolonged recession could further intensify the competition 
among the manufacturers and distributors with whom we com-
pete for volume and market share, resulting in lower net revenues 
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due to steeper discounts and further product mix-down. if certain 
key or sole suppliers were to become capacity constrained or insol-
vent as a result of the global economic conditions, it could result 
in a reduction or interruption in supplies or a significant increase 
in the price of supplies. in addition, the substantial losses in the 
equity markets as a result of the recent recession can have an 
adverse effect on the assets of the company’s pension plans.  
a continuation of the volatility of interest rates and negative 
equity returns under current market conditions could require 
greater contributions to the defined benefit plans in the future.

Our sales abroad subject us to the risk of adverse foreign currency 
fluctuations which could negatively impact our results of operations.

We derived approximately 11.6%, 6.6% and 7.2% of our revenues 
from outside the u.S. for the years ended September 30, 2010, 
2009, and 2008, respectively. Historically, these revenues have 
primarily been in canada. With our recent acquisition of K-Tron 
in april 2010, significant international sales are now coming  
from europe, the middle east, and asia. as a result, we believe 
our exposure to f luctuations in exchange rates will increase  
proportionately and can have an unfavorable effect on our operat-
ing results, depending on the extent of that volatility. This expo-
sure is most acute where we enter into sales contracts in currencies 
different from the currency in which we incur our costs (particu-
larly the euro, where our costs are incurred in Swiss francs). also, 
since the results of operations of our foreign subsidiaries are trans-
lated into u.S. dollars, f luctuations in the exchange rate of the 
u.S. dollar versus each of the Swiss franc, the euro, the british 
pound sterling, the canadian dollar, and the Swedish krona will 
affect the u.S. dollar amount of their operating results. Finally, 
we are exposed to foreign currency transactional gains and losses 
caused by the “marking to market” of balance sheet items of our 
foreign subsidiaries, which are measured in other currencies, par-
ticularly the euro on the balance sheet of our Swiss subsidiary.

Increased prices for, or unavailability of, raw materials used in our 
products could adversely affect profitability. In particular, our results 
of operations continue to be adversely affected by volatile prices for 
steel, red metals (i.e. copper and bronze), and fuel.

our profitability is affected by the prices of the raw materials used 
in the manufacture of our products. These prices fluctuate based 
on a number of factors beyond our control, including changes in 
supply and demand, general economic conditions, labor costs, 
fuel-related delivery costs, competition, import duties, tariffs, cur-
rency exchange rates, and, in some cases, government regulation. 
Significant increases in the prices of raw materials that cannot be 
recovered through increases in the price of our products could 
adversely affect our results of operations and cash flows.

We cannot guarantee that the prices we are paying for commodi-
ties today will continue in the future or that the marketplace will 
continue to support current prices for our products or that such 
prices can be adjusted to fully offset such commodity price 
increases in the future. any increases in prices resulting from a 
tightening supply of these or other commodities or fuel could 
adversely affect our profitability. We generally do not engage in 
hedging transactions with respect to raw material purchases, but 
we do enter into some fixed price supply contracts.

our dependency upon regular deliveries of supplies from particu-
lar suppliers means that interruptions or stoppages in such deliver-
ies could adversely affect our operations until arrangements with 
alternate suppliers could be made. Several of the raw materials 
used in the manufacture of our products currently are procured 
from only a single source. if any of these sole-source suppliers 
were unable to deliver these materials for an extended period of 
time as a result of financial difficulties, catastrophic events affect-
ing their facilities, or other factors, or if we were unable to nego-
tiate acceptable terms for the supply of materials with these 
sole-source suppliers, our business could suffer. We may not be 
able to find acceptable alternatives, and any such alternatives 
could result in increased costs. extended unavailability of a neces-
sary raw material could cause us to cease manufacturing one or 
more products for a period of time.

Collection risk associated with our note receivable from Forethought 
Financial Group, Inc. (“Forethought”) could have a material adverse 
impact on our earnings.

We hold a significant non-operating asset in the form of a note 
receivable (and related interest receivable) from Forethought. This 
asset was transferred to us at the time of separation of Hillenbrand 
industries, inc. into two separate publicly traded companies, 
Hillenbrand and Hill-rom. as of September 30, 2010, this note 
receivable had an aggregate carrying value of $144.8 million. This 
note receivable primarily represents seller-provided financing  
to Forethought, the entity that purchased Hill-rom’s former 
Forethought Financial Services, inc. subsidiary. Forethought, 
through its subsidiaries, provides insurance and financial solu-
tions for families managing retirement and end-of-life needs.

Should Forethought fail to perform consistently with the original 
expectations set forth by Forethought or underperform to an 
extent that it cannot meet its financial obligations, the note could 
become impaired, causing an impairment charge that could result 
in a material adverse impact on our financial condition and results 
of operations. Payments under the note are due in annual $10 mil-
lion installments beginning on July 1, 2010, through July 1, 2014, 
at which time the balance of the note is due and payable (unless 
otherwise deferred in accordance with its terms).
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Volatility in our investment portfolio could negatively impact earn-
ings as their performance is tied to market swings. Also, if we are 
unable to convert our portfolio of auction rate securities to cash at 
reasonable terms, our earnings could be adversely affected.

in connection with our separation from Hill-rom, ownership in 
certain investments in private partnerships were transferred to us 
that had an aggregate carrying value of $15.2 million as of 
September 30, 2010. Volatility in that investment portfolio  
negatively or positively impacts earnings. These investments could 
be adversely affected by general economic conditions, changes in 
interest rates, equity market swings, and other factors, resulting in 
an adverse impact on our results from operations.

in addition, we received a portfolio of auction rate securities 
(“arS”) (consisting of highly rated tax-exempt state and munici-
pal securities, the majority of which are collateralized by student 
loans guaranteed by the u.S. government under the Federal 
Family education loan Program) that Hill-rom was not able to 
liquidate prior to the separation due to the market conditions and 
auction failures. The arS had an aggregate carrying value of 
$11.9 million as of September 30, 2010. if conditions do not 
improve or worsen, we may not be able to convert these securities 
to cash for the foreseeable future and these assets could become 
impaired and could adversely affect our earnings.

We are involved on an ongoing basis in claims, lawsuits, and govern-
mental proceedings relating to our operations, including environmen-
tal, antitrust, patent infringement, business practices, commercial 
transactions, and other matters.

The ultimate outcome of these claims, lawsuits, and governmental 
proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, but could have  
a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of 
operations, and cash flow. We are also involved in other possible 
claims, including product and general liability, workers compen-
sation, auto liability, and employment-related matters. While we 
maintain insurance for certain of these exposures, the policies  
in place are high-deductible policies resulting in our assuming 
exposure for a layer of coverage with respect to such claims. For a 
more detailed discussion of our asserted claims, see note 12 to 
our consolidated financial statements included in Part ii, item 8 
of this Form 10-K.

Upon closing of the K-Tron acquisition, we increased our debt obliga-
tions significantly. This could adversely affect our Company and limit 
our ability to respond to changes in our businesses.

as of September 30, 2010, our outstanding debt was $403.4  
million. This level of debt could have important consequences  
to our businesses. For example:

 •  we may be more vulnerable to general adverse economic and 
industry conditions because we have significantly lower bor-
rowing capacity;

 •  we will be required to dedicate a larger portion of our cash 
f low from operations to payments on our indebtedness, 
thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow for other 
purposes, including business development efforts and 
acquisitions;

 •  we will continue to be exposed to the risk of increased inter-
est rates because a portion of our borrowings is at variable 
rates of interest; and

 •  our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our 
businesses and the industries in which they operate may be 
more limited, thereby placing us at a competitive disadvan-
tage compared to competitors that have less indebtedness.

Risk Related to Batesville

Continued fluctuations in mortality rates and increased cremations 
may adversely affect, as they have in recent years, the sales volume of 
our burial caskets.

The life expectancy of u.S. citizens has increased steadily since 
the 1950s and is expected to continue to do so for the foreseeable 
future. as the population of the u.S. continues to age, we antici-
pate the number of deaths in the u.S. will be relatively flat until 
the number of deaths increase due to aging baby boomers.

cremations as a percentage of total u.S. deaths have increased 
steadily since the 1960s and are also expected to continue to 
increase for the foreseeable future. Therefore, the number of  
cremations in the u.S. is gradually and steadily increasing, result-
ing in a contraction in the demand for burial caskets. This was a 
contributing factor to lower burial casket sales volumes for 
batesville in each of the last three fiscal years. We expect these 
trends to continue into the foreseeable future, and its burial casket 
volumes will likely continue to be negatively impacted by these 
market conditions.

Finally, the number of deaths can vary over short periods of time 
and among different geographical areas, due to a variety of other 
factors, including the timing and severity of seasonal outbreaks of 
illnesses such as pneumonia and influenza. Such variations could 
cause the sale of burial caskets to fluctuate from quarter to quarter 
and year to year.

Batesville’s business is significantly dependent on several major con-
tracts with large national funeral providers. The relationships with 
these customers pose several risks.

batesville has contracts with a number of large national funeral 
home customers that comprise a sizeable portion of its overall sales 
volume. The largest contract is with Service corporation 
international, which accounted for approximately 13% of 
batesville’s 2010 consolidated net revenues (and was their only 
customer over 10%). any decision by large national funeral home 
customers to discontinue purchases from batesville could have  
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a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of  
operations, and cash f lows. also, while contracts with large 
national funeral service providers give batesville important access 
to many of the largest purchasers of funeral service products, they 
may obligate batesville to sell products at contracted prices for 
extended periods of time, therefore limiting batesville’s ability, in 
the short term, to raise prices in response to significant increases 
in raw material prices or other factors.

Batesville is facing competition from a number of non-traditional 
sources and caskets manufactured abroad and imported into North 
America.

non-traditional funeral product providers could present more of a 
competitive threat to batesville and its sales channel than is cur-
rently anticipated. large discount retailers (such as Wal-mart and 
costco), casket stores, and internet casket retailers represent these 
types of competitors. also, there are several manufacturers located 
in china producing caskets for sale into the u.S. While sales from 
these providers are currently a small percentage of total casket 
sales in the u.S. (we believe approximately 3%), it is not possible 
to quantify the financial impact that these competitors will  
have on batesville in the future. These competitors and any new 
entrants into the market may drive pricing and other competitive 
actions in an industry that already has nearly twice the necessary 
domestic production capacity. Such competitive actions could 
have a negative impact on our results of operations and cash flows.

Despite our recent successes in court, the antitrust litigation in which 
we are a defendant has not yet been resolved, and an adverse outcome 
in that matter could have a material adverse effect on our results of 
operations, financial position, and liquidity.

as discussed in note 12 to our consolidated financial statements 
included in Part ii, item 8 of this Form 10-K, we are a defendant 
in a purported antitrust class action lawsuit. The Federal district 
court denied class certification in that matter, and the Fifth 
circuit denied the plaintiffs’ appeal petition. Further requests for 
reconsideration by the plaintiffs have also been denied. despite 
these favorable rulings, the plaintiffs pursued their individual 
injunctive and damage claims. The district court issued a final 
judgment dismissing the case, but the plaintiffs have filed an 
appeal, which could include an appeal of the district court’s 
order denying class certification. if they succeed in reversing the 
district court order denying class certification and a class is cer-
tified in the action filed against Hill-rom and batesville and if 
the plaintiffs prevail at a trial of the class action, the damages 
awarded to the plaintiffs, which would be trebled as a matter of 
law, could have a significant material adverse effect on our results 
of operations, financial condition, and/or liquidity. in antitrust  

actions, the plaintiffs may elect to enforce any judgment against 
any or all of the codefendants, who have no statutory contribution 
rights against each other.

A substantial portion of Batesville’s workforce is unionized, and it 
could face labor disruptions that would interfere with operations.

approximately 33% of batesville’s employees as part of our logis-
tics and manufacturing operations work under collective bar-
gaining agreements. although batesville has not experienced  
any significant work stoppages in the past 20 years as a result of 
labor disagreements, we cannot ensure that such a stoppage will 
not occur in the future. inability to negotiate satisfactory new 
agreements or a labor disturbance at one of the principal facilities 
could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

Risk Related to K-Tron

A significant portion of our investment in K-Tron includes goodwill 
and intangible assets that are subject to periodic impairment evalua-
tions. An impairment loss on these could have a material adverse 
impact on our financial condition and results of operations.

We acquired $404.5 million of intangible assets with the acquisi-
tion of K-Tron, of which $236.4 million was identified as either 
goodwill or indefinite-lived assets. as required by current account-
ing standards, we review intangible assets for impairment either 
annually or whenever changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value may not be recoverable.

during the early years of an acquisition, the risk of impairment to 
goodwill and non-amortizing intangible assets is naturally higher. 
This is because the fair values of these assets align very closely 
with what we recently paid to acquire the reporting units to which 
these assets are assigned. This means the difference between the 
carrying value of the reporting unit and its fair value (typically 
referred to as “headroom”) is naturally smaller at the time of 
acquisition. until this headroom grows over time (due to business 
growth or lower carrying value of the reporting unit due to natu-
ral amortization, etc.), a relatively small decrease in reporting unit 
fair value can trigger an impairment. That fair value is affected by 
actual business performance but is also determined by the market 
(usually reflected in the value of our common stock). as a conse-
quence, even with favorable business performance, the market 
alone can drive an impairment condition if general business valu-
ations decline enough. When impairment charges are triggered, 
they tend to be material due to the sheer size of the assets involved. 
our next annual test of these assets for K-Tron is scheduled for 
april 1, 2011.
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K-Tron operates in cyclical industries.

as an industrial capital goods supplier, many of the markets for 
K-Tron’s products are cyclical. during periods of economic expan-
sion, when capital spending normally increases, K-Tron generally 
benefits from greater demand for its products. during periods of 
economic contraction, when capital spending normally decreases, 
K-Tron generally is adversely affected by declining demand for  
its products, and it may be subject to uncollectible receivables 
from customers who become insolvent. also, even when there is 
economic expansion or increased demand for our equipment, 
there can be no assurance that this economic expansion or 
increased demand will be sustained in the markets in which we 
sell its products.

K-Tron derives a substantial portion of its sales from the electric gen-
erating and coal mining industries. Any downturn in the demand for 
electricity or downturn in or disruption to the coal industry as a result 
of increased environmental laws and regulations could have a mate-
rial adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results  
of operations.

K-Tron sells size reduction equipment to the electric generating 
and coal mining industries, and consequently a significant por-
tion of its sales are tied to the use of coal as a means of generating 
electricity. The demand by electric generating utilities for coal is 
dependent upon the availability and cost in any given location of 
alternative sources of energy, such as natural gas, oil, or nuclear 
power. as a result, any downturn in the demand for electricity,  
or downturn in or disruption to the coal industry (upon which 
electric utilities are dependent), could have a material adverse 
effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operation.

Federal, state, and local laws and regulations extensively regulate 
the amount of sulfur dioxide, particulate matter, nitrogen oxides, 
mercury, and other compounds emitted into the air from electric 
power plants, whose owners are principal customers of our size 
reduction business. These laws and regulations can require signifi-
cant emission control expenditures for many coal-fired power 
plants, and various new and proposed laws and regulations may 
require further emission reductions and associated emission con-
trol expenditures. There is also continuing pressure on state and 
federal regulators to impose limits on carbon dioxide emissions 
from coal-fired power plants. as a result, the cost of compliance 
could cause electric utilities to abandon the process of using coal 
to generate electricity altogether due to commercial impracticabil-
ity and decreasing the demand for our products.

Risk Related to Our Common Stock

Provisions in our Articles of Incorporation and By-laws and of 
Indiana law may prevent or delay an acquisition of our company, 
which could decrease the trading price of our common stock.

our articles of incorporation, by-laws, and indiana law contain 
provisions that could delay or prevent changes in control if our 
board of directors determines that such changes in control are 
not in the best interests of our shareholders. While these provi-
sions have the effect of encouraging persons seeking to acquire 
control of our company to negotiate with our board of directors, 
they could enable our board of directors to hinder or frustrate a 
transaction that some, or a majority, of our shareholders might 
believe to be in their best interests.

These provisions include, among others:

 •  the division of our board of directors into three classes with 
staggered terms;

 •  the inability of our shareholders to act by less than unani-
mous written consent;

 •  rules regarding how shareholders may present proposals or 
nominate directors for election at shareholder meetings;

 •  the right of our board of directors to issue preferred stock 
without shareholder approval; and

 •  limitations on the right of shareholders to remove directors.

indiana law also imposes some restrictions on mergers and other 
business combinations between us and any holder of 10% or more 
of our outstanding common stock, as well as on certain “control 
share” acquisitions.

We believe these provisions are important for a public company 
and protect our shareholders from coercive or otherwise poten-
tially unfair takeover tactics by requiring potential acquirers to 
negotiate with our board of directors and by providing our board 
of directors with more time to assess any acquisition proposal. 
These provisions are not intended to make our company immune 
from takeovers. However, these provisions apply even if the offer 
may be considered beneficial by some shareholders and could 
delay or prevent an acquisition that our board of directors deter-
mines is not in the best interests of our shareholders.

iTem 1b. unreSolVed STaFF commenTS

We have not received any comments from the staff of the Sec 
regarding our periodic or current reports that remain unresolved.
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iTem 2. ProPerTieS

The principal properties used in our operations are listed below. all facilities are suitable for their intended purpose, are being efficiently 
utilized, and are believed to provide adequate capacity to meet demand for the next several years.

location owned/leased entity description Primary use

batesville, indiana owned Hillenbrand 
and batesville

office facilities
manufacturing plants

administration
manufacturing metal caskets

manchester, Tennessee owned batesville manufacturing plant manufacturing metal caskets

Vicksburg, mississippi owned batesville Kiln drying and lumber 
cutting plant

drying and dimensioning of lumber

batesville, mississippi owned batesville manufacturing plant manufacturing of hardwood caskets

chihuahua, mexico leased batesville manufacturing plant manufacturing of veneer hardwood and hardwood 
caskets

mexico city, mexico owned batesville manufacturing plant manufacturing of metal caskets, primarily for sale 
outside the u.S.

Pitman, new Jersey owned K-tron office facilities
manufacturing plant

administration
manufacturing of material handling equipment

Salina, Kansas owned K-tron office facilities
manufacturing plant

administration
manufacturing of material handling equipment

niederlenz, Switzerland owned K-tron office facilities
manufacturing plant

administration
manufacturing of material handling equipment

Wuxi, china leased K-tron manufacturing plant manufacturing of material handling equipment

broomall, Pennsylvania leased K-tron office facilities
Testing facility

administration
Testing facility

cuyahoga Falls, ohio leased K-tron manufacturing plant manufacturing of material handling equipment

belleville, illinois owned K-tron office facilities
manufacturing plant

administration
manufacturing of material handling equipment

Woodruff, South carolina owned K-tron office facilities
manufacturing plant

administration
manufacturing of material handling equipment

in addition to the foregoing, we lease or own a number of other 
warehouse distribution centers, service centers, and sales offices 
throughout the u.S., united Kingdom, mexico, canada, Sweden, 
France, Germany, and Singapore.

iTem 3. leGal ProceedinGS

Antitrust Litigation

in 2005 the Funeral consumers alliance, inc. (“Fca”) and a 
number of individual consumer casket purchasers filed a pur-
ported class action antitrust lawsuit on behalf of certain consumer 
purchasers of batesville® caskets against the company and our 
former parent company, Hillenbrand industries, inc., now Hill-
rom Holdings, inc. (“Hill-rom”), and three national funeral 
home businesses (the “Fca action”). a similar purported anti-
trust class action lawsuit was later filed by Pioneer Valley casket 
co. and several so-called “independent casket distributors” on 
behalf of casket sellers who were unaffiliated with any licensed 

funeral home (the “Pioneer Valley action”). class certification 
hearings in the Fca action and the Pioneer Valley action were 
held before a magistrate Judge in early december 2006. on 
november 24, 2008, the magistrate Judge recommended that the 
plaintiffs’ motions for class certification in both cases be denied. 
on march 26, 2009, the district Judge adopted the memoranda 
and recommendations of the magistrate Judge and denied class 
certification in both cases. on april 9, 2009, the plaintiffs in the 
Fca case filed a petition with the u.S. court of appeals for the 
Fifth circuit for leave to file an appeal of the court’s order deny-
ing class certification. on June 19, 2009, a three-judge panel of 
the Fifth circuit denied the Fca plaintiffs’ petition. on July 9, 
2009, the Fca plaintiffs filed a request for reconsideration of the 
denial of their petition. on July 29, 2009, a three-judge panel of 
the Fifth circuit denied the Fca plaintiffs’ motion for reconsid-
eration and their alternative motion for leave to file a petition for 
rehearing en banc (by all of the judges sitting on the Fifth circuit 
court of appeals).
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The Pioneer Valley plaintiffs did not appeal the district court’s 
order denying class certification, and on april 29, 2009, pursuant 
to a stipulation among the parties, the district court dismissed 
the Pioneer Valley action with prejudice (i.e., Pioneer Valley can-
not appeal or otherwise reinstitute the case). neither the company 
nor Hill-rom provided any payment or consideration for the 
plaintiffs to dismiss this case, other than agreeing to bear their 
own costs, rather than pursuing plaintiffs for costs.

Plaintiffs in the Fca action have generally sought monetary 
damages on behalf of a class, trebling of any such damages that 
may be awarded, recovery of attorneys’ fees and costs, and injunc-
tive relief. The plaintiffs in the Fca action filed a report indicat-
ing that they were seeking damages ranging from approximately 
$947.0 million to approximately $1.46 billion before trebling on 
behalf of the purported class of consumers they seek to represent, 
based on approximately one million casket purchases by the pur-
ported class members.

because batesville continues to adhere to its long-standing policy 
of selling batesville caskets only to licensed funeral homes, a pol-
icy that it continues to believe is appropriate and lawful, if the 
case goes to trial the plaintiffs are likely to claim additional 
alleged damages for periods between their reports and the time of 
trial. at this point, it is not possible to estimate the amount of any 
additional alleged damage claims that they may make. The defen-
dants are vigorously contesting both liability and the plaintiffs’ 
damages theories.

despite the July 29, 2009 ruling denying class certification, the 
Fca plaintiffs continued to pursue their individual injunctive 
and damages claims. Their individual damages claims are limited 
to the alleged overcharges on the plaintiffs’ individual casket  
purchases (the complaint currently alleges a total of eight casket 
purchases by the individual plaintiffs), which would be trebled, 
plus reasonable attorneys fees and costs.

in June 2010, co-defendant Stewart enterprises, inc. announced a 
settlement with the plaintiffs. on July 16, 2010, the district 
court granted the defendants’ remaining motion for leave to file  
a motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. on 
august 2, 2010, the district court heard argument on the defen-
dants’ motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. 
The court ordered full dismissal of the lawsuit on September 24, 
2010, concluding that “plaintiffs shall take nothing by their suit.” 
in light of this decision, defendants filed a motion requesting that  
the court order plaintiffs to pay costs incurred by batesville and  
Sci in the approximate amount of $0.7 million. The court 
denied this motion on october 22, 2010.

Plaintiffs had 30 days to declare their intent to appeal the dis-
missal of their lawsuit, and they did so by way of a notice of 
appeal filed on october 19, 2010. Plaintiffs’ notice indicates that 
they intend to appeal both the court’s final judgment of dismissal 

entered on September 24, 2010 and the court’s order denying 
class certification entered on march 26, 2009. The appeal will be 
to the u.S. court of appeals for the Fifth circuit.

over the next several months, the record will be compiled for 
appeal and extensive briefing will occur. Plaintiffs’ brief appealing 
the denial of the two orders must be filed within 40 days after the 
district court record is certified. although firm dates are not yet 
known, the plaintiffs’ brief will likely be due sometime in January 
2011, with defendants’ brief due in February 2011, and a reply 
brief from plaintiffs due in march 2011. once all briefs are  
submitted, the court of appeals may hear oral argument by the 
parties’ attorneys and then issue its ruling as to whether or not  
the district court’s decisions should be reversed or affirmed.  
it should be noted, however, that the above appellate schedule is 
only approximate and is subject to change dependent upon a 
number of factors, including the granting of any extensions  
of time and the relative congestion of the docket of the court  
of appeals.

if plaintiffs succeed in overturning the judgment, reversing the 
district court order denying class certification, and a class is sub-
sequently certified in the Fca action filed against Hill-rom and 
batesville, and if the plaintiffs prevail at a trial of the class action, 
the damages awarded to the plaintiffs, which would be trebled as 
a matter of law, could have a significant material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition and/or liquidity. in 
antitrust actions such as the Fca action the plaintiffs may elect 
to enforce any judgment against any or all of the codefendants, 
who have no statutory contribution rights against each other. We 
and Hill-rom have entered into a judgment sharing agreement 
that apportions the costs and any potential liabilities associated 
with this litigation between us and Hill-rom. See note 6 to our 
annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2010.

as of october, 2010, we have incurred approximately $27.5 mil-
lion in cumulative legal and related costs associated with the Fca 
matter, since its inception.

General

We are involved on an ongoing basis in claims and lawsuits relat-
ing to our operations, including environmental, antitrust, patent 
infringement, business practices, commercial transactions, and 
other matters. The ultimate outcome of these lawsuits cannot be  
predicted with certainty. an estimated loss from these contingen-
cies is recognized when we believe it is probable that a loss has 
been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably esti-
mated. However, it is difficult to measure the actual loss that 
might be incurred related to litigation. The ultimate outcome of 
these lawsuits could have a material adverse effect on our financial 
condition, results of operations, and cash flow.
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legal fees associated with claims and lawsuits are generally 
expensed as incurred. upon recognition of an estimated loss 
resulting from a settlement, an estimate of legal fees to complete 
the settlement is also included in the amount of the loss 
recognized.

We are also involved in other possible claims, including product 
and general liability, workers compensation, auto liability, and 
employment related matters. claims other than employment and 
related matters have deductibles and self-insured retentions rang-
ing from $0.5 million to $1.0 million per occurrence or per claim, 
depending upon the type of coverage and policy period. outside 
insurance companies and third-party claims administrators estab-
lish individual claim reserves, and an independent outside actuary 
provides estimates of ultimate projected losses, including incurred 
but not reported claims, which are used to establish reserves for 
losses. claim reserves for employment related matters are estab-
lished based upon advice from internal and external counsel and 
historical settlement information for claims and related fees, when 
such amounts are considered probable of payment.

The recorded amounts represent our best estimate of the costs we 
will incur in relation to such exposures, but it is virtually certain 
that actual costs will differ from those estimates.

iTem 4. [remoVed and reSerVed]

ParT ii

iTem 5. marKeT For reGiSTranT’S common 
eQuiTY, relaTed STocKHolder maTTerS, and 
iSSuer PurcHaSeS oF eQuiTY SecuriTieS

Market Information

Hillenbrand, inc.’s common stock is traded on the new York 
Stock exchange under the ticker symbol “Hi.” The closing price 
of our common stock on the new York Stock exchange on  
november 15, 2010, was $20.00 The following table reflects the 
quarterly range of high and low selling prices of our common 
stock for fiscal 2010 and 2009.

2010 2009

High Low High low

First quarter $21.04 $18.25 $20.88 $13.96
Second quarter $22.27 $17.85 $19.39 $14.68
Third quarter $25.77 $20.85 $18.18 $15.24
Fourth quarter $22.57 $19.03 $20.97 $16.70

Holders

on november 15, 2010, we had approximately 2,900 shareholders 
of record.

Dividends

The following table reflects historical dividend information for 
the periods presented.

2010 2009 2008

First quarter $0.1875 $0.1850 $ n/a*
Second quarter $0.1875 $0.1850 $ n/a*
Third quarter $0.1875 $0.1850 $ 0.1825
Fourth quarter $0.1875 $0.1850 $ 0.1825

* on april 30, 2008, our board of directors declared our first dividend pay-
ment of $0.1825 per share, which was paid on June 30, 2008.

although we have paid cash dividends since our inception on 
april 1, 2008, the declaration and payment of cash dividends is at 
the sole discretion of our board of directors and depends upon 
many factors, including our financial condition, earnings poten-
tial, capital requirements, alternative uses of cash, covenants asso-
ciated with debt obligations, legal requirements, and other factors 
deemed relevant by the board of directors.

in accordance with the covenants contained in our distribution 
agreement with Hill-rom, as amended, we are restricted from 
paying regular quarterly dividends in excess of $0.1875 per share 
or from incurring indebtedness to pay an extraordinary cash divi-
dend without prior written approval of Hill-rom until the occur-
rence of an agreed Termination event (as defined in the 
distribution agreement) with Hill-rom has occurred. For a more 
detailed discussion, see the section entitled “distribution 
agreement” within note 6 to our consolidated financial state-
ments included in Part ii, item 8 of this Form 10-K. We currently 
expect that comparable quarterly cash dividends will continue to 
be paid in the future.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

on July 24, 2008, our board of directors approved the repur-
chase of up to $100 million of common stock. The program has 
no expiration date, but may be terminated by the board of  
directors at any time. as of September 30, 2010, we had repur-
chased approximately 1.0 million shares for $18.7 million, which 
are being held as treasury stock until reissued. There were no 
repurchases of shares in fiscal 2010. during fiscal 2010, 0.1 mil-
lion shares were issued from treasury under our various stock 
compensation programs. at September 30, 2010, $81.3 million 
are available for repurchase under this plan. additional informa-
tion related to our equity compensation programs is included in 
note 11 to our consolidated financial statements included in Part 
ii, item 8 of this Form 10-K.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following graph compares the return on Hillenbrand common stock with that of Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock index (“S&P 500 
index”) and the Standard & Poor’s 600 Small cap Stock index (“S&P 600 index”) for the period from march 20, 2008, the date  
our common stock began trading on the new York Stock exchange, to november 15, 2010. The graph assumes that the value of  
the investment in our common stock, the S&P 500 index, and S&P 600 index was $100 on march 20, 2008 and that all dividends 
were reinvested.
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company name/index base 2008 2009 2010
November 15, 

2010

Hillenbrand, inc. $100 $112 $114 $122 $113
S&P 500 index $100 $ 88 $ 80 $ 86 $ 90
S&P 600 Small cap index* $100 $100 $ 88 $ 99 $106

* The S&P 600 Small cap index consists of companies with market capitalizations between $250 million and $1.2 billion. We are included within this index.
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iTem 6. SelecTed Financial daTa

Selected historical financial data as of and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006 to 2010, is derived from our audited consoli-
dated financial statements for Hillenbrand, inc. and its subsidiaries and is not necessarily indicative of results to be expected in the 
future. The historical financial information related to the periods prior to the separation on march 31, 2008, included herein, does not 
necessarily reflect the financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows that we would have achieved as a separate, publicly traded 
company during the periods presented or those that we will achieve in the future.

The selected financial data should be read together with Part ii, item 7, management’s discussion and analysis of Financial condition 
and results of operations and Part ii, item 8, Financial Statements and Supplemental data included in this Form 10-K.

The following table presents comparative consolidated financial data of Hillenbrand, inc. for each of the last five years ended  
September 30 (amounts in millions, except per share data):

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

net revenues $ 749.2 $ 649.1 $ 678.1 $ 667.2 $ 674.6
Gross profit $ 313.3 $ 274.4 $ 280.5 $ 278.6 $ 282.7
operating profit $ 137.9 $ 155.0 $ 149.6 $ 155.6 $ 177.4
net income $ 92.3 $ 102.3 $ 93.2 $ 99.5 $ 113.2
net income per common share $ 1.49 $ 1.66 $ 1.49 $ 1.59 $ 1.81
cash dividends declared per share* $ 0.75 $ 0.74 $ 0.365 $ — $ —
Total assets $ 1,052.1 $ 561.1 $ 545.3 $ 316.6 $ 329.4
long-term obligations $ 562.2 $ 122.2 $ 70.9 $ 59.9 $ 59.9
cash flow provided by operating activities $ 118.2 $ 123.2 $ 101.8 $ 127.3 $ 124.6
cash flow used in investing activities $ (348.7) $ (5.3) $ (4.2) $ (20.1) $ (15.3)
cash flow provided by (used in) financing activities $ 289.8 $ (97.4) $ (94.4) $ (103.5) $ (107.0)
capital expenditures $ 16.3 $ 10.0 $ 10.0 $ 15.6 $ 18.8
depreciation and amortization $ 28.2 $ 18.5 $ 19.0 $ 18.5 $ 17.7
* our first dividend as a stand-alone public company was paid on June 30, 2008. accordingly, there are no dividends reported for the first two quarters of fiscal 
year 2008 or the prior fiscal years 2007 and 2006.

iTem 7. manaGemenT’S diScuSSion and analYSiS 
oF Financial condiTion and reSulTS oF 
oPeraTionS

Overview

in this section of the Form 10-K, entitled “management’s 
discussion and analysis of Financial condition and results of 
operations,” we attempt to give you a look at our company 
“through the eyes of management” so that you can assess the 
financial condition and results of operations of our company. 
The discussion that follows should give you information that will 
help you understand our business and its performance. We intend 
for the discussion to be clear and to explain the drivers of our 
results so that you can assess the quality of our earnings and the 
predictability of our future results. discussion and analysis of our  

financial condition and operating results includes Hillenbrand, 
inc. (“Hillenbrand”) and those of its operating segments, 
batesville Services, inc. (“batesville”) and K-Tron international, 
inc. (“K-Tron”), together with their wholly owned subsidiaries.

Results of Operations

The consolidated operating results of our company are included 
in the selected financial data in Part ii, item 6 of this Form 10-K. 
We have disaggregated the relevant operating information into 
our two reporting segments, batesville and K-Tron, along with 
our corporate operations. See note 15 to our consolidated finan-
cial statements included in Part ii, item 8 of this Form 10-K for a 
reconciliation of the financial information below to our consoli-
dated financial results.
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The sections that follow present comparative operating results for batesville, K-Tron, and our corporate operations. We also discuss 
changes in non-operating expenses and income, along with our income tax provision, in further detail below.

batesville results Fiscal Year ended September 30,

2010 2009 2008

(amounts in millions) Amount
% of 

Revenue amount
% of 

revenue amount
% of 

revenue

revenue $640.3 100.0 $649.1 100.0 $678.1 100.0
Gross profit  277.7  43.4  274.4  42.3  280.5  41.4
operating expenses  102.6  16.0   95.9  14.8   96.7  14.3
operating income  175.1  27.3  178.5  27.5  183.8  27.1
depreciation and amortization   17.6   2.7   17.6   2.7   18.6   2.7

Batesville — Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2010, Compared to 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Revenue. batesville’s net revenues for the year were down from the 
same period last year, decreasing $8.8 million or 1.4%. burial 
unit volume decreased 2.5% or $15.0 million compared to the 
same period last year and was the primary contributor to the 
reduction in net revenue, although improved volume on non-
burial products helped limit the impact. We believe the volume 
decrease is attributable to a lower number of reported deaths year-
over-year and increased cremation rates. offsetting this impact 
was a modest increase in average selling price that contributed 
$1.1 million to revenue. We believe that batesville’s merchandis-
ing initiatives and new product launches helped improve average 
selling prices and slow the downward trend in product mix, espe-
cially in customer locations that used the batesville merchandis-
ing system. Finally, batesville also experienced the favorable 
impact of currency f luctuations during the year as it benefited 
from a strengthening canadian dollar. This resulted in increased 
revenue of $5.1 million over the prior year. We can’t predict how 
currency rates will move and they may either help or hurt our 
results in the future.

Gross Profit. batesville’s gross profit for the year was up from the 
same period last year, increasing $3.3 million or 1.2%. in addition 
to the impacts noted above, cost of goods sold decreased $12.1 
million. in batesville’s manufacturing operations, costs decreased 
$9.2 million, driven by a $4.1 million decrease due to lower vol-
ume and an $8.9 million decrease due to lower commodity costs. 
although full year commodity prices have been favorable overall, 
more recently batesville has been paying more for commodities as 
compared to levels at September 30, 2009. These favorable effects 
were partially offset by $3.8 million of cost increases attributable 
to a number of other categories across manufacturing operations. 
Within its distribution operations, batesville generated $2.9 mil-
lion in cost efficiencies associated with lower personnel, benefit 
costs, and outside carrier costs. The effects of higher fuel rates 
were evenly offset by $1.4 million of lower costs across batesville’s 
remaining distribution related cost categories. We are continuing 
to optimize our cost structure utilizing lean business principles.

Operating Expenses. batesville operating expenses increased $6.7 
million or 7.0% for the year as compared to the same period in  
the prior year. The primary drivers of the cost increases were  
$5.5 million related to variable compensation and pension, $2.8 
million due to higher legal fees related to antitrust litigation, $2.4 
million of additional spending on new business initiatives, and 
$0.7 million spread over to a number of other components of 
batesville’s operating expenses.

during the three months ended december 31, 2009, it was dis-
covered that batesville over-remitted sales tax in certain jurisdic-
tions and, as a result, recorded a $4.1 million sales tax receivable 
related to these overpayments. in the quarter ended September 
30, 2010, batesville recognized an additional recovery of $0.6 
million related to these over payments, the effect of which lowered 
operating expenses compared to the same three month period in 
the prior year.

Batesville — Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009, Compared to 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Revenue. batesville’s net revenues for fiscal 2009 were down from 
the same period in fiscal 2008, decreasing $29.0 million or 4.3%. 
burial unit volume decreased 6.5% or $45.8 million compared to 
the same period in fiscal 2008 and was the primary contributor to 
the reduction in net revenue. We believe this volume decrease was 
attributable to a lower number of reported deaths year-over-year, 
increased cremation rates, and aggressive price competition. We 
suspect that higher cremation rates were fueled by the onset of the 
economic recession which in turn caused the aggressive price 
competition for the remaining volume. offsetting this impact was 
an increase in average selling price that contributed $24.5 million 
to revenue. Finally, during fiscal 2009, the unfavorable impact  
of currency f luctuations from a stronger u.S. dollar, mainly  
compared to the canadian dollar resulted in decreased revenue of 
$7.7 million from the prior year.
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Gross Profit. batesville’s gross profit for the year was down from 
the same period last year, decreasing $6.1 million or 2.2%. in 
addition to the revenue impacts noted above, cost of goods sold 
decreased $22.9 million. in batesville’s manufacturing operations, 
$14.5 million of lower costs were due to the unfavorable impact of 
lower volume. additionally, higher commodity costs of $1.2 mil-
lion for steel and red metals offset cost savings of $1.0 million 
attributable to a number of other categories across manufacturing 
operations. during fiscal 2009, batesville’s distribution opera-
tions benefited from a $5.9 million reduction in fuel cost as com-
pared to the prior year. it also experienced a $2.7 million decrease 
in other distribution cost categories which were mainly related to 
lower employee benefit costs in similar fashion to its manufactur-
ing operations.

Operating Expenses. batesville’s operating expenses decreased $0.8 
million or 0.8% for fiscal year 2009 as compared to the same 
period in the prior year. in fiscal 2008, batesville realized a $2.6 
million decrease in its bad debt expense as a result of collecting a 
customer balance that had previously been nearly fully reserved 
(causing fiscal 2009 expense to be relatively higher). This increased 
expense was offset by a decrease in variable compensation of  
$1.7 million (tied to lower fiscal 2009 revenues) and a decrease of 
$1.1 million in legal fees related to antitrust litigation. The 
remaining decrease in core operating expenses of $0.6 million  
was attributable to other components of batesville’s operating 
expense categories.

Fiscal Year Ended 
September 30, 2010

K-Tron results

(representing  
six months of  

operations since date 
of acquisition on 

April 1, 2010)

(amounts in millions) Amount
% of 

Revenue

revenue $108.9 100.0
Gross profit   35.6  32.7
operating expenses   33.4  30.7
operating income    2.2   2.0
depreciation and amortization    9.7   8.9

Results for K-Tron. Since we have only recently acquired K-Tron, 
we do not present comparative period results for variance analysis. 
K-Tron’s results for the last six months of fiscal 2010 were signifi-
cantly impacted by the non-recurring effects of the “step ups” in 
value to inventories and backlog (e.g. the value of firm orders 
which are not yet complete for our customers) required by acquisi-
tion accounting. These “step ups” are being charged against 
income over the turnover period of the related inventories and 
acquired backlog. These “step ups” reduced gross profit and oper-
ating income by $11.6 million and $13.3 million, respectively, and 
increased operating expenses and amortization by $1.7 million.

The future revenue associated with K-Tron’s business lines is 
influenced by order backlog. This is typical for these business 
lines because of the lead time involved in manufacturing special-
ized equipment and parts for customers. backlog can be an indi-
cator of future revenue. However, it may not include many 
projects and parts orders that are booked and shipped within a 
quarter (e.g. it is substantially new equipment orders). The timing 
of order placement, size, and customer delivery dates can create 
unusual fluctuations in backlog. backlog is also affected by for-
eign exchange f luctuations since a portion of the orders are 
denominated in currencies other than u.S. dollars.

When we acquired K-Tron, backlog was approximately $60.8 mil-
lion. based upon new orders accepted, less orders completed and 
shipped during the last six months of fiscal 2010, K-Tron’s back-
log was approximately $57.1 million as of September 30, 2010. 
revenues in the last six months of fiscal 2010 exceeded the orders 
placed for future delivery, causing the reduction in backlog as  
of the end of the year. The backlog decrease was largely driven by 
the completion of a multi-million dollar order during the fourth 
quarter of fiscal 2010.

corporate results
Fiscal Year ended 

September 30,

(amounts in millions) 2010 2009 2008

operating expenses* $26.2 $23.4 $18.6
business acquisition costs 10.2 — —
restructuring costs 3.0 — —
Separation costs — 0.1 15.6
depreciation and amortization 0.9 0.9 0.4

* excluding business acquisition, restructuring, and separation costs.

Corporate — Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2010, Compared to 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Operating Expenses.* We have excluded business acquisition, 
restructuring and separation costs because we believe this pro-
vides a clearer picture for analyzing our operating cost structure 
without the effects of these activities due to the significant and 
infrequent nature of these costs. operating expenses increased 
$2.8 million or 12.0% for the year as compared to the same 
period in the prior year. The increases were primarily related to 
employee compensation and benefits costs of $2.6 million and 
variable compensation costs of $0.9 million which were offset by 
aggregate cost decreases of $0.7 million across other components 
of our corporate operations.

Business Acquisition Costs. during fiscal 2010, we incurred $10.5 
million of business acquisition related costs, of which $10.2 mil-
lion are included in our corporate costs for the fiscal year ended 
September 30, 2010. These non-recurring acquisition costs 
include advisory, legal, accounting, valuation, and other profes-
sional and consulting fees that are directly attributable to our 
acquisition of K-Tron.
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Restructuring Costs. during fiscal 2010, we incurred restructuring 
charges of $3.0 million related to our joint ownership interests in 
corporate aircraft that were distributed to us in connection with 
our separation from Hill-rom. These restructuring charges 
resulted from our collective plans with Hill-rom to sell or dispose 
of two (of four) of our jointly owned aircraft, and modifications 
to our aviation access and use agreements. The charges consist of 
$2.9 million in asset impairments related to two aircraft and 
approximately $0.1 million related to severance. This restructur-
ing will optimize our future cost structure with our intended use 
of these aviation assets.

Corporate — Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009, Compared to 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

Operating Expenses.* during fiscal 2009, we substantially com-
pleted building teams and processes to support ourselves as a 
stand-alone public company. We also initiated our acquisition 
strategy and put in place people, processes, and resources to enable 
successful execution of that strategy. as a result of these activities, 
we incurred an increase in corporate operating costs of $12.2  
million in fiscal 2009 as compared to the previous year. This 
increase was partially offset by the fact that we were no longer 
allocated corporate costs from Hill-rom effective april 1, 2008. 
These allocated costs decreased by $7.4 million in fiscal 2009 
compared to the prior year.

Separation Costs. in fiscal year 2008, we incurred or were allo-
cated $15.6 million in separation costs associated with the sep-
aration of the company from Hill-rom. included in these 
non-recurring costs were $3.2 million tied to the acceleration of 
previously unvested stock grants, $1.1 million in stock option 
modification charges, and $4.4 million of investment banking 
and advisory fees. The balance of the costs were primarily legal 
and professional fees.

other income and expense
Fiscal Year ended 

September 30,

(amounts in millions) 2010 2009 2008

interest expense $ 4.2 $2.1 $2.2
investment income and other  12.7  7.9  5.9

Interest Expense. interest expense increased $2.1 million for the 
year ended September 30, 2010, as compared to the same period 
in the prior year, due to increased borrowings on our revolving 
credit facilities (resulting from the acquisition of K-Tron) and 
issuance of 10 year, 5.5% fixed rate senior unsecured notes in the 
fourth quarter of fiscal 2010. our revolving credit facility had an 
average weighted interest rate for fiscal 2010 of 0.8% as compared 
to 1.5% for fiscal 2009.

Fiscal 2009 marked our first full year as a stand-alone public 
company and our first full year of financing costs under our credit 
facility. Since our separation from Hill-rom and generally 
throughout fiscal 2009, we had been paying down the credit facil-
ity. as a result of the lower average daily balances and the fact that 
we had lower weighted average interest rates, our costs decreased 
in fiscal 2009 over the same period in the prior year. The weighted 
average interest rate of the credit facility was 1.5% and 3.0% dur-
ing the fiscal years 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Investment Income and Other. investment income and other 
increased $4.8 million for the year ended September 30, 2010 as 
compared to the same period in the prior year. The primary driver 
of the increase was higher earnings from investments in limited 
partnerships in the current year, as compared to losses in the prior 
year (which resulted primarily from decreased values on invest-
ments held by the limited partnerships). This increase in invest-
ment income was partially offset by decreased interest income  
and realized losses and impairments on the sale of auction rate 
securities and lower interest income on our note receivable from 
Forethought (“Forethought note”). See note 13 to our consoli-
dated financial statements included in Part ii, item 8 of this Form 
10-K for more detailed information.

as was the case with interest expense described above, in fiscal 
2009 we incurred our first full year of investment earnings or 
losses from assets that were transferred to us by Hill-rom at the 
time of the separation. during fiscal year 2009, net losses from 
investments in affiliates (limited partnership investments) were 
$5.4 million due to decreased values within the affiliates’ invest-
ment portfolios. in comparison, we had no net earnings or losses 
from these investments in fiscal 2008. However, in the last quar-
ter of fiscal year 2008, we recorded a $0.8 million other-than-
temporary impairment loss on an investment in common stock. 
We earned higher interest income of $6.5 million, in aggregate, 
on the arS and Forethought note as compared to the prior year 
due to the fact that we held them for only six months in the previ-
ous year. We also received a right (the “Put”) from ubS Financial 
Services that allowed us to sell a portion of our existing arS in 
the future. Since that time, we have been recording changes in  
the fair value of the Put and applicable arS through our income 
statement and as expected, they essentially offset. (See the infor-
mation within the notes to our consolidated financial state-
ments in Part ii, item 8 of this Form 10-K and “other liquidity 
matters” included within liquidity and capital resources dis-
cussed below.)

income Tax expense
Fiscal Year ended 

September 30,

(amounts in millions) 2010 2009 2008

income tax expense $54.1 $58.5 $60.1
effective tax rate 37.0% 36.4% 39.2%
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Income Taxes. our income tax rate was 37.0% for the year ended 
September 30, 2010, an increase of 0.6% over the same period in 
the prior year. The increase in the effective tax rate was primarily 
attributable to non-deductible business acquisition costs, higher 
state income tax rates, and adjustments resulting from periodic 
reconciliation of our tax accounts to subsequent tax filings. These 
effects were somewhat offset by favorable changes in our income 
tax reserves.

our income tax rate for fiscal 2009 was 36.4%, which was 2.8% 
lower than the prior year. This reduction was primarily due to 
separation costs we incurred in fiscal 2008 that were not deduct-
ible for income tax purposes and a partial disallowance of the 
domestic production activities deduction in fiscal 2008 due to  
the separation.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We believe the ability to generate cash is critical to the value of the 
company. in this section, we tell you about our ability to generate 
and access cash to meet our business needs.

First, we will describe our actual results in generating and utiliz-
ing cash by comparing the last three years. We will also talk about 
any significant trends we are seeing to help you understand how 
this could impact us going forward.

Second, we will tell you about how we see operating, investing, 
and financing cash flows being impacted for the next 12 months. 
While it’s not a certainty, we will tell you where we think cash 
will come from and how we intend to use it. We will also talk 
about significant risks or possible changes to our thinking that 
could change our expectations.

Third, we will tell you about other significant matters that could 
affect our liquidity on an ongoing basis.

a summary of our cash flows for the last three years is as follows:

Fiscal Year ended  
September 30,

(amounts in millions) 2010 2009 2008

cash flows provided by (used-in)
 operating activities $ 118.2 $ 123.2 $ 101.8
 investing activities (348.7) (5.3) (4.2)
 Financing activities* 289.8 (97.4) (94.4)
  effect of exchange rate changes on  

 cash and cash equivalents 3.9 — (0.4)

increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 63.2 $ 20.5 $ 2.8

* also includes net cash and cash equivalents provided to our parent company 
prior to separation on march 31, 2008.

Operating Activities

our operating cash f low was $5.0 million lower in fiscal year 
2010 as compared to fiscal year 2009. The noteworthy changes in 
its components were as follows:

 •  We incurred $10.5 million in business acquisition related 
costs in fiscal 2010, substantially all of which were paid by 
the end of the period. These costs reduced both our profit-
ability and our operating cash flow in fiscal 2010.

 •  cash payments for income taxes increased $21.0 million 
from fiscal year 2009. This change was primarily related to a 
sig nificant change in the cash (current) and non-cash 
(deferred) components of our income tax expense. With the 
acquisition of K-Tron, a higher portion of our tax expense 
was current (meaning higher cash payments) offset by non-
cash deferred income tax benefits.

 •  We paid $3.0 million less in defined benefit plan contribu-
tions in fiscal year 2010 as compared to the prior year pri-
marily resulting from lower discretionary payments made in 
the current year as compared to the fiscal 2009.

 •  We made cash payments of $5.5 million to fund a rabbi  
trust associated with our deferred compensation program in 
fiscal 2010.

 •  K-Tron’s core pre-tax operating cash flows contributed approx-
imately $16.9 million to our consolidated operating cash 
flows for the last 6 months of fiscal 2010.

 •  in July 2010, we received from Forethought our first $10.0 
million interest payment on the Forethought note.

our operating cash flow was $21.4 million higher in fiscal year 
2009 as compared to fiscal year 2008. The noteworthy changes in 
its components were as follows:

 •  We incurred $15.5 million more in separation costs in fiscal 
year 2008 compared to fiscal year 2009, substantially all of 
which were paid by the end of the period. This reduced both 
our profitability and our operating cash flow in fiscal 2008.

 •  cash payments for income tax payments decreased $8.7 mil-
lion from fiscal year 2008, including amounts paid to or 
received from Hill-rom to settle our pre-separation income 
tax obligations. This change was the result of the timing 
between when we had made these payments to Hill-rom 
(prior to separation) and the timing of when we now make 
them directly to tax authorities as a separate company.

 •  We paid $3.2 million more in defined benefit plan contribu-
tions in fiscal year 2009 as compared to fiscal 2008 resulting 
from a discretionary payment of $7.8 million made this year. 
We made this payment in order to improve the funding level 
of our plans.
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Investing Activities

The significant increase in our net investing activities in fiscal 
2010 over fiscal 2009 was driven by a $369.0 million net cash 
payout to acquire K-Tron and higher capital project spending of 
$6.3 million, all of which was offset by the $37.2 million liquida-
tion of a portion of our arS and investments.

our net investing activities in fiscal year 2009 were essentially flat 
from fiscal 2008. The modest change was due to cash invested in 
and returned from investment assets we received in connection 
with the separation.

Financing Activities

net cash receipts from financing activities for fiscal 2010 increased 
$387.2 million, primarily related to $375.0 million of borrowings 
under our revolving credit facilities to fund the acquisition of 
K-Tron, and $148.4 million of proceeds from the issuance of 5.5% 
senior unsecured notes (the “notes”). The proceeds from the 
notes were subsequently used to pay-down $100 million owed on 
our revolving credit facility and the remaining amount was used 
to fund working capital needs.

on July 24, 2008, our board of directors authorized the 
company to repurchase up to $100 million of our outstanding 
common stock. The amount of repurchase activity will depend on 
a variety of factors including the level of cash generated from 
operations, the market price of our stock, repayments we elect to 
make on the credit facility, and the use of cash from operations in 
support of other business growth opportunities. during fiscal 
year 2008, we elected to purchase 0.3 million shares of our com-
mon stock for $6.2 million. in fiscal year 2009, we purchased an 
additional 0.7 million shares for $12.5 million. There were no 
purchases of stock in fiscal 2010.

12 Month Outlook

at the present time, we expect the future profitability of batesville, 
K-Tron and the cost structure of our corporate operations to drive 
our net operating cash flow. The specifics that follow are known 
factors that can introduce volatility to that general premise over 
the next twelve months.

Operating activities

We made a $4.0 million discretionary contribution to one of our 
pension plans in June 2010. although we are not required to do 
so, we may decide to make a contribution to our defined retire-
ment plan in 2011. any amount will be based on the performance 
of the assets within the plan, business developments, and overall  

economic activity. We expect the maximum amount of any con-
tribution to be $30 million. We will continue to monitor plan 
funding levels in order to optimize our capital deployment and 
determine the final discretionary amount during fiscal 2011.  
any contributions we make will reduce our net cash flow from 
operations.

as discussed in note 5 to our consolidated financial statements 
included in Part ii, item 8 of this Form 10-K, in July 2010, we 
issued $150.0 million in principal amount 5.5% fixed rate senior 
unsecured notes, due July 2020. These notes will require annual 
interest payments of approximately $8.2 million which will reduce 
our operating cash flow.

Investing Activities

in addition to our traditional level of capital expenditures, we  
are now including the annual sustaining capital expenditures of 
K-Tron. over the past three calendar years, those expenditures 
have been between $1.8 million to $3.7 million annually.

We can be called upon by our private equity limited partnership 
investments to provide additional investment funds, the maxi-
mum amount being $3.1 million in the aggregate.

We expect to continue moving forward with our acquisition strat-
egy in order to increase our growth rate for revenues and earnings. 
However, any additional acquisitions will depend on whether  
suitable opportunities are available. We expect to fund future 
acquisitions primarily with cash on hand and cash f lows from 
operations.

Financing Activities

We currently expect that comparable quarterly cash dividends will 
continue to be paid in the future and will require approximately 
$11.8 million each quarter based on our outstanding common 
stock at September 30, 2010. We may use additional cash gener-
ated by the business to pay down our revolving credit facility, 
depending on our working capital needs or as discussed under 
investing activities, we may utilize availability under the revolving 
credit facility to finance acquisitions. We may also resume pur-
chasing additional shares of our common stock, depending on 
market conditions.

Summary of 12 Month Outlook

We believe that cash on hand, cash generated from operations, 
and cash available under our credit facility will be sufficient to 
fund operations, working capital needs, capital expenditure 
requirements, and financing obligations.
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Other Liquidity Matters

at September 30, 2010, we held $11.9 million in a portfolio of 
arS (consisting of highly rated tax exempt state and municipal 
securities, the majority of which are collateralized by student 
loans guaranteed by the u.S. government under the Federal 
Family education loan Program) recorded at fair value. We have 
estimated the current fair value of the portfolio based upon 
observed pricing on similar assets as of September 30, 2010. 
although the underlying securities in the portfolio consist of 
creditworthy borrowers with aaa or a3 debt ratings, market 
conditions and auction failures have adversely impacted the 
liquidity of these securities. if current market conditions do not 
improve, or worsen, we may not be able to readily convert these 
securities to cash, and our earnings could suffer as a result.

although we are not dependent on any cash f lows from the 
Forethought note to fund our operating activities, we regularly 
evaluate the Forethought note for impairment based upon col-
lectability. if, based upon these evaluations, it is probable that the 
Forethought note will not be paid in accordance with its terms, it 
will be deemed impaired. based upon information available to us 
regarding conditions existing on or prior to September 30, 2010, 
the Forethought note is not impaired. We estimate the fair value 
of the Forethought note based upon a comparison to debt securi-
ties currently trading in an active market with similar characteris-
tics of yield, duration, and credit risk, adjusted for liquidity 
considerations. We estimate that the fair value of the Forethought 
note (and related interest receivable) has increased from $109.0 
million at September 30, 2009, to $127.0 million at September 
30, 2010. This increase in estimated fair value was caused by the 
natural decline in the period to maturity (closer to the collection 
date), offset by an increase in the required yield to maturity (dis-
count rate) observed in the marketplace on comparable debt 
instruments (adjusted for a liquidity premium). The model used 
in estimating the fair value of the Forethought note primarily 
utilizes market data and is not intended to imply that some or all 
of the future payments due under the Forethought note will not 
be collected when due from Forethought.

in march 2008, we established a $400 million five-year revolving 
credit facility (the “Facility”) with a syndicate of banks. The term 
of the Facility expires in march 2013. borrowings under the 
Facility bear interest at variable rates, as defined therein. The 
availability of borrowings under the Facility is subject to our  

ability at the time of borrowing to meet certain specified con-
ditions. These conditions include compliance with covenants  
contained in the credit agreement governing the Facility, absence 
of default under the Facility, and continued accuracy of certain 
representations and warranties contained in the credit agreement. 
The credit agreement contains covenants that, among other mat-
ters, require the company to maintain a ratio of consolidated 
indebtedness to consolidated ebiTda (each as defined in the 
credit agreement) of not more than 3.5:1.0 and a ratio of 
consolidated ebiTda to interest expense of not less than 3.5:1.0. 
The proceeds of the Facility may be used: (i) for working capital 
and other lawful corporate purposes and (ii) to finance 
acquisitions.

as of September 30, 2010, we: (i) had $6.7 million outstanding, 
undrawn letters of credit under the Facility, (ii) were in com-
pliance with all covenants set forth in the credit agreement, and 
(iii) had complete access to the remaining $138.3 million of bor-
rowing capacity available under the Facility. in addition to the 
amounts above, we had $6.0 million in outstanding letters  
of credit and bank guarantees to other financial institutions as  
of September 30, 2010. a portion of these arrangements is secured 
by our operating facility in Switzerland and $0.3 million of 
restricted cash at September 30, 2010.

The covenants under the distribution agreement with Hill-rom 
effectively prevent us from incurring any additional debt to 
finance an acquisition based upon our financial position as of 
September 30, 2010. However, we may utilize existing cash on 
hand and cash generated from future operations to fund future 
acquisitions. our capacity to borrow for acquisitions may increase 
as cash on hand and our earnings (as defined under the 
distribution agreement) increase over time.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangements.

Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities  
and Commitments

in this section we will tell you about the things we have commit-
ted to pay. This will help give you an understanding of the signifi-
cance of cash outlays that are fixed (beyond the normal accounts 
payable we have already incurred and have on our books), unless 
we took some action to delay or cancel the need to pay.
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To provide visibility to matters potentially impacting our liquidity 
position, the following table outlines our contractual obligations 
as of September 30, 2010:

contractual obligations Payment due by Period

(amounts in millions) Total

less 
Than  
1 Year

1–3 
Years

4–5 
Years

after  
5 Years

operating lease 
obligations $ 15.9 $ 7.1 $ 8.0 $ 0.8 $   —

Purchase obligations (1) 45.5 40.0 5.3 0.2 —
defined benefit plan 

funding (2) 87.8 7.1 28.7 31.4 20.6
other long-term  

liabilities (3) 25.2 3.5 4.2 1.6 15.9
capital call  

arrangements (4) 3.1 3.1 — — —
revolving credit  

facility (5) 255.0 — 255.0 — —
10 year, 5.5% fixed  

rate senior unsecured 
notes (6) 150.0 — — — 150.0

Total contractual 
obligations $ 582.5 $60.8 $ 301.2 $34.0 $186.5

(1)  Purchase obligations represent contractual obligations under various take-
or-pay arrangements entered into as part of the normal course of business. 
These commitments represent future purchases in line with expected usage 
to obtain favorable pricing. also included are obligations related to pur-
chase orders for which we have firm commitments related to order releases 
under the purchase orders. The amounts do not include obligations related 
to other purchase obligations that are not considered take-or-pay arrange-
ments or subject to firm commitments. Such purchase obligations are pri-
marily ref lected in purchase orders at fair value that are part of normal 
operations, which we do not believe represent firm purchase commitments. 
We expect to fund these commitments with operating cash flows.

(2)  The defined benefit plan funding represents payments to comply with non-
discretionary requirements based upon plan funding at September 30, 
2010, and excludes any 2011 discretionary contribution. in the event we 
choose to make a discretionary contribution, we expect the maximum 
amount to be $30.0 million. The estimated discretionary contribution 
amount is highly volatile, depending on fiscal 2011 asset performance, 
business developments, and overall economic activity.

(3)  other long-term liabilities include the forecasted liquidation of liabilities 
related to our casket pricing obligation, self-insurance reserves, and long-
term severance payments.

(4)  We could be called upon by our private equity limited partnership invest-
ments to provide additional investment funds, the maximum amount 
being $3.1 million in aggregate.

(5)  our revolving credit facility expires in march 2013. although we may 
make earlier principal payments at our discretion, we have ref lected the 
principal balance due at expiration in the table above, because that is when 
we are required to repay.

(6)  during July 2010, we issued $150.0 million of 10 year, 5.5% fixed rate 
senior unsecured notes, a portion of which we used to pay-down outstand-
ing amounts on our revolving credit facility. beginning January 2011, we 
will be required to make semi-annual interest payments on our debt, with 
the principal balance becoming due in July 2020.

in addition to the contractual obligations disclosed above, we also 
have a variety of other agreements related to the procurement of 
materials and services and other commitments. We are not subject 
to any contracts that obligate us to material non-cancelable com-
mitments. While many of these agreements are long-term supply 
agreements, some of which are exclusive supply or complete 
requirements-based contracts, we are not committed under these 
agreements to accept or pay for requirements which are not 
needed to meet near term production requirements.

in connection with past acquisition activities, we have entered 
into certain guarantees and indemnifications of performance with 
respect to the fulfillment of our commitments under the respec-
tive purchase agreements. The arrangements generally indemnify 
the seller for damages associated with breach of contract, inaccu-
racies in representations and warranties surviving the closing date, 
and satisfaction of liabilities and commitments retained under the 
applicable contract. Those representations and warranties which 
survive closing generally survive for periods up to the maximum 
period allowed by the applicable statutes of limitations. Guarantees 
and indemnifications with respect to acquisition activities, if trig-
gered, would not have a materially adverse impact on our finan-
cial condition and results of operations.

Critical Accounting Estimates

in this section we tell you about accounting estimates that inher-
ently involve significant judgment on our part.

our accounting policies require management to make significant 
estimates and assumptions using information available at the time 
the estimates are made. Such estimates and assumptions signifi-
cantly affect various reported amounts of assets, liabilities, reve-
nues, and expenses. if future experience differs materially from 
these estimates and assumptions, our results of operations and 
financial condition could be affected. a detailed description of 
our accounting policies is included in the notes to our con-
solidated financial statements included in Part ii, item 8 of this 
Form 10-K.

Revenue Recognition

revenue for our products is most often recognized upon delivery 
of the products to the customer, but in no case prior to when the 
risk of loss and other risks and rewards of ownership are trans-
ferred. net revenues ref lect gross revenues less sales discounts, 
customer rebates, sales incentives, and product returns, all of 
which require us to make estimates for the portion of these  
allowances that have yet to be credited or paid to our customers. 
We estimate these allowances based both upon historical rates  
and projections of customer purchases toward contractual rebate 
thresholds.
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Some of our revenues associated with K-Tron involve multiple  
elements (i.e. various components to an overall larger order being 
manufactured for the customer.) Periodically these elements are 
transferred to the customer at different times pursuant to the cus-
tomer’s requirements. in these circumstances we may estimate the 
sales value of the individual elements in order to determine the 
appropriate amount of revenue to recognize on the transferred 
elements.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The accounting for our trade receivables requires us to estimate 
the net realizable value of these assets. our allowance for doubtful 
accounts is our best estimate of the amount of probable credit 
losses and collection risk in our existing trade accounts receivable 
portfolio. Performing our evaluation of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts requires us to exercise significant judgment based on his-
torical write-off and individual customer collection experience.  
as a result, our historical experience and current trends we are 
using in our estimates at any point in time may not be indicative 
of the collectability of these balances in the future.

Auction Rate Securities

The accounting for our auction rate securities requires us to esti-
mate the fair value of these assets in a current environment where 
there is not an active market to easily establish that value. Prior to 
July 1, 2010, we utilized a valuation model based upon a dis-
counted cash flow approach. The assumptions used in preparing 
the discounted cash flow model included estimates of, based on 
available data, interest rates, timing and amount of cash flows, 
credit spread related yield and illiquidity premiums, and expected 
holding periods of the arS. in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, 
we began to value the arS based upon secondary market pricing 
on observed transactions. We moved to this approach as we 
believe the pricing now occurring in the secondary market repre-
sents the “highest and best use” valuation of the arS. The risk 
exists that the volatile nature of secondary market pricing may not 
be reflective of actual realizable value in the future.

Note Receivable from Forethought

We evaluate the note receivable from Forethought for impairment 
based upon collectability. if, based upon this evaluation, it is 
probable that the note will not be paid in accordance with its 
terms, the note will be deemed impaired. Performing an impair-
ment evaluation of the note requires us to exercise significant 
judgments as to whether Forethought has the financial where-
withal to make the scheduled payments based upon events or  

conditions that we are aware of existing on or prior to the balance 
sheet date. The note agreement provides us access to various kinds 
of financial information from Forethought including:

 •  available capital and surplus within Forethought’s primary 
insurance operations, an indicator of liquidity of the entity;

 •  embedded Value, an indicator of enterprise value and an 
indicator of the ability of the entity to raise capital;

 •  Forethought’s recent investment portfolio results and the 
quality of the related investments;

 •  GaaP equity, an indicator of financial strength; and

 •  recent GaaP and Statutory financial results (income, loss 
and related cash flow effects).

We utilize this information to assess the financial strength of 
Forethought and our prospects for getting paid. The principal 
under the note is not scheduled to be repaid until 2014.

as a result, the indicators or trends we consider at any point in 
time when making an impairment assessment may not be indica-
tive of Forethought’s ultimate financial strength at the time of 
scheduled payment.

if we determine an impairment exists, an impairment reserve 
would be established based upon the then carrying value of the 
note and the estimated discounted cash flows we would expect to 
receive on an impaired basis. making such an estimate would 
require us to exercise significant judgment about the expected 
timing and size of the payments under the note in what could be 
distressed financial conditions at Forethought. even though we 
might be legally entitled, we would likely cease recording interest 
income under the note, due to the uncertainty of being paid under 
these types of conditions.

Liabilities for Loss Contingencies Related to Claims and Lawsuits

The ultimate outcome of claims and lawsuits cannot be predicted 
with certainty. an estimated loss from these contingencies is  
recognized when we believe it is probable that a loss has been 
incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. 
making such an estimate requires us to exercise significant judg-
ment. However, it is difficult to measure the actual loss that might 
be incurred related to litigation. The ultimate outcome of these 
lawsuits could have a material adverse effect on our financial con-
dition, results of operations and cash flow. For a more complete 
description of loss contingencies related to lawsuits, see note 12 to 
our consolidated financial statements included in Part ii, item 8, 
of this Form 10-K.
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legal fees associated with claims and lawsuits are generally 
expensed as incurred. upon recognition of an estimated loss 
resulting from a settlement, an estimate of legal fees to complete 
the settlement is also included in the amount of the loss 
recognized.

We are also involved in other possible claims, including product 
and general liability, workers compensation, auto liability and 
employment related matters. outside insurance companies and 
third-party claims administrators establish individual claim 
reserves and an independent outside actuary provides estimates of 
ultimate projected losses, including incurred but not reported 
claims, which are used to establish reserves for losses. as our actu-
aries periodically provide us updated ultimate loss projections, we 
must “true up” (increasing or reducing) previously recorded claim 
reserves. Thus, any one period’s financial results could be signifi-
cantly affected by the effect of the “true up.”

The recorded amounts represent our best estimate of the costs we 
will incur in relation to such exposures, but it is possible that 
actual costs could differ from those estimates.

Performance Stock-Based Compensation

The vesting of our performance-based restricted stock and units 
(collectively “Pbus”) is contingent upon the creation of share-
holder value as measured by the cumulative cash returns and final 
period income in excess of our weighted average cost of capital 
over a three-year period and a corresponding service requirement. 
The value of an award is based upon the fair value of our common 
stock at the date of grant. based on the extent to which the perfor-
mance criteria are achieved, it is possible for none of the awards to 
vest or for a range up to the maximum to vest, which is reflected 
in the Pbu table in note 11 to our consolidated financial state-
ments included in Part ii, item 8, of this Form 10-K. We record 
expense associated with the awards on a straight-line basis over the 
vesting period based upon an estimate of projected performance. 
The actual performance of the company is evaluated quarterly, 
and the expense is adjusted according to the new projection if it 
has changed significantly. as a result, depending on the degree to 
which we achieve the performance criteria or our projection 
changes, our expenses related to the Pbus may become more  
volatile as we approach the final performance measurement date 
at the end of the three years. This increase in volatility is due to 
the fact that we must “true up” (increasing or reducing) previously 
recorded compensation expense as the projection of performance 
changes. Thus any one period’s financial results could be signifi-
cantly affected by the cumulative effect of the “true up.” Preparing 
the projection of performance requires us to exercise significant 
judgments as to the expected outcome of final performance up to 
three years in the future. in making the projection, we consider  

both actual results and probable business plans for the future. at 
September 30, 2010, we have recorded cumulative compensation 
expense associated with unvested Pbus of $5.9 million, which 
continues to be subject to periodic “true ups” as the related Pbus 
approach the final performance measurement date.

Retirement and Postretirement Plans

We sponsor retirement and postretirement benefit plans covering 
a majority of our employees. expense recognized in relation to 
such plans is based upon actuarial valuations. inherent in those 
valuations are key assumptions including discount rates, expected 
returns on assets, and projected future salary rates. The discount 
rates used in the valuation of our defined benefit pension and 
postretirement benefit plans are evaluated annually based on  
current market conditions. in setting the discount rate, we use a 
yield curve approach to discount each expected cash flow of the 
liability stream at an interest rate applicable to the timing of each 
cash flow based on corporate bond rates. These present values are 
then converted into an equivalent weighted-average discount rate. 
our overall expected long-term rate of return on pension assets  
is based on historical and expected future returns, which are  
inflation adjusted and weighted for the expected return for each 
component of the investment portfolio. our rate of assumed  
compensation increase for pension benefits is also based on our 
specific historical trends of past wage adjustments in recent years 
and expectations for the future.

changes in retirement and postretirement benefit expense and the 
recognized obligations may occur in the future as a result of a 
number of factors, including changes to any of these assumptions. 
our weighted average expected rate of return on pension assets  
is 7.6%, 7.75%, and 8.0% at the end of fiscal 2010, 2009 and 
2008 respectively. a 25 basis point increase in the expected rate  
of return on domestic pension assets of $169.2 million reduces 
annual pension expense by approximately $0.5 million. The 
weighted average discount rate decreased to 4.8% and 4.5% at  
the end of fiscal 2010 for the pension and postretirement health-
care plan expense, respectively. a 50 basis point decrease in the 
discount rate increases the annual domestic pension expense by 
approximately $1.4 million. The impact of this decrease to our 
postretirement healthcare plan expense would be less than $0.1 
million. impacts from assumption changes could be positive or 
negative depending on the direction of the change in rates. based 
upon the new rates and assumptions, we expect the aggregate 
expense associated with our defined benefit plans to decrease from 
$9.5 million in fiscal 2010 to $9.0 million in fiscal 2011. See note 
7 to our consolidated financial statements included in Part ii, 
item 8 of this Form 10-K, for key assumptions and other informa-
tion regarding our retirement and postretirement benefit plans.
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Uncertain Income Tax Positions

on october 1, 2007, we adopted the accounting standard that 
prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for 
the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax 
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. in assessing 
the need for reserves for uncertain tax positions, we have to make 
judgments regarding the technical merit of a tax position, and 
when necessary, an estimate of the settlement amount based upon 
what we think is the probability of the outcome. at September 30, 
2010, we had reserves of $7.2 million established for uncertain tax 
positions based upon our estimates. our ability to make and 
update these estimates is limited to the information we have at 
any given point in time. This information can include how taxing 
authorities have treated the position in the past, how similar cases 
have settled, or where we are in discussions or negotiations with 
taxing authorities on a particular issue, among others. as infor-
mation available to us evolves, we update our reserves quarterly. 
These updates can result in volatility to our income tax rate (par-
ticularly to a given quarter) if new information or developments 
result in a significant change in our estimate.

Business Combinations

on october 1, 2009, we adopted a new accounting standard that 
governs how to account for and disclose business combinations 
(e.g., when we buy a business). With a few exceptions, the stan-
dard requires that we record the assets and liabilities of the 
acquired business at estimated fair value at the date of acquisition. 
estimating fair value for acquired assets and liabilities as part of  
a business combination typically requires us to exercise judgment, 
particularly for those assets and liabilities that may be unique  
or not easily determined by reference to market data. often esti-
mates for these types of acquired assets and liabilities will be 
developed using valuation models that require both historical and 
forecasted inputs, as well as “market participant” expectations. 
Thus the valuation is directly affected by the inputs we judge as 
best under the given circumstances. When material, we expect to 
seek assistance of competent valuation professionals when the 
underlying valuation is more complex or unique.

We anticipate that in most cases, we will exercise significant judg-
ment in estimating the fair value of intangible assets (customer 
lists or relationships, trademarks, etc., for example), contingent 
liabilities (loss reserves, for example), and contingent consider-
ation (“earn-outs,” for example). This list is not exhaustive, but is 
designed to give you a better understanding of where we think a 
larger degree of judgment will be required due to the nature of the 
item and the way it is typically valued.

Depreciable and Amortizable Lives of Long-Lived Assets

The recording of depreciation and amortization expense requires 
management to exercise significant judgment in estimating the 
economic useful lives of long-lived assets, particularly intangible 
assets. With the acquisition of K-Tron, the amortization associ-
ated with these estimates is much more significant to our finan-
cial statements than in the past.

management’s assumptions regarding the following factors, 
among others, affect the determination of estimated economic 
useful life: management’s experience with similar assets; changes 
in technology, utilization, wear and tear; estimated cash f lows 
expected to be generated by the asset; and changes in market 
demand. as our assessment is performed on a periodic basis, 
changes in any management assumptions may result in a shorter 
or longer estimated useful life for an asset than originally antici-
pated. in such a case, we would depreciate or amortize the remain-
ing net book value of the asset over the new estimated remaining 
life, thereby increasing or decreasing depreciation or amortiza-
tion expense per year on a prospective basis. as a result, our  
estimates at any point in time may not be indicative of future 
circumstances.

Asset Impairment Determinations

accounting standards require that goodwill and indefinite-lived 
intangible assets be tested for impairment at least annually or 
when circumstances would suggest that an impairment may have 
occurred. Testing of either goodwill or indefinite-lived assets 
requires that we estimate the fair value of the asset in question.

estimating fair value for these assets typically requires us to exer-
cise significant judgment, particularly for asset values that are not 
easily determined by reference to market data. often estimates for 
these types of assets are developed using valuation models that 
require both historical and forecasted inputs, as well as “market 
participant” expectations. Thus the valuation is directly affected 
by the inputs we judge as best under the given circumstances. in 
analyzing the future cash flows of various assets, critical assump-
tions we make may include some of the following:

 •  The intended use of assets and the expected cash f lows 
resulting directly from such use;

 •  industry-specific economic conditions;

 •  customer preferences and behavior patterns; and

 •  The impact of applicable regulatory initiatives, if any.
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our assumptions are sometimes subjective and can be affected by 
a variety of factors, including external factors such as industry and 
economic trends, and internal factors such as changes in our busi-
ness strategy and our internal forecasts. although we believe the 
assumptions and estimates we make are reasonable and appropri-
ate, different assumptions and estimates could result in an impair-
ment charge which could materially impact our reported financial 
results by decreasing operating income and lowering asset values 
on our consolidated balance sheet. When material, we expect to 
seek assistance of competent valuation professionals when the 
underlying valuation is more complex or unique.

Tangible and other intangible assets that are subject to deprecia-
tion and amortization are also evaluated when circumstances 
would suggest that an impairment may have occurred. Testing of 
these assets require that we estimate future cash flows associated 
with the asset(s) in question.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Standards

For a summary of recently issued and adopted accounting stan-
dards applicable to us, see note 2 to our consolidated financial 
statements included in Part ii, item 8 of this Form 10-K.

iTem 7a. QuanTiTaTiVe and QualiTaTiVe 
diScloSureS abouT marKeT riSK

in this section, we tell you about “market risks” we think could 
have a significant impact on our bottom line or the financial 
strength of our company. “market risks” here generally mean how 
results of operations and the value of assets and liabilities could be 
affected by market factors such as interest rates, currency exchange 
rates, the value of commodities, and debt and equity price risks.  
if those factors change significantly, it could help or hurt our  
bottom line, depending on how we react to them.

We are exposed to various market risks. We have established poli-
cies, procedures, and internal processes governing our manage-
ment of market risks and the use of financial instruments to 
manage our exposure to such risks. our primary exposures are to: 
collection risk (customer receivables and our Forethought note); 
fluctuations in market prices for certain purchases of commodi-
ties; variability in exchange rates in foreign locations; and volatil-
ity in the fair value of our investments. We also have some interest 
rate exposure. What follows are the specifics.

We have an outstanding note receivable (the “Forethought note”) 
and related interest receivable from Forethought with an aggre-
gate carrying value of $144.8 million as of September 30, 2010. 
The primary risk with the Forethought note is collection. Should  

Forethought underperform to an extent that it cannot meet its 
financial obligations, our earnings could be negatively impacted, 
resulting in a material adverse impact on our financial condition 
and results of operations. We currently do not expect this to be 
the case. We estimate the fair value of the note receivable from 
Forethought based upon comparison to debt securities currently 
trading in an active market with similar characteristics of yield, 
duration, and credit risk adjusted for liquidity considerations. 
based upon market data available to us, we estimate that the fair 
value of the note and accrued interest is approximately $127.0 
million, based upon an estimated yield to maturity of approxi-
mately 14% as of September 30, 2010. This is approximately $17.8 
million below its carrying value at September 30, 2010. an 
increase or decrease of 1% in the discount rate utilized to estimate 
the fair value of the note (including interest receivable) would 
indicate a change in fair value of approximately $4.0 million.

We are subject to market risk from fluctuating market prices of 
certain purchased commodity raw materials including steel, 
wood, red metals, and fuel. While these materials are typically 
available from multiple suppliers, commodity raw materials are 
subject to market price fluctuations. We generally buy these com-
modities based upon market prices that are established with the 
supplier as part of the purchasing process. We generally attempt to 
obtain firm pricing from our larger suppliers for volumes consis-
tent with planned production. To the extent that commodity 
prices increase and we do not have firm pricing from our suppli-
ers, or if our suppliers are not able to honor such prices, we may 
experience a decline in our gross margins to the extent we are not 
able to increase selling prices of our products or obtain supply 
chain efficiencies to offset increases in commodity costs.

We have a portfolio of arS (with an estimated fair value of $11.9 
million as of September 30, 2010). The primary risk here is the 
lack of a liquid market to sell these investments. if current market 
conditions do not improve, we may not be able to readily convert 
the arS to cash, exposing us to a longer-term risk of impairment, 
and our earnings could be adversely affected.

We are subject to volatility in our investment portfolio. The 
investment portfolio includes private equity limited partnerships 
(“lPs”) and common stock with an aggregate carrying value of 
$18.2 million at September 30, 2010. These investments could  
be adversely affected by general economic conditions, changes  
in interest rates, default on debt instruments, and other factors, 
resulting in an adverse impact. The changes in the fair value of 
the lPs’ underlying investment portfolios can impact us signifi-
cantly because we record our share of the change in our income 
statement under the equity method of accounting.



34

our pension plans’ assets are also subject to volatility that can be 
caused by fluctuation in general economic conditions. Plan assets 
are invested by the plans’ fiduciaries, which direct investments 
according to specific policies. Those policies subject investments 
to the following restrictions in our domestic plan: short-term 
securities must be rated a2/P2 or higher, fixed income securities 
must have a quality credit rating of “bbb” or higher, and invest-
ments in equities in any one company may not exceed 10% of the 
equity portfolio. our income statement is currently shielded from 
volatility in plan assets due to the way accounting standards are 
applied for pension plans, although favorable or unfavorable 
investment performance over the long term will impact our pen-
sion expense if it deviates from our assumption related to future 
rate of return.

With the addition of K-Tron, our exposure to exchange rates are 
primarily (i) the u.S. dollar versus each of the Swiss franc, the 
euro, the british pound sterling, the canadian dollar, and the 
Swedish krona: and (ii) the Swiss franc versus the euro and the 
british pound sterling. From time to time we may enter into cur-
rency exchange agreements to manage our exposure arising from 
fluctuating exchange rates related to specific transactions, primar-
ily forecasted intercompany purchasing. Foreign cash balances in 
currencies other than the Swiss franc are limited in order to man-
age the transaction exposure caused by the marking to market of 
non-Swiss franc balances to Swiss franc values on the balance 
sheet of our Swiss operations. as of September 30, 2010, a 10% 
change in the foreign exchange rates affecting balance sheet trans-
actional exposures would have resulted in a change in pre-tax 
earnings of approximately $0.6 million. This hypothetical change 
on transactional exposures is based on the difference between the 
September 30, 2010, actual foreign exchange rates and hypotheti-
cal rates assuming a 10% change in foreign exchange rates on that 
date. We expect to expand our hedging program in fiscal 2011 to 
help reduce earnings volatility that could occur associated with 
the non-Swiss franc balances of our Swiss operations.

The translation of the balance sheets of our non-u.S. operations 
from local currencies into u.S. dollars is also sensitive to changes 
in foreign exchange rates. These translation gains or losses are 
recorded as cumulative translation adjustments (“cTa”) within 
accumulated other comprehensive loss on our balance sheet. 
using the example above, the hypothetical change in cTa would 
be calculated by multiplying the net assets of our non-u.S. opera-
tions by a 10% change in the applicable foreign exchange rates. 
The result of this calculation would be to change shareholders’ 
equity by approximately $21.1 million as of September 30, 2010.

at September 30, 2010, we had $255.0 million outstanding under 
our $400 million revolving credit facility. We are subject to inter-
est rate risk associated with our revolving credit facility which 
bears a variable rate of interest that is based upon the lender’s base 
rate or the libor rate. The interest we pay on our borrowings is 
dependent on interest rate conditions and the timing of our 
financing needs. assuming our borrowings were to remain at 
$255.0 million for 12 months; a 1% move in the related interest 
rates would increase or decrease our annual interest expense by 
approximately $2.6 million.
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manaGemenT’S rePorT on inTernal conTrol oVer Financial rePorTinG

management is responsible for establishing and maintaining ade-
quate internal control over financial reporting for the company. in 
order to evaluate the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, management has conducted an assessment, including 
testing, using the criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated 
Framework issued by the committee of Sponsoring organizations 
of the Treadway commission (coSo). The company’s internal 
control over financial reporting, as defined in rule 13a-15(f) under 
the Securities exchange act of 1934 (“exchange act”), is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of our financial reporting and the preparation of financial state-
ments for external purposes in accordance with accounting prin-
ciples generally accepted in the united States of america. because 
of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial report-
ing may not prevent or detect misstatements. also, projections of 
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the 
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.

We have excluded K-Tron international, inc. (“K-Tron”) from our 
assessment of the effectiveness of our internal controls over finan-
cial reporting as of September 30, 2010 because it was acquired by 
us in a purchase business combination on april 1, 2010. The total 
assets and total revenues acquired in the acquisition of K-Tron 
represent approximately 14.8% and 14.5%, respectively, of the 
related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.

based on our assessment, under the criteria established in Internal 
Control — Integrated Framework, issued by the coSo, manage-
ment has concluded that the company maintained effective inter-
nal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2010.

management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the company’s 
internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2010, 
has been audited by Pricewaterhousecoopers llP, an indepen-
dent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report 
included herein.

Kenneth a. camp
President and Chief Executive Officer

cynthia l. lucchese
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Theodore S. Haddad, Jr.
Vice President, Controller and Chief Accounting Officer
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rePorT oF indePendenT reGiSTered Public accounTinG Firm

To the board of directors and Shareholders of Hillenbrand, inc.:

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in  
the accompanying index present fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of Hillenbrand, inc. and its subsidiaries (the 
“company”) at September 30, 2010 and 2009, and the results of 
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in 
the period ended September 30, 2010, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the united States of 
america. in addition, in our opinion, the financial statement 
schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all 
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in 
conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. 
also in our opinion, the company maintained, in all material 
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
September 30, 2010, based on criteria established in Internal 
Control — Integrated Framework issued by the committee of Spon-
soring organizations of the Treadway commission (“coSo”). 
The company’s management is responsible for these financial 
statements and financial statement schedule, for maintaining 
effective internal control over financial reporting and for its 
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial 
reporting, included in the accompanying management’s report 
on internal control over Financial reporting. our responsibility 
is to express opinions on these financial statements, on the finan-
cial statement schedule, and on the company’s internal control 
over financial reporting based on our integrated audits. We  
conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the 
Public company accounting oversight board (united States). 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial state-
ments are free of material misstatement and whether effective 
internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all 
material respects. our audits of the financial statements included 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
dis closures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting 
principles used and significant estimates made by management, 
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. our 
audit of internal control over financial reporting included obtain-
ing an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal con-
trol based on the assessed risk. our audits also included perform-
ing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable 
basis for our opinions.

a company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability 
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. a company’s internal control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately 
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of 
the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial state-
ments in accordance with generally accepted accounting princi-
ples, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisi-
tion, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the financial statements.

because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial 
reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. also, pro-
jections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are 
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because 
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with 
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

as described in management’s report on internal control over 
Financial reporting, management has excluded K-Tron from  
its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of 
September 30, 2010 because it was acquired by the company in  
a purchase business combination during 2010. We have also 
excluded K-Tron from our audit of internal control over financial 
reporting. K-Tron is a wholly-owned subsidiary whose total assets 
and total revenues represent 14.8% and 14.5%, respectively, of the 
related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for  
the year ended September 30, 2010.

indianapolis, indiana
november 23, 2010
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Hillenbrand, inc.

conSolidaTed STaTemenTS oF income
(amounts in millions, except per share amounts)

Fiscal Year ended September 30,

2010 2009 2008

net revenue $ 749.2 $ 649.1 $ 678.1
cost of goods sold 435.9 374.7 397.6

 Gross profit 313.3 274.4 280.5
operating expenses (including business acquisition, restructuring, and separation costs) 175.4 119.4 130.9

 operating profit 137.9 155.0 149.6
interest expense (4.2) (2.1) (2.2)
investment income and other 12.7 7.9 5.9

 income before income taxes 146.4 160.8 153.3
income tax expense 54.1 58.5 60.1

 net income $ 92.3 $ 102.3 $ 93.2

income per common share — basic and diluted $ 1.49 $ 1.66 $ 1.49
Weighted average common shares outstanding — basic and diluted 61.9 61.7 62.5
cash dividends per common share* $ 0.75 $ 0.74 $ 0.365

* our first dividend as a stand-alone public company was paid June 30, 2008. accordingly, there are no dividends reported for the first two quarters of fiscal  
year 2008.

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hillenbrand, inc.

conSolidaTed balance SHeeTS
(amounts in millions)

September 30,

2010 2009

aSSeTS
Current Assets
 cash and cash equivalents $ 98.4 $ 35.2
 Trade receivables, net 109.0 85.2
 inventories, net 64.9 42.5
 auction rate securities and related Put right — 30.1
 interest receivable from Forethought Financial Group, inc. 10.0 10.0
 deferred income taxes 25.1 21.5
 other current assets 15.4 8.4

  Total current assets 322.8 232.9
Property, net 109.6 85.3
intangible assets, net 423.0 16.3
auction rate securities 11.9 18.8
note and interest receivable from Forethought Financial Group, inc., long-term portion 134.8 132.8
investments 18.2 18.8
deferred income taxes — 35.0
other assets 31.8 21.2

  Total Assets $ 1,052.1 $ 561.1

liabiliTieS
Current Liabilities
 revolving credit facility, current portion $ — $ 60.0
 Trade accounts payable 26.9 13.1
 accrued compensation 35.7 25.6
 accrued customer rebates and advances 27.1 18.8
 other current liabilities 28.3 17.4

  Total current liabilities 118.0 134.9
long-term debt, less current portion above 403.4 —
accrued pension and postretirement healthcare, long-term portion 88.7 84.5
deferred income taxes 35.7 —
other long-term liabilities 34.4 37.7

  Total Liabilities 680.2 257.1

commitments and contingencies (note 12)
SHareHolderS’ eQuiTY
common stock, no par value, 199.0 shares authorized; 63.1 and 62.8 shares issued, 62.3 and 61.9 shares  
 outstanding, of which 0.6 and 0.3 are restricted at September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively — —
additional paid-in-capital 304.9 297.6
retained earnings 124.8 79.3
Treasury stock, at cost; 0.8 and 0.9 shares at September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively (14.8) (17.5)
accumulated other comprehensive loss (43.0) (55.4)

  Total Shareholders’ Equity 371.9 304.0

Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 1,052.1 $ 561.1

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hillenbrand, inc.

conSolidaTed STaTemenTS oF caSH FloWS
(amounts in millions)

Fiscal Year ended September 30,

2010 2009 2008

Operating Activities:
net income $ 92.3 $ 102.3 $ 93.2
adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash flows from operating activities:
 depreciation and amortization 28.5 18.6 19.1
 Provision (benefit) for deferred income taxes (18.5) 3.2 (3.1)
 net loss (gain) on disposal or impairment of property 3.0 0.2 (0.1)
 net loss (gain) on auction rate securities, related Put right, and investments 2.4 — 0.8
 interest income on Forethought note receivable, net of cash received (2.0) (12.4) (5.8)
 equity in net (income) loss from affiliates (3.1) 5.4 —
 distribution of earnings from affiliates 0.3 0.3 —
 Stock-based compensation 7.6 6.7 1.6
 Trade accounts receivable (4.9) 3.0 2.0
 inventories 20.9 6.1 (1.7)
 other current assets (3.1) 2.4 (3.6)
 Trade accounts payable 0.9 (2.6) (2.5)
 accrued expenses and other current liabilities 2.7 (3.6) (1.8)
 income taxes prepaid or payable (3.4) — 7.7
 defined benefit plan funding (6.5) (9.5) (6.3)
 defined benefit plan expense 9.5 4.7 4.9
 other, net (8.4) (1.6) (2.6)

  net cash provided by operating activities 118.2 123.2 101.8

Investing Activities:
 capital expenditures, both tangible and intangible (16.3) (10.0) (10.0)
 acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (371.5) — (0.4)
 Proceeds on disposal of property 0.3 0.2 0.5
 Proceeds from redemption and sales of auction rate securities and investments 37.2 2.3 4.3
 capital contributions to affiliates (0.3) (0.6) —
 return of investment capital from affiliates 1.9 2.8 1.4

  net cash used in investing activities (348.7) (5.3) (4.2)

Financing Activities:
 Proceeds from revolving credit facilities 464.7 40.0 265.0
 repayments on revolving credit facilities (276.8) (80.0) (165.0)
 Proceeds from issuance of senior unsecured notes 148.4 — —
 Payment of dividends on common stock (46.2) (45.6) (22.8)
 Purchase of common stock — (12.5) (6.2)
 Proceeds from issuance of common stock 1.8 0.7 0.4
 cash received from parent in connection with separation — — 125.4
 net change in advances to former parent — — (290.3)
 Financing costs and other (2.1) — (0.9)

  net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 289.8 (97.4) (94.4)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 3.9 — (0.4)

Net cash flows 63.2 20.5 2.8
Cash and cash equivalents:
 at beginning of period 35.2 14.7 11.9

 at end of period $ 98.4 $ 35.2 $ 14.7

cash paid during the period for interest $ 1.8 $ 2.1 $ 2.0
cash paid during the period (net of refunds) for income taxes (including amounts paid to  
 our former parent) $ 75.7 $ 54.7 $ 63.4

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hillenbrand, inc.

conSolidaTed STaTemenTS oF SHareHolderS’ eQuiTY and comPreHenSiVe income
(amounts in millions)

common Stock additional 
Paid-in retained Treasury Stock

accumulated 
other 

comprehensive
Parent 

company
Shares amount capital earnings Shares amount loss investment Total

Balance at September 30, 2007 — $ — $   — $   — — $      — $(12.6) $  193.5 $ 180.9
  adoption of accounting standard for uncertain income  

 tax positions — — — — — — — (1.8) (1.8)
 change in parent company investment — — — — — — — (290.3) (290.3)
 comprehensive income:
   change in items not recognized as a component of  

  net pension and postretirement healthcare costs  
(net of taxes of $3.5) — — — — — — (5.7) — (5.7)

  change in foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — — — — —
   change in unrealized gain on derivative instruments  

 (net of taxes of $0.2) — — — — — — 0.3 — 0.3
   change in net unrealized gain on available for sale  

 securities (net of taxes of $0.2) — — — — — — (0.3) — (0.3)
  net income generated prior to separation — — — — — — — 47.3 47.3
  net income generated subsequent to separation — — — 45.9 — — — — 45.9
 Total comprehensive income 87.5
 issuance of common stock related to stock awards or options — — 0.4 — — — — — 0.4
 Stock-based compensation — — 1.6 — — — — — 1.6
 contribution of net assets from Hill-rom — — 1.0 — — — 3.5 334.6 339.1
 issuance of common stock to Shareholders of Hill-rom 62.4 — 283.3 — — — — (283.3) —
 Purchases of common stock — — — — 0.3 (6.2) — — (6.2)
 dividends on common stock — — 0.1 (22.9) — — — — (22.8)
Balance at September 30, 2008 62.4 — 286.4 23.0 0.3 (6.2) (14.8) — 288.4
 comprehensive income:
   change in items not recognized as a component of  

  net pension and postretirement healthcare costs  
(net of taxes of $20.5) — — — — — — (35.5) — (35.5)

  change in foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — — (0.5) — (0.5)
   change in unrealized gain on derivative instruments  

 (net of taxes of $0.6) — — — — — — (1.1) — (1.1)
   change in net unrealized gain on available for sale  

 securities (net of taxes of $0.6) — — — — — — 1.1 — 1.1
  net income — — — 102.3 — — — — 102.3
Total comprehensive income 66.3
issuance of common stock related to stock awards or options 0.4 — (0.5) — (0.1) 1.2 — — 0.7
Stock-based compensation — — 6.7 — — — — — 6.7
adjustment to net assets from Hill-rom — — 4.6 — — — (4.6) — —
Purchases of common stock — — — — 0.7 (12.5) — — (12.5)
dividends on common stock — — 0.4 (46.0) — — — — (45.6)
Balance at September 30, 2009 62.8 — 297.6 79.3 0.9 (17.5) (55.4) — 304.0
 comprehensive income:
   change in items not recognized as a component of  

  net pension and postretirement healthcare costs  
(net of taxes of $0.5) — — — — — — (1.0) — (1.0)

  change in foreign currency translation adjustment — — — — — — 12.2 — 12.2
   change in unrealized gain on derivative instruments  

 (net of taxes of $0.4) — — — — — — 0.7 — 0.7
   change in net unrealized gain on available for sale  

 securities (net of taxes of $0.3) — — — — — — 0.5 — 0.5
  net income — — — 92.3 — — — — 92.3
Total comprehensive income 104.7
issuance of common stock related to stock awards or options 0.3 — (0.9) — (0.1) 2.7 — — 1.8
Stock-based compensation — — 7.6 — — — — — 7.6
dividends on common stock — — 0.6 (46.8) — — — — (46.2)
Balance at September 30, 2010 63.1 $ — $304.9 $124.8 0.8 $(14.8) $(43.0) $    — $ 371.9

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Hillenbrand, inc.

noTeS To conSolidaTed Financial STaTemenTS
(dollars in millions, except per share data)

1.  diSTribuTion and deScriPTion oF  
THe buSineSS

until the close of business on march 31, 2008, Hillenbrand, inc. 
(“Hillenbrand”), formerly known as batesville Holdings, inc., was 
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hillenbrand industries, inc. after 
the close of business on march 31, 2008, Hillenbrand industries, 
inc., at the approval of its board of directors, completed a tax  
free pro-rata distribution to its shareholders of 100% of the  
common shares of Hillenbrand (the “distribution”). effective 
april 1, 2008, Hillenbrand began trading on the new York Stock 
exchange (“nYSe”) under the symbol “Hi” as an independent 
public company. contemporaneously, Hillenbrand industries, 
inc. changed its name to Hill-rom Holdings, inc. (“Hill-rom”). 
The distribution is described in detail in our information state-
ment dated march 17, 2008, filed as exhibit 99.1 to our current 
report on Form 8-K filed with the u.S. Securities and exchange 
commission (“Sec”) on march 18, 2008. unless the context oth-
erwise requires, the terms “the company,” “we,” “our” and “us” 
refers to Hillenbrand. The term “Hill-rom” or “parent” refers to 
Hill-rom Holdings, inc. as well as its predecessor, Hillenbrand 
industries, inc.

Significant Components of the Distribution

in connection with the distribution, we executed the following 
transactions:

 •  Hill-rom transferred to us on march 31, 2008:

  •  investments in private equity limited partnerships and 
common stock (carrying value of $27.9) and a note receiv-
able from Forethought Financial Group, inc. (carrying 
value of $124.6).

  •  auction rate securities (carrying value of $55.3 plus interest 
receivable of $0.8).

  •  net unrealized gains on available for sale securities (net of 
taxes), of $3.3 as a component of accumulated other com-
prehensive loss.

  •  a joint ownership interest in the corporate conference cen-
ter facilities (carrying value of $1.2) and the corporate air-
craft (carrying value of $6.3), in addition to other fixed 
assets (carrying value of $0.6).

  •  Various deferred income tax assets and liabilities associated 
with the assets described above (net asset carrying value of 
$0.4), our share of prepaid income taxes (carrying value of 
$14.6), and income taxes payable to Hill-rom generated by 
our operations through the date of separation (carrying 
value of $19.2).

  •  cash of $110.0 and a $15.4 receivable, which we collected 
from Hill-rom in april 2008.

 •  Hill-rom distributed approximately 62.3 million shares of  
our common stock to holders of Hill-rom common stock. 
approximately 0.1 million additional shares of our common 
stock were issued in connection with certain Hill-rom 
restricted stock units that vested in connection with the 
distribution. additionally, certain stock based awards previ-
ously issued in Hill-rom common stock outlined in note 11 
were converted into awards based in our common stock.

 •  The parent company investment account of $283.3 immedi-
ately prior to the separation was reclassified to additional 
paid-in capital.

 •  Subsequent to the distribution, we finalized the split of our 
pension plan obligations and certain income tax balances 
with Hill-rom. These activities resulted in subsequent 
adjustments that increased additional paid-in capital by $1.0 
and reduced accumulated other comprehensive loss by an 
additional $0.2 as of September 30, 2008.

 •  Subsequent to the distribution, we finalized the amounts 
related to accumulated other comprehensive loss transferred 
to us by Hill-rom. This resulted in a subsequent reclassifica-
tion adjustment that increased other comprehensive loss and 
increased additional paid in capital by $4.6 as of September 
30, 2009.

Nature of Operations

Hillenbrand, inc. is the parent holding company of its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, batesville Services, inc. (“batesville”) and 
K-Tron international, inc. (“K-Tron”) which are more fully 
described below. Hillenbrand oversees the operations of its sub-
sidiaries, allocates resources among them, and manages their  
capital structures.

Through batesville, we are the leader in the north american 
death care products industry where we manufacture, distribute, 
and sell funeral service products to licensed funeral directors who 
operate licensed funeral homes. our batesville branded products 
consist primarily of burial caskets but also include cremation cas-
kets, burial vaults, containers and urns, selection room display 
fixturing for funeral homes, and other personalization and memo-
rialization products and services, including web based appli-
cations and the creation and hosting of websites for licensed 
funeral homes.

Through the acquisition of K-Tron, we design, produce, market, 
and service material handling equipment and systems for a wide 
variety of industrial markets, particularly in the plastics, food, 
chemical, pharmaceutical, power generation, coal mining, pulp 
and paper, wood and forest products, and biomass energy genera-
tion industries. K-Tron serves the bulk solids material handling 
market, which focuses primarily on feeding and pneumatic con-
veying equipment, size reduction equipment, conveying systems, 
and screening equipment.
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2.  SummarY oF SiGniFicanT accounTinG PolicieS

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements reflect the consolidated 
historical results of operations, financial position, and cash flows 
of the company (including K-Tron subsequent to its acquisition 
on april 1, 2010, and those of the former funeral services business 
of Hill-rom). management believes the assumptions underlying 
the consolidated financial statements, including the assumptions 
utilized to allocate general corporate overhead costs from Hill-rom, 
are reasonable. However, these consolidated financial statements 
do not include all of the actual expenses that would have been 
incurred had the company been a stand-alone entity during the 
periods prior to the distribution on march 31, 2008, and do not 
reflect the consolidated results of operations, financial position, 
and cash flows as if the company had been a stand-alone com-
pany during those earlier periods. See note 6 for further informa-
tion regarding allocated expenses.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the 
company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Significant inter-
company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in con-
solidation. Prior to the close of business on march 31, 2008,  
our financial statements were considered “combined” (rather  
than consolidated) because of the nature of our legal structure 
prior to the distribution. We refer to these earlier periods as  
“consolidated” for comparative and discussion purposes in this 
Form 10-K.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the u.S. requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial state-
ments and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during 
the reporting period. accordingly, management exercises judg-
ment in making these estimates. actual results could differ  
from those estimates. examples of such estimates include, but are 
not limited to, the collectability of our note receivable from 
Forethought Financial Group, inc. (“Forethought”), the establish-
ment of reserves related to our customer rebates, allowance for 
doubtful accounts and early pay discounts, inventories, income 
taxes, accrued litigation, self insurance reserves, and the estima-
tion of fair value associated with our auction rate securities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Subsequent to the distribution, we instituted our own cash man-
agement program, including the overnight transfer of account  
balances into money market funds. cash and cash equivalents are 
stated at cost, which approximates fair value, and include short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less.

Trade Receivables

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount 
and generally do not bear interest, unless they become past due. 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is our best estimate of the 
amount of probable credit losses and collection risk in our existing 
accounts receivable portfolio. The allowance for cash discounts 
and sales returns reserve are based upon historical experience and 
trends. account balances are charged against the allowance when 
we believe it is probable the receivable will not be recovered. We 
do not have any off-balance sheet credit exposure related to our 
customers. We generally hold our trade accounts receivable until 
they are paid. at September 30, 2010 and 2009, we had reserves 
against our trade receivables of approximately $20.1 and $17.3, 
respectively.

Inventories

inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. inventory 
costs are determined by the last-in, first-out (liFo) method for 
approximately 57% and 83% of our inventories at September 30, 
2010 and 2009, respectively. costs of remaining inventories have 
been determined principally by the first-in, first-out (FiFo) 
method. inventories consisted of the following:

September 30,

2010 2009

raw materials and components $26.6 $11.5
Work in process 6.7 0.5
Finished goods 34.8 31.6
reserves for excess or obsolescence (3.2) (1.1)

 Total inventories $64.9 $42.5

if the FiFo method of inventory accounting, which approximates 
current cost, had been used for all inventories, they would have 
been approximately $12.3 and $13.2 higher than reported at 
September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Properties

Property is recorded at cost and depreciated over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets using principally the straight-line method. 
ranges of estimated useful lives are generally as follows:

land and land improvements 6 years
buildings and building improvements 10–40 years
machinery and equipment 3–10 years

When property is retired from service or otherwise disposed of, 
the cost and related amount of accumulated depreciation are elim-
inated. The difference, if any, between the net asset value and the 
proceeds on sale are charged or credited to income. Total depre-
ciation expense for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008 was $17.2, 
$14.9 and $15.3 respectively. The major components of property 
and the related accumulated depreciation were as follows:

September 30, 2010 September 30, 2009

Cost
Accumulated 
Depreciation cost

accumulated 
depreciation

land and land 
improvements $ 14.2 $  (3.6) $  7.4 $  (3.4)

buildings and build-
ing equipment   89.0   (49.6)   73.8   (46.9)

machinery and 
equipment  246.1  (186.5)  236.4  (182.0)

 Total $349.3 $(239.7) $317.6 $(232.3)

Intangible Assets

intangible assets are stated at cost and consist predominantly of 
goodwill, trade names and customer relationships. With the 
exception of goodwill and trade names (which have indefinite 
lives), our intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis 
over periods ranging from 5 to 22 years (see note 3 for K-Tron 
specific intangible assets). We review intangible assets for impair-
ment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value may not be recoverable. For intangible assets 
that amortize, an impairment loss would be recognized when the 
estimated future undiscounted cash flows expected to result from 
the use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than the 
carrying amount.

We assess the carrying value of goodwill and non-amortizing 
trade names annually, during the third quarter of each fiscal year, 
or sooner if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 
carrying value of a reporting unit may not be recoverable. For the 
purposes of that assessment, we have determined that we currently 
have four reporting units. based upon our assessment during the 
quarter ended June 30, 2010, no impairments existed.

a summary of intangible assets and the related accumulated 
amortization is as follows:

September 30, 2010 September 30, 2009

Cost
Accumulated 
Amortization cost

accumulated 
amortization

Goodwill $196.4 $      N/A $ 5.7 $  n/a
Trade names,  

indefinite lives 50.6 N/A — n/a
Trade names, 

amortizing 5.9 (4.4) 5.9 (3.8)
customer 

relationships 156.7 (5.0) 1.9 (0.8)
Technology,  

including patents 16.5 (1.7) 0.1 —
Software 30.9 (23.1) 27.4 (20.3)
other 2.0 (1.8) 0.3 (0.1)

  Total $459.0 $(36.0) $ 41.3 $(25.0)

Total amortization expense for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008 
was $11.0, $3.6 and $3.7, respectively. based upon intangible 
assets in service at September 30, 2010, amortization expense is 
expected to approximate the following for each of the next five 
fiscal years and thereafter: $15.3 in 2011, $13.8 in 2012, $12.6 in 
2013, $11.6 in 2014, $9.7 in 2015, and $113.0 thereafter.

Auction Rate Securities

at September 30, 2010 and 2009, we held a portfolio of auction 
rate securities (“arS”) (consisting of highly rated tax exempt  
state and municipal securities, the majority of which are collat-
eralized by student loans guaranteed by the u.S. government 
under the Federal Family education loan Program). as of 
September 30, 2010, the underlying securities in the portfolio 
consist of creditworthy borrowers with aaa or a3 debt ratings. 
These investments are recorded at fair value in accordance with 
accounting standards of accounting for investments in debt and 
equity securities.

in november 2008, we received an enforceable, non-transferable 
right (the “Put”) from ubS Financial Services (“ubS”) that 
allowed us to sell to ubS ($28.4 fair value at September 30, 2009) 
our then existing ubS arS at par value ($30.1 at September 30, 
2009) plus accrued interest.

because the Put had value, we were required to record it on our 
books as an asset. Therefore, in accordance with accounting stan-
dards for the fair value option for financial assets and financial 
liabilities, we elected to report the Put at its then estimated fair 
value and record subsequent changes in fair value as a component 
of “investment income and other” within the consolidated state-
ments of income. also, because we intended to sell these securities  
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to ubS at par value, in accordance with accounting standards for 
certain investments in debt and equity securities, we reclassified 
the arS related to the Put from “available-for-sale” to “trading” 
securities. as trading securities, the changes in fair value corre-
sponding to the ubS related arS (previously recorded as a com-
ponent of accumulated other comprehensive loss) were recorded  
as a component of “investment income and other” within our 
consolidated statements of income. We made these elections so 
that the effects of changes in the fair value of the ubS related 
arS and the related Put would substantially offset within our 
statement of income, thereby limiting the volatility we might 

otherwise have experienced. on June 30, 2010, we exercised the 
Put, and all remaining ubS arS were redeemed at par.

during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, we determined that we 
no longer intend to hold the remaining arS a sufficient period to 
obtain a full recovery and an other than temporary impairment 
exists. accordingly, an impairment charge of $2.9 was recorded 
based upon the estimated fair value of the portfolio. Since these 
arS were transferred to us in connection with the distribution, 
no income from these assets was earned by us in any period prior 
to april 1, 2008.

The following table presents the activity related to our arS and the Put right:
arS Put (Gain)

a b rightc aocld losse

balance at September 30, 2008 $  51.1 $    — $   — $  1.6
change in fair value prior to Put right (4.5) — — 4.5 $  —
Gain on receipt of Put right — — 3.7 — (3.7)
Transfer to trading securities (26.8) 26.8 — (3.8) 3.8
change in fair value after Put right 0.8 2.1 (2.0) (0.8) (0.1)
Sales or redemptions (1.8) (0.5) — — —

balance at September 30, 2009 18.8 28.4 1.7 1.5 $  —

change in fair value (1.6) 1.7 (1.7) (1.5) $ 3.1
Sales or redemptions (5.3) (30.1) — — —

Balance at September 30, 2010 $ 11.9 $  — $  — $  — $     3.1

a     — auction rate securities; available-for-sale, at fair value
b      — auction rate securities; trading, at fair value
c   — Put right; at fair value
d — aocl; amount included within accumulated other comprehensive loss (pre-tax)
e      — (Gain) loss; amount included within “investment income (loss) and other” (pre-tax)

See note 14 for information related to the determination of fair value related to our arS.

Note Receivable from Forethought Financial Group, Inc. (the 
“Forethought Note”)

The Forethought note primarily represents seller provided financ-
ing to Forethought, the entity that purchased Hill-rom’s former 
Forethought Financial Services, inc. subsidiary. The Forethought 
note was transferred to us by Hill-rom in connection with the 
distribution. as of September 30, 2010, the carrying value of the 
Forethought note consists of the Forethought note’s face value of 
$107.7 and interest receivable of $37.1. The Forethought note car-
ries an increasing rate of interest over its original ten-year term 
beginning June 2004, with interest accruing at 6.0% for the first 
five years and compounding semi-annually. The stated interest 
rate increases to 8.0% in June 2009, and to 10.0% in June 2011. 
The stated interest rates when taken together with amortization  
of the discount results in an effective interest rate of 9.5% over the  

life of the Forethought note. no payments of interest or principal  
were due under the Forethought note until fiscal 2010, at which 
time annual payments of $10.0 are required, unless deferred under 
terms of the Forethought note. on July 1, 2010, Forethought 
remitted its first annual interest installment of $10.0. all out-
standing amounts are due at maturity, which is scheduled to be 
July 2014 unless extended by Forethought for a period of up to 
two additional years at an interest rate of 12.0%.

We evaluate the Forethought note for impairment based upon 
collectability considering current economic conditions, credit loss 
experience, and other criteria. Performing an impairment evalua-
tion of the Forethought note requires us to exercise significant 
judgments as to whether Forethought has the financial where 
withal to make the scheduled payments based upon events or con-
ditions that we are aware of existing on or prior to the balance  
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sheet date. The Forethought note agreement provides us access  
to various kinds of financial information from Forethought 
including:

 •  available capital and surplus within Forethought’s primary 
insurance operations, an indicator of liquidity of the entity;

 •  embedded Value, an indicator of enterprise value and an 
indicator of the ability of the entity to raise capital;

 •  Forethought’s recent investment portfolio results and the 
quality of the related investments;

 •  GaaP equity, an indicator of financial strength; and

 •  recent GaaP and Statutory financial results (income, loss 
and related cash flow effects).

We utilize this information to assess the financial strength of 
Forethought and our prospects for getting paid. if, based upon 
this evaluation, it is probable that the Forethought note will not 
be paid in accordance with its terms, it is deemed impaired. upon 
the determination of impairment, if any, an impairment reserve is 
established based upon the then carrying value of the Forethought 
note and the estimated discounted cash flows we expect to receive 
on an impaired basis.

because the Forethought note was transferred to us in connection 
with the distribution, no income from this asset was earned by us 
in any period prior to april 1, 2008.

Investments

our investment portfolio consists primarily of investments in  
private equity limited partnerships and common stock (carry-
ing value of $18.2 and $18.8 at September 30, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively).

We use the equity method of accounting for substantially all  
our private equity limited partnerships, with earnings or losses 
reported within the line item “investment income and other” in 
our consolidated statements of income, including our portion of 
any unrealized gains or losses experienced by these affiliates. 
earnings and carrying values for investments accounted for under 
the equity method are determined based upon financial state-
ments provided by the investment companies. certain of these 
investments require commitments by us to provide additional 
funding of up to $3.1. The timing of this funding is uncertain but 
is expected to occur over the next three to five years.

When an investment is sold, we report the difference between the 
sales proceeds and its carrying value (determined based on specific 
identification) as an investment gain or loss. We regularly evaluate 
all investments for possible impairment based on current eco-
nomic conditions and other criteria. if there is a decline in an  
investment’s net realizable value that is other-than-temporary, the  

decline is recognized as a realized loss, and the cost basis of the 
investment is reduced to its estimated fair value. The evaluation  
of investments for impairment requires judgments to be made 
including (i) the identification of potentially impaired invest-
ments; (ii) the determination of their estimated fair value; and  
(iii) the assessment of whether any decline in estimated fair value 
is other-than-temporary.

because the investments were transferred to us in connection with 
the distribution, no income from these assets was earned by us in 
any period prior to april 1, 2008.

Environmental Liabilities

expenditures that relate to an existing condition caused by past 
operations, and which do not contribute to current or future rev-
enue generation, are expensed. a reserve is established when it is 
probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the 
loss can be reasonably estimated. These reserves are determined 
without consideration of possible loss recoveries from third par-
ties. more specifically, financial management, in consultation 
with its environmental engineer, estimates the range of liability 
based on current interpretations of environmental laws and regu-
lations. For each site in which a company unit is involved, a 
determination is made of the specific measures that are believed to 
be required to remediate the site, the estimated total cost to carry 
out the remediation plan and the periods in which we will make 
payments toward the remediation plan. We do not make an esti-
mate of general or specific inflation for environmental matters 
since the number of sites is small, the magnitude of costs to exe-
cute remediation plans is not significant, and the estimated time 
frames to remediate sites are not believed to be lengthy.

Specific costs included in environmental expense and reserves 
include site assessment, development of a remediation plan, clean-
up costs, post-remediation expenditures, monitoring, fines, penal-
ties, and legal fees. reserve amounts represent the expected 
undiscounted future cash outf lows associated with such plans  
and actions, and amounted to $0.4 at both September 30, 2010 
and 2009.

expenditures that relate to current operations are charged to 
expense.

Judgment Sharing Agreement (“JSA”)

as discussed in note 6, in march 2008, we entered into a JSa 
with Hill-rom related to antitrust litigation matters discussed  
in note 12. We apply appropriate accounting standards for con-
tingencies in evaluating and accounting for this JSa. The JSa 
apportions responsibility between us and Hill-rom for any poten-
tial liabilities associated with that litigation.
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Self-Insurance

We are generally self-insured up to certain limits for product/ 
general liability, workers’ compensation, auto liability, and profes-
sional liability insurance programs, as well as certain employee 
health benefits including medical, drug, and dental. These poli-
cies have deductibles and self-insured retentions ranging from 
$0.5 to $1.0 per occurrence, depending upon the type of coverage 
and policy period. our policy is to estimate reserves based upon a 
number of factors including known claims, estimated incurred 
but not reported claims, and outside actuarial analysis, which are 
based on historical information along with certain assumptions 
about future events. Such estimated reserves are classified as other 
current liabilities and other long-term liabilities within the con-
solidated balance sheets.

Preferred Stock

The company has authorized 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock 
(no par value), of which no shares were issued at September 30, 
2010 and 2009.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

reporting of comprehensive income requires the net-of-tax effect 
on foreign currency translation adjustments, unrealized gains or 
losses on derivative instruments and available for sale securities, 
along with pension or other defined benefit postretirement plans’ 
actuarial gains/losses and prior service costs to be included as a 
component of accumulated other comprehensive loss.

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss, each 
net of tax (corresponding to income tax rates from between 33.2% 
to 37.3%, excluding cumulative foreign currency translation 
adjustment), were as follows:

September 30,

2010 2009

cumulative foreign currency translation 
adjustments $ 9.1 $ (3.1)

items not recognized as a component of net  
pension and postretirement benefit costs (52.0) (51.0)

net unrealized (loss) on derivative instruments (0.1) (0.8)
net unrealized (loss) on available for sale securities — (0.5)

  Total $ (43.0) $ (55.4)

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue in accordance with Sec Staff accounting 
bulletin (Sab) no. 104, “revenue recognition.” revenue for our 
products is most often recognized upon delivery of the products 
to the customer, but in no case prior to when the risk of loss and 
other risks and rewards of ownership are transferred. net revenues 
reflect gross revenues less sales discounts, customer rebates, sales 

incentives, and product returns. in accordance with accounting 
standards for consideration given by a vendor to a customer 
(including a reseller of the vendor’s products), we record reserves 
for customer rebates, typically based upon projected customer vol-
umes. in addition, in connection with obtaining long-term supply 
agreements from our funeral home customers, we may offer sales 
incentives in the form of custom showrooms and fixtures. costs 
associated with these sales incentives are amortized over the term 
of the related agreement, typically 3 to 5 years. our sales terms 
generally offer customers various rights of return. We record 
reserves for estimated product returns in accordance with the 
standards for revenue recognition when a right of return exists.

With the addition of K-Tron, we now periodically incur certain 
revenue transactions, where on occasion, revenue is recognized 
prior to shipment in accordance with accounting standards com-
monly referred to as “bill and hold” transactions. revenue for bill 
and hold transactions is recorded prior to shipment only when all 
of the following conditions are met:

 •  risk of ownership has passed to the buyer;

 •  The buyer has made a fixed commitment to purchase the 
goods in writing;

 •  The buyer requested the transaction to be on a bill and  
hold basis;

 •  There is a fixed and reasonable delivery date;

 •  no specific performance obligations by the seller remain;

 •  The goods are segregated from other inventory and not avail-
able to others; and

 •  The product is complete and ready for shipment.

in addition, we also consider the following factors in determining 
whether to recognize revenue:

 •  The date by which we expect payment and whether we have 
modified our normal billing and credit terms to the buyer;

 •  The business line’s history with bill and hold transactions;

 •  Whether the buyer must bear risk of loss;

 •  Whether our custodial function is insurable and insured; and

 •  The business reasons for the bill and hold arrangement have 
not introduced a contingency to the buyer’s fixed commit-
ment to purchase the goods.

additionally, some of our revenues associated with K-Tron involve 
multiple elements (i.e. various components to an overall larger 
order being manufactured for the customer). Periodically these 
elements are transferred to the customer at different times pursu-
ant to the customer’s requirements. in these circumstances we 
may estimate the stand-alone value of the individual elements in 
order to determine the appropriate amount of revenue to recog-
nize on the transferred elements.
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Cost of Goods Sold

cost of goods sold consists primarily of purchased material costs, 
fixed manufacturing expense, variable direct labor, and overhead 
costs. it also includes costs associated with the distribution and 
delivery of products to our funeral home customers.

Research and Development Costs

research and development costs are expensed as incurred as a 
component of operating expenses and were $3.8, $3.8 and $3.6 
for fiscal years 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Warranty Costs

We provide for the estimated warranty cost of a product at the 
time revenue is recognized. Warranty expense is normally accrued 
as a percentage of sales based upon historical information, but 
may include specific provisions for known conditions when iden-
tified. Warranty obligations are affected by actual product per-
formance and by material usage and service costs incurred in 
making product corrections. our warranty provision takes into 
account our best estimate of the amounts necessary to settle 
future and existing claims on products sold as of the balance sheet 
date. The K-Tron business generally offers a one-year warranty  
on a majority of its products, and engages in extensive product 
quality programs and processes, including the active monitoring 
and evaluation of the quality of its component suppliers, in an 
effort to minimize warranty obligations. Warranty costs were not 
material to our consolidated financial results for fiscal years 2010, 
2009, and 2008.

Income Taxes

our operating results had historically been included in Hill-rom’s 
consolidated u.S. income tax returns for periods prior to the 
distribution. in periods subsequent to the distribution, we filed 
our own u.S. consolidated income tax returns. Foreign operations 
file income tax returns in a number of jurisdictions. in periods 
prior to the distribution, the provision for income taxes had been 
determined on a separate return basis as if we were a separate, 
stand-alone taxpayer rather than a member of Hill-rom’s con-
solidated income tax return group. deferred income taxes are 
computed in accordance with rules under accounting standards 
for income taxes and reflect the net tax effects of temporary dif-
ferences between the financial reporting carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities and the corresponding income tax amounts. 
We have a variety of deferred income tax assets in numerous  
tax jurisdictions. These deferred income tax assets are subject to 
periodic assessment as to recoverability and if it is determined that 
it is more likely than not that the benefits will not be realized, 
valuation allowances are recognized. in evaluating whether it is 
more likely than not that we would recover these deferred income 

tax assets, future taxable income, the reversal of existing tempo-
rary differences, and tax planning strategies are considered.

on october 1, 2007, we adopted the new standard for uncer-
tainty in income taxes, which addresses the accounting and dis-
closure of uncertain income tax positions. This standard prescribes 
a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the finan-
cial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position 
taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. under this standard, 
the difference between the tax benefit recognized in the financial 
statements for a position and the tax benefit claimed in the tax 
return is referred to as an unrecognized tax benefit.

The adoption of this standard was reflected as a cumulative effect 
of a change in accounting principle and resulted in a decrease to 
beginning parent company equity at october 1, 2007, of $1.8. 
The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits at that date was 
$7.4, which included $3.7 that, if recognized, would impact the 
effective tax rate in future periods. The remaining amount relates 
to items which if recognized, would not impact our effective tax 
rate. We account for accrued interest and penalties related to 
unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. as of the date of 
adoption accrued interest and penalties were $0.2.

Stock-Based Compensation

under the fair value provisions of the accounting standards, stock-
based compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on 
the value of the award and is recognized as expense over the vest-
ing period. in order to determine the fair value of stock options on 
the date of grant, we utilize the binomial model. inherent in this 
model are assumptions related to a volatility factor, expected life, 
risk-free interest rate, dividend yield, and expected forfeitures. 
The risk-free interest rate is based on factual data derived from 
public sources. The volatility factor, expected life, dividend yield, 
and expected forfeiture assumptions require significant judgment 
utilizing historical information, peer data and future expectations.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

We use derivative financial instruments to manage the economic 
impact of f luctuations in currency exchange rates. derivative 
financial instruments related to currency exchange rates include 
forward intercompany purchase and sale agreements which gen-
erally have terms no greater than fifteen months. We estimate  
the fair value of derivative financial instruments based on the 
amount that we would receive or pay to terminate the agreements 
at the reporting date. The aggregate notional amount of our  
cash flow currency derivative instruments outstanding was $11.8 
and $11.2 at September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The fair 
value of these contracts resulted in liabilities of ($0.5) and ($1.1) at 
September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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To account for our derivative financial instruments, we follow 
accounting standards established for derivative instruments and 
hedging activities. derivative financial instruments are recog-
nized on the consolidated balance sheets as either assets or liabili-
ties and are measured at fair value. changes in the fair value of 
derivatives are recorded each period in earnings or accumulated 
other comprehensive loss, depending on whether a derivative is 
designed and effective as part of a hedge transaction, and if it  
is, the type of hedge transaction. Gains and losses on derivative 
instruments reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss are 
subsequently included in earnings in the periods in which earn-
ings are affected by the hedged item. These activities have not had 
a material effect on our financial position or results of operations 
for the periods presented herein.

Foreign Currency

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are trans-
lated into u.S. dollars at current rates of exchange at the end of 
the reporting period, with translation gains and losses being 
recorded as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. revenue 
and expense are translated at average rates prevailing during the 
reporting period.

Business Acquisitions and Related Business Acquisition Costs

assets and liabilities associated with business acquisitions are 
recorded at fair value, using the acquisition method of account-
ing. during the acquisition measurement period, we recognize 
additional assets or liabilities if new information is obtained about 
facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date 
that, if then known, would have resulted in the recognition of 
those assets and liabilities as of that date. The measurement period 
will generally not exceed one year from the acquisition date.

business acquisition costs are recognized separately from business 
acquisitions, are expensed as incurred, and are reported as a com-
ponent of operating expenses. We define these costs to include: 
finder’s fees, advisory, legal, accounting, valuation, and other  
professional or consulting fees, as well as travel associated with  
the evaluation and effort to acquire specific businesses. They also 
include initial, non-recurring costs associated with acquisition tax 
planning, retention bonuses, and related integration costs. These 
costs exclude the on-going costs of our business development 
department and other target evaluation costs.

Segment Information

With the addition of K-Tron, we now conduct our operations 
through two reportable business segments: batesville and K-Tron. 
These reporting segments are determined on the basis of how we 
internally report and evaluate financial information used to make  

operating decisions and evaluate results. For external reporting 
purposes, we aggregate operating segments into reportable seg-
ments when they share or have similar economic characteristics 
and include similar products and services, production processes, 
classes of customers, and methods of distribution.

Generally in our management reporting, we record the direct 
costs of business operations to the applicable reporting segment, 
including stock-based compensation, asset impairments, restruc-
turing activities, and business acquisition costs. our corporate 
cost center provides management and administrative services to 
each of our reporting segments. These services primarily include 
treasury management, human resources, legal, business develop-
ment, and other public company support functions such as inter-
nal audit, investor relations, reporting, and tax compliance. With 
limited exception for certain professional services and technology 
costs, we generally do not allocate these types of expenses among 
our reporting segments.

Restructuring Costs

restructuring charges can occur when we take action to exit or 
significantly curtail a part of our operations or change the deploy-
ment of our assets or personnel. When applicable, a restructuring 
charge can consist of an impairment or accelerated depreciation of 
effected assets, severance costs associated with reductions to the 
work force, and charges for legal obligations for which no future 
benefit will be derived.

during the fourth fiscal quarter 2010, we approved a plan to 
restructure the use of our jointly owned aircraft with Hill-rom 
and revised the cost structure of the agreement that provides us 
support services at the related airfield operations. as a result, we 
recorded an impairment charge of $2.9 on our interest in two (of 
four) jointly owned aircraft (aggregate carrying value of $4.6 as of 
September 30, 2010) and $0.1 related to severance. The fair value 
of the impaired aircraft was determined based upon observed 
pricing for similar assets.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards

in october 2009, the Financial accounting Standards board 
(“FaSb”) issued an accounting standards update titled Multiple-
Deliverable Revenue Arrangements (Topic 605, Revenue Recognition), 
a new standard related to the accounting for multiple-deliverable 
arrangements to enable vendors to account for products or services 
(deliverables) separately rather than as a combined unit. This stan-
dard establishes a selling price hierarchy for determining the sell-
ing price of a deliverable, which is based on: (a) vendor-specific 
objective evidence; (b) third-party evidence; or (c) estimates.  
This standard also eliminates the residual method of allocation 
and requires that arrangement consideration be allocated at the  
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inception of the arrangement to all deliverables using the relative 
selling price method. in addition, this standard significantly 
expands required disclosures related to a vendor’s multiple- 
deliverable revenue arrangements. This standard is effective pro-
spectively for revenue arrangements entered into or materially 
modified in fiscal years beginning on or after June 15, 2010 and 
early adoption is permitted. a company may elect, but will not  
be required, to adopt the amendments in this standard retro-
spectively for all prior periods. our adoption of this standard on 
april 1, 2010, had no material impact to our consolidated finan-
cial statements.

in February 2010, the FaSb issued an accounting standards 
update titled Amendments to Certain Recognition and Disclosure 
Requirements (Topic 855, Subsequent Events) which among other 
things amended the accounting standards to remove the require-
ment for an Sec filer to disclose the date through which subse-
quent events have been evaluated. This change alleviates potential 
conflicts between the accounting standards and the Sec’s require-
ments. all of the amendments in this update are effective upon 
issuance of this update.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

in January 2010, the FaSb issued an accounting standard titled 
Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820, 
Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures). This standard revises 
two disclosure requirements concerning fair value measurements 
and clarifies two others. it requires separate presentation of  
significant transfers into and out of levels 1 and 2 of the fair 
value hierarchy and disclosure of the reasons for such transfers.  
it will also require the presentation of purchases, sales, issuances 
and settlements within level 3 on a gross basis rather than a net 
basis. The amendments also clarify that disclosures should be dis-
aggregated by class of asset or liability and that disclosures about 
inputs and valuation techniques should be provided for both 
recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements. our disclo-
sures about fair value measurements are presented in note 14. 
These new disclosure requirements were first effective for our 
financial statements for the period ending december 31, 2009, 
except for the requirement concerning gross presentation of level 
3 activity, which is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
december 15, 2010.

in July 2010, the FaSb issued and accounting standard titled 
Disclosures about the Credit Quality of Financing Receivables and 
the Allowance for Credit Losses (Topic 310, Receivables). The new 
standard requires companies to provide more disclosures about 
the credit quality of their financing receivables, which include  

loans, lease receivables, and other long-term receivables, and the 
credit reserves held against them. The disclosure requirements as 
of the end of a reporting period will be effective for us at the end 
of first quarter of fiscal 2011 (december 31, 2010).

3. acQuiSiTionS

K-Tron Acquisition

on april 1, 2010, we completed the acquisition of K-Tron. an 
aggregate purchase price of $435.2 was paid to K-Tron sharehold-
ers for all of the outstanding stock of K-Tron. This resulted in a 
net cash purchase price of $369.0 when adjusted for $66.2 of 
K-Tron cash acquired (and an enterprise value purchase price of 
$376.0 when further adjusted for $7.0 of K-Tron debt assumed). 
To finance the purchase of K-Tron, we utilized $375.0 of borrow-
ings under our $400 revolving credit facility and cash on hand at 
the date of close.

We believe the acquisition of K-Tron provides several compelling 
benefits to us, including: attractive product, industry and cus-
tomer diversification; a sizable new global platform within the 
bulk solids material handling market; preservation of our high 
quality of earnings and cash flows; improvement of our growth 
potential; meaningful opportunities to improve K-Tron’s financial 
performance through the application of lean business practices; 
and a strong cultural fit for us with a proven management team.

as of april 1, 2010, we had recognized goodwill related to this 
transaction for the excess of cash paid over the fair value of the 
assets acquired. approximately $18.0 of this goodwill will be 
deductible for income tax purposes.

The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase 
price and the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and lia-
bilities assumed at the date of the acquisition:

april 1, 
2010

cash and cash equivalents $ 66.2
current assets, excluding cash and cash equivalents 67.2
Property 30.0
identifiable intangible assets 218.7
Goodwill 185.8
other non-current assets 4.7

 Total assets acquired 572.6

current liabilities 48.1
debt 7.0
deferred income taxes 81.9
other long-term liabilities 0.4

 Total liabilities assumed 137.4

aggregate purchase price $435.2



50

amounts assigned to identifiable intangible assets are being amor-
tized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.  
at april 1, 2010, the amounts assigned and useful lives were  
as follows:

Fair 
Values

Weighted average 
Period over 

Which asset is 
amortized 

(Years)

Trade names $ 50.6 indefinite
customer relationships  150.3 20.6
Technology, including patents   16.1  5.0
backlog    1.7 <1.0

 Total identifiable intangible assets $218.7

The fair value of the intangible assets acquired with K-Tron were 
determined, in accordance with the accounting standards for 
business combinations, based on the estimated fair values using 
valuation techniques consistent with the market approach or 
income approach to measure fair value. The remaining useful 
lives were estimated based on the future economic benefit 
expected to be received from the assets.

Trade receivables acquired in connection with the acquisition 
were $18.1, net of reserves of $1.3. identified contingent liabilities 
assumed in connection with the acquisition were not material to 
our consolidated financial statements.

during the twelve months ended September 30, 2010, we incurred 
$10.5 of business acquisition costs associated with our acquisition 
of K-Tron. These costs have been recorded as a component of 
operating expenses. See note 15 for K-Tron’s financial contri-
bution to our consolidated financial results since the date of 
acquisition.

The unaudited financial information in the table below sum-
marizes the combined results of operations for the company, 
including K-Tron, on a pro forma basis, as though the companies 
had been combined as of the beginning of the periods presented. 
The pro forma financial information is presented for informa-
tional purposes only and may not be indicative of the results of 
operations that would have been achieved if the acquisition had 
actually taken place at the beginning of the periods presented  
and should not be taken as being representative of our future  
consolidated results of operations. The pro forma financial infor-
mation for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, 
includes pro forma adjustments to include additional interest 
expense (assuming we would have been able to borrow $375.0 at 
october 1, 2008, consisting of $226.6 under our $400 revolving 
credit facility and $148.4 from our public debt offering discussed  

in note 5), additional depreciation and amortization expense 
(associated with fair value adjustments to property and intangible  
assets), and excludes business acquisition costs and the non- 
recurring effects of fair value adjustments to inventory and back-
log, all net of estimated income tax effects.

Fiscal Year ended 
September 30,

2010 2009

Pro forma net revenues $830.9 $861.9
Pro forma net income 107.0 110.7
Pro forma diluted earnings per share 1.73 1.79

Other Acquisitions

during the fiscal 2010, batesville completed two acquisitions 
with an aggregate purchase price of $3.0, of which $2.5 had been 
paid. The acquisitions consisted of primarily intangible assets. if 
these acquisitions had occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2009, 
the impact to our consolidated financial statements would not 
have been material.

4. noTeS receiVable From cuSTomerS

We have a number of notes with customers representing long-term 
payment plans that were negotiated to settle unpaid balances. 
These notes generally carry repayment terms up to five years, with 
interest rates varying from 0% to 12%. The notes that carry below 
market interest rates are discounted using current market interest 
rates. The current portion of these notes are included in trade 
receivables and the long-term portion in other assets in the con-
solidated balance sheets. along with our trade receivables, we 
evaluate the recoverability of notes receivable and record allow-
ances thereon, as appropriate.

notes receivable consisted of the following:
September 30,

2010 2009

customer notes, net of discount of  
 $0.2 in 2010 and 2009 $ 8.6 $  9.4
less current portion (4.4) (4.8)

 notes receivable — long-term portion $ 4.2 $  4.6

maturities in fiscal years
 2011 4.4
 2012 1.8
 2013 1.1
 2014 0.6
 2015 0.3
 2016 and beyond 0.4

  Total notes receivable $ 8.6
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5. FinancinG aGreemenTS

The following table presents borrowings under our financing 
agreements:

September 30,

2010 2009

$400 revolving credit facility $255.0 $ 60.0
$150 senior unsecured notes, due  
 July 15, 2020, net of discount 148.4 —

  Total debt 403.4 60.0
less current portion — (60.0)

  long-term debt, less current portion $403.4 $ —

$400 Revolving Credit Facility

in march 2008, we entered into a $400 five-year senior revolv-
ing credit facility (the “Facility”) with a syndicate of banks (the 
“banks”). The term of the Facility expires in march 2013. 
borrowings under the Facility bear interest at variable rates, based 
upon the banks’ base rate or libor plus a margin amount based 
upon our public debt rating (all as provided in the credit agree-
ment governing the Facility). For the fiscal years ended September 
30, 2010 and 2009, the applicable weighted average interest rates 
were 0.8% and 1.5%, respectively. The availability of borrowings 
under the Facility is subject to our ability at the time of borrowing 
to meet certain specified conditions. These conditions include 
compliance with covenants contained in the credit agreement gov-
erning the Facility, absence of default under the Facility, and con-
tinued accuracy of certain representations and warranties 
contained in the credit agreement. The credit agreement contains 
covenants that, among other matters, require the company to 
maintain a ratio of consolidated indebtedness to consolidated 
ebiTda (each as defined in the credit agreement) of not more 
than 3.5:1.0 and a ratio of consolidated ebiTda to interest 
expense of not less than 3.5:1.0. The proceeds of the Facility may 
be used: (i) for working capital and other lawful corporate pur-
poses and (ii) to finance acquisitions. Subsequent to our acquisi-
tion of K-Tron, we have classified the Facility as long term based 
upon the contractual terms of the agreement, although we may 
pay a portion down over the next twelve months.

as of September 30, 2010, we (i) had $6.7 outstanding, undrawn 
letters of credit under the Facility, (ii) were in compliance with all 
covenants set forth in the credit agreement, and (iii) had $138.3  
of remaining borrowing capacity available under the Facility. 
However, under our distribution agreement with Hill-rom, our 
ability to borrow against the Facility for certain strategic transac-
tions such as acquisitions may be limited. For more information, 
see note 6 below.

in addition to the amounts above, we had $6.0 in outstanding 
letters of credit and bank guarantees to other financial institutions 
as of September 30, 2010. a portion of these arrangements is 
secured by our operating facility in Switzerland and $0.3 of 
restricted cash at September 30, 2010.

$150 Senior Unsecured Notes

on July 9, 2010, we issued and sold $150.0 in principal amount 
5.5% fixed rate senior unsecured notes (the “notes”). The notes 
are due July 2020 and were issued in a public offering pursuant to 
our registration Statement on Form S-3 filed with the Sec on 
July 6, 2010.

The notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.5% per year, payable 
semi-annually in cash in arrears, commencing on January 15, 
2011. The notes were issued at an original issue discount (“oid”) 
of $1.6, resulting in an initial carrying value of $148.4 at the date 
of issuance. The oid is being amortized into interest expense 
over the term of the notes using the effective interest rate method. 
The effective interest rate method results in an annual interest 
rate of 5.65%. additionally, deferred financing costs associated 
with the notes of $2.1 are being amortized to interest expense on 
a straight-line basis over the term of the notes.

The notes are unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of 
Hillenbrand, inc. and rank equally in right of payment with all of 
our other existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated obli-
gations. The notes are effectively junior subordinated to our 
existing and future secured debt to the extent of the value of the 
assets securing such debt. additionally, as our subsidiaries are 
separate and distinct legal entities from us, they have no obliga-
tion to pay amounts due on the notes or provide us with funds to 
meet our payment obligations on the notes. as a result, the notes 
are structurally subordinated to all existing and future debt and 
other obligations, including trade payables, of our subsidiaries.

The indenture governing the notes does not limit our ability, or 
the ability of our subsidiaries, to incur additional indebtedness. 
However, it does contain certain covenants that restrict our abil-
ity, and our ability to permit our subsidiaries, to create or incur 
secured debt and to engage in certain sale and leaseback transac-
tions. The indenture also defines events of defaults, such as failure 
to make payments of principal and interest on debt securities 
issued under the indenture, and provides holders of debt securities 
with remedies if we fail to perform specific obligations.

additionally, in the event of a “change of control Triggering 
event” (as defined in the Global note governing the notes), each 
holder of the notes has the right to require us to purchase all or a 
portion of such holder’s notes at a purchase price equal to 101%  
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of the principal amount of such notes plus accrued and unpaid 
interest, if any, to the date of purchase. at our option, at any time 
and from time to time, we may also redeem the notes, in whole or 
in part, on not less than 30 nor more than 60 days prior notice 
mailed to the holders of the notes. The notes will be redeemable 
at a redemption price, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date 
of redemption, equal to the greater of (i) 100% of the principal 
amount of the notes to be redeemed or (ii) the sum of the present 
values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and 
interest on the notes to be redeemed that would be due after the 
related redemption date, but for such redemption, discounted  
to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis at the Treasury 
rate (as defined in the Global note governing the notes) plus 40  
basis points.

6. TranSacTionS WiTH Hill-rom

Allocation of Corporate Expenses

Through march 31, 2008, our operating expenses within our con-
solidated statements of income include allocations from Hill-rom 
for certain Hill-rom retained corporate expenses, including  
treasury, accounting, tax, legal, internal audit, human resources, 
investor relations, general management, board of directors, infor-
mation technology, other shared services, and certain severance 
costs. These allocations were determined on bases that manage-
ment considered to be reasonable reflections of the utilization of 
services provided to, or the benefits received by, us. The allocation 
methods included revenues, headcount, square footage, actual  
utilization applied to variable operating costs, and specific identi-
fication based upon actual costs incurred when the nature of the 
item or charge was specific to us. See note 7 for further discussion 
of retirement benefit and other postretirement healthcare costs. 
Hill-rom allocated corporate costs, included within our fiscal 
2008 operating expenses were $7.4.

Separation Costs

in addition to the allocated corporate expenses described above, 
we incurred or were allocated costs related to the separation from 
Hill-rom of $0.1 and $15.6 for fiscal years 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. These costs consist primarily of investment banking 
and advisory fees, legal, accounting, recruiting, and consulting 
fees allocated based upon revenue or specific identification. it also 
includes the modification and acceleration charges related to 
stock-based compensation described below.

on march 14, 2008, the board of directors of Hill-rom approved 
a modification to Hill-rom’s stock incentive plan that would 
automatically ensure that participants neither gained nor lost 
value purely as a result of the separation. as a result of the  
modification, we recorded $1.1 of stock-based compensation 
expense related to our employees as of that date. in addition, the  
separation caused the acceleration of $3.2 of stock-based compen-
sation expense on previously unvested restricted stock units which 
are now fully vested. See note 11 for further information on our 
stock-based compensation programs.

Agreements with Hill-Rom

We entered into a distribution agreement as well as a number of 
other agreements with Hill-rom to accomplish the separation of 
our business from Hill-rom and the distribution of our common 
stock to Hill-rom’s shareholders and to govern the relationship 
between us and Hill-rom subsequent to the distribution. These 
agreements included:

 •  distribution agreement

 •  Judgment Sharing agreement

 •  employee matters agreement

 •  Tax Sharing agreement

in addition, we and Hill-rom entered into shared services and 
transition services agreements to outline certain services to be pro-
vided by each company to the other following the separation, as 
well as leases and subleases for locations that are being shared 
after the distribution. We also entered into agreements providing 
for the joint ownership by us and Hill-rom of certain assets, 
including certain aircraft and corporate conference facilities used 
by both companies. We also entered into a limited, mutual right 
of first offer or right of first refusal agreement with Hill-rom 
with respect to various real estate and improvements thereon 
owned by us or Hill-rom in the batesville, indiana area.

The distribution agreement, Judgment Sharing agreement, 
employee matters agreement and Tax Sharing agreement were 
each filed as exhibits to the company’s current report on Form 
8-K filed with the Sec on march 18, 2008. The following pres-
ents a summary of these agreements between Hill-rom and us.

Distribution Agreement. The distribution agreement sets forth 
the agreements between Hill-rom and us with respect to the 
principal corporate transactions that were required to effect the 
separation and the distribution of our shares to Hill-rom share-
holders, the allocation of certain corporate assets and liabili-
ties, and other agreements governing the relationship between 
Hill-rom and us.
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The distribution agreement provides that we and our subsidiaries 
will release and discharge Hill-rom and its subsidiaries from all 
liabilities to us and our subsidiaries of any sort, including lia-
bilities in connection with the transactions contemplated by the 
distribution agreement, except as expressly set forth in the agree-
ment. conversely, Hill-rom and its subsidiaries will release and 
discharge us and our subsidiaries from all liabilities to Hill-rom 
and its subsidiaries of any sort, including liabilities in connection 
with the transactions contemplated by the distribution agree-
ment, except as expressly set forth in the agreement. The releases 
will not release any party from, among other matters, liabilities 
assumed by or allocated to the party pursuant to the distribution 
agreement or the other agreements entered into in connection 
with the separation or from the indemnification and contribution 
obligations under the distribution agreement or such other agree-
ments. in addition, the distribution agreement provides that 
both Hill-rom and we will indemnify each other against certain 
liabilities related to our respective business operations.

The distribution agreement also establishes procedures with 
respect to claims subject to indemnification and related matters.

in order to preserve the credit capacity of each of Hill-rom and us 
to perform our respective obligations under the judgment sharing 
agreement described below, the distribution agreement imposes 
certain restrictive covenants on Hill-rom and us. Specifically, the 
distribution agreement provides that, until the occurrence of an 
agreed Termination event (as described below), we and our sub-
sidiaries will not:

 •  incur indebtedness to finance the payment of any extraordi-
nary cash dividend on our outstanding capital stock or the 
repurchase of any outstanding shares of our capital stock  
(the parties have agreed that either of them can apply avail-
able cash to reduce indebtedness outstanding at the time  
of the distribution, or generated by its ongoing operations 
after the distribution, and subsequently incur a comparable 
amount of indebtedness for the purpose of paying an extra-
ordinary cash dividend or repurchasing shares of capital 
stock without contravening the prohibitions set forth in this 
covenant);

 •  declare and pay regular quarterly cash dividends on our 
shares of common stock in excess of $0.1825 per share quar-
terly dividend (increased by amendments of the distribution 
agreement to $0.185 and $0.1875 per share per quarter in 
fiscal 2009 and 2010, respectively — see below);

  •  make any acquisition outside our core area of business, 
defined to mean the manufacture or sale of funeral service 
products, or any of our existing business lines, or any other 
basic manufacturing or distribution business where it is  
reasonable to assume that our core competencies could add 
enterprise value;

 •  incur indebtedness in excess of $100 to finance any acquisi-
tion in our core area of business without the receipt of an 
opinion from a qualified investment banker that the trans-
action is fair to our shareholders from a financial point of 
view; or

 •  incur indebtedness to make an acquisition in our core area  
of business that either (i) causes our ratio, calculated as  
provided in the distribution agreement, of Pro Forma 
consolidated Total debt to consolidated ebiTda (each as 
defined in the distribution agreement) to exceed 1.8x or  
(ii) causes our credit rating by either Standard & Poor’s 
ratings Services or moody’s investor Services to fall more 
than one category below its initial rating after giving effect 
to the distribution.

as used in the distribution agreement, “agreed Termination event” 
means the first to occur of (i) the full and complete satisfaction of 
a trial court judgment in the last pending antitrust litigation mat-
ter described in note 12, commitments and contingencies 
(including any other matter that is consolidated with any such 
matter) or the suspension of the execution of such judgment by 
the posting of a supersedes bond or (ii) the settlement or voluntary 
dismissal of such last pending matter as to us and Hill-rom. 
These restrictive covenants will terminate in the event that either 
Hill-rom’s or our funding obligations under the Judgment 
Sharing agreement terminate in accordance with the terms of 
that agreement. The distribution agreement imposes similar 
restrictions on Hill-rom and its subsidiaries, except that the defi-
nition of core business is appropriate for Hill-rom.

effective december 4, 2008, we entered into a letter agreement 
with Hill-rom that amended the distribution agreement. The 
letter agreement permitted us to increase our regular cash divi-
dends from $0.73 per fiscal year to $0.74 per share in fiscal 2009. 
Subsequently, in September 2009, we entered into a second letter 
agreement with Hill-rom that further amended the distribution 
agreement. The second letter agreement permitted us to increase 
our regular cash dividends from $0.74 per fiscal year to $0.75 per 
share in fiscal 2010 and in subsequent fiscal years.

Judgment Sharing Agreement (“JSA”). because we, Hill-rom and 
the other co-defendants in the antitrust litigation matters 
described in note 12 are jointly and severally liable for any dam-
ages that may be assessed at trial with no statutory contribution 
rights among the defendants, we and Hill-rom entered into a JSa 
to allocate any potential liability under these cases and any other 
case that is consolidated with any such case. We believe that we 
have committed no wrongdoing as alleged by the plaintiffs and 
that we have meritorious defenses to class certification and to 
plaintiffs’ underlying allegations and damage theories.
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under the JSa, the aggregate amount that we and Hill-rom will 
be required to pay or post in cash (i) to satisfy in its entirety any 
claim (including upon settlement) once the action has been finally 
judicially determined or (ii) to post a bond, in the event we or 
Hill-rom elect to do so, to stay the execution of any adverse  
judgment pending its final determination, will be funded in the 
following order of priority:

 •  First, we will be required to contribute an amount equal to:

  •  the maximum amount of cash and cash proceeds that we 
have on hand or are able to raise using our best efforts, 
without any obligation to sell assets other than cash equiva-
lents, and subject to limitations on the amount of equity 
securities we are required to issue, and the ability to retain 
cash sufficient to operate our business in the normal course, 
which we refer to as “maximum funding proceeds,” minus

  •  the difference between $50 and the amount of cash 
retained to operate the business if the amount of such 
retained cash is less than $50;

 •  Second, Hill-rom and its subsidiaries will be required to 
contribute their maximum funding proceeds; and

 •  Third, we will be required to contribute the remainder of our 
maximum funding proceeds.

neither we nor Hill-rom will be required to raise or provide 
funds if the total amount of funds available to both us and  
Hill-rom would not be sufficient to cover a judgment or settle-
ment amount or the cost of the appeal bond. The funding obliga-
tions of each company also are subject to a limitation relating to 
that company’s continued solvency. The JSa provides that if the 
foregoing allocation is held to be unenforceable, we and Hill-rom 
will be required to contribute to satisfy any funding obliga-
tion based upon a mutually satisfactory agreement as to our and 
Hill-rom’s relative culpability (if any) or, failing such an agree-
ment, pursuant to arbitration under the arbitration provisions 
contained in the JSa.

The JSa provides that we are responsible for bearing all fees and 
costs incurred in the defense of the antitrust litigation matters on 
behalf of ourselves and Hill-rom.

The distribution agreement contains provisions governing the 
joint defense of the antitrust litigation and other claims.

in the event that Hill-rom or we are dismissed as a defendant in 
the antitrust litigation matters (except where the dismissal results 
from a settlement agreement other than a settlement not includ-
ing both us and Hill-rom) or are found upon conclusion of trial 
not to be liable for payment of any damages to the plaintiffs, any 
funding obligations under the JSa of the party so dismissed or 
found not liable will terminate once such dismissal or finding of 
no liability is finally judicially determined.

Employee Matters Agreement. We entered into an employee 
matters agreement with Hill-rom prior to the distribution that 
governs our compensation and employee benefit obligations with 
respect to our directors and our current and former employees, 
along with the assumption of liabilities for certain former  
Hill-rom directors and employees and former employees of  
other non-medical technology businesses. The employee matters 
agreement allocates liabilities and responsibilities relating to 
employee compensation and benefits plans and programs and 
other related matters in connection with the distribution includ-
ing, without limitation, the treatment of outstanding Hill-rom 
equity-based awards, certain outstanding annual and long-term 
incentive awards, existing deferred compensation obligations and 
certain retirement, postretirement, and welfare benefit obliga-
tions. in connection with the distribution, we adopted, for the 
benefit of our employees and directors, a variety of compensation 
and employee benefits plans that are generally comparable in the 
aggregate to those provided previously by Hill-rom immediately 
prior to the distribution. We reserve the right to amend, modify, 
or terminate each such plan in accordance with the terms of that 
plan. With certain possible exceptions, the employee matters 
agreement provided that as of the date of the distribution, our 
employees and directors ceased to be active participants in, and 
we generally ceased to be a participating employer in, the benefit 
plans and programs maintained by Hill-rom. at the time of  
the distribution, our employees and directors became eligible to 
participate in all of our applicable plans. in general, we credited 
each of our employees with his or her service with Hill-rom prior 
to the distribution for all purposes under plans maintained by  
us, to the extent the corresponding Hill-rom plans gave credit  
for such service and such crediting did not result in a duplication 
of benefits.

The employee matters agreement provides that as of the distri-
bution date, except as specifically provided therein, we assumed, 
retained, and are liable for all wages, salaries, welfare, incentive 
compensation, and employee-related obligations and liabilities for 
our directors and all current and former employees of our busi-
ness, along with those for certain former Hill-rom directors and 
corporate employees and former employees of other non-medical 
technology businesses. accordingly, such liabilities have been 
included in our consolidated financial statements for all periods 
presented herein. The distribution agreement provides that if 
neither we nor Hill-rom is entitled to receive a full deduction for 
any liabilities discharged by us with respect to these Hill-rom 
directors and former employees, we would reassign those liabilities 
back to Hill-rom and pay Hill-rom an amount equal to the then 
carrying value of these liabilities on our books and records, net  
of taxes. additionally, Hill-rom and we agreed that with the 
assumption of liabilities for these Hill-rom directors and former  
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employees, we are entitled to the tax benefit from the satisfaction 
of such liabilities. accordingly, we originally ref lected this tax 
benefit as an amount due from Hill-rom in the amount of $9.1 at 
march 31, 2008. Subsequent to the distribution date, we and 
Hill-rom have determined that we are entitled to receive a full 
deduction for the discharge of these liabilities. accordingly, we 
have reclassified the amount due from Hill-rom as a component 
of deferred income tax assets as of September 30, 2008.

The employee matters agreement also provided for the transfer 
of assets and liabilities relating to the predistribution participation 
of all employees and directors for which we have assumed respon-
sibility in various Hill-rom retirement, postretirement, welfare, 
incentive compensation, and employee benefit plans from such 
plans to the applicable plans we adopt for the benefit of our 
employees and directors. The employee matters agreement pro-
vides that we and Hill-rom may arrange with current service  
providers with respect to Hill-rom’s employee benefit plans to 
continue such services on a shared basis for a period of time  
following the distribution and that we will reimburse Hill-rom 
for our share of the cost of such shared services.

Tax Sharing Agreement. We entered into a Tax Sharing agreement 
with Hill-rom that generally governs Hill-rom’s and our respec-
tive rights, responsibilities, and obligations with respect to taxes, 
including ordinary course of business taxes and taxes, if any, 
incurred as a result of any failure of the distribution to qualify as 
a tax-free distribution. under the Tax Sharing agreement, with 
certain exceptions, we are generally responsible for the payment of 
all income and non-income taxes attributable to our operations 
and the operations of our direct and indirect subsidiaries, whether 
or not such tax liability is reflected on a consolidated or combined 
tax return filed by Hill-rom. The Tax Sharing agreement also 
imposes restrictions on our and Hill-rom’s ability to engage in 
certain actions following our separation from Hill-rom and sets 
forth the respective obligations among us and Hill-rom with 
respect to the filing of tax returns, the administration of tax  
contests, assistance and cooperation, and other matters. The 
company generally will be responsible for 43.7% of any taxes that 
arise from the failure of the distribution to qualify as a tax-free 
distribution for u.S. federal income tax purposes, if such failure 
is for any reason for which neither the company nor Hill-rom  
is responsible.

Shared Services and Transitional Services Agreements. We entered 
into shared services agreements and transitional services agree-
ments with Hill-rom in connection with the separation. The 
shared services agreements address services that may be provided 
for an extended period, while the transitional services agreements  

covers services that are intended to be provided for a limited 
period while the recipient of the services makes other arrange-
ments for these services. under the shared services agreements,  
we and Hill-rom agree to provide certain services to each other 
following the separation for an initial term of two years, with 
automatic two-year extensions if commercially viable alternatives 
for the services are not available, except as noted below. after the 
initial two-year term, either party may terminate an agreement by 
notice to the other party, and the recipient of the services must 
terminate if commercially viable alternatives for the services are 
available. For purposes of the foregoing, the determination of 
whether commercially viable alternatives are available is in the 
discretion of the recipient of the services. These services include 
aviation services related to the airfield that Hill-rom owns and 
operates and certain aircraft that Hill-rom and we jointly own 
and operate following the separation, as well as certain ground 
transportation and fleet maintenance services. in addition, due  
to the interrelated nature of certain facilities that are owned by 
Hill-rom and us, we entered into agreements requiring Hill-rom 
and us to maintain our respective parts of such facilities, includ-
ing, for example, maintaining fire protection systems for the facil-
ities. in general, the recipient of services is billed for the services  
at the fair value of the services, except that we will be billed at  
cost for aviation services provided to us by Hill-rom, and we and 
Hill-rom are independently responsible for our respective obli-
gations to maintain our portions of the interrelated facilities.  
Hill-rom continues to provide us aviation services related to the 
airfield for as long as we continue to own an interest in certain 
jointly owned or other private aircraft. Ground transportation  
services can continue as long as Hill-rom and we continue jointly 
to own corporate conference facilities used by both companies. 
obligations under the agreements relating to the maintenance of 
interrelated facilities can continue for so long as required for the 
proper maintenance, operation, and use of such facilities or until 
such interrelated facilities are segregated. under the transitional 
services agreements, Hill-rom provides certain services to us  
for a specified period following the separation. The services to be 
provided may include services regarding certain public company 
staffing needs, legal services, human resources services, medical 
services, and certain information technology services. We are  
generally billed at cost for these services, including information 
technology services provided through a third party under a con-
tract to which Hill-rom is a party. The transitional services 
agreements generally provide that the services will continue for  
a period of up to two years following the separation, subject to 
earlier termination by the recipient of the services and to exten-
sion if parties agree.
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7. reTiremenT and PoSTreTiremenT beneFiTS

We sponsor retirement and postretirement plans covering a major-
ity of our employees. expense recognized in relation to these 
defined benefit retirement plans and the postretirement health-
care plan is based upon actuarial valuations and inherent in those 
valuations are key assumptions including discount rates, and 
where applicable, expected returns on assets, projected future  
salary rates, and projected healthcare cost trends. The discount 
rates used in the valuation of our defined benefit pension and 
postretirement plans are evaluated annually based on current mar-
ket conditions. in setting these rates we utilize long-term bond 
indices and yield curves as a preliminary indication of interest rate 
movements, and then make adjustments to the respective indices 
to reflect differences in the terms of the bonds covered under the 
indices in comparison to the projected outflow of our pension 
obligations. our overall expected long-term rate of return on  
pension assets is based on historical and expected future returns, 
which are inflation adjusted and weighted for the expected return 
for each component of the investment portfolio. our rate of 
assumed compensation increase is also based on our specific his-
torical trends of past wage adjustments in recent years.

Defined Benefit Retirement Plans

approximately 59% of our employees participate in one of three 
retirement programs, including the master defined benefit retire-
ment plan, the defined benefit plan of our Swiss subsidiary, and 
the supplemental executive defined benefit retirement plan. We 
fund the pension trusts in compliance with eriSa or local fund-
ing requirements and as necessary to provide for current service 
and for any unfunded projected future benefit obligation over  
a reasonable period. The benefits for these plans are based primar-
ily on years of service and the employee’s level of compensation 
during specific periods of employment. all our pension plans have 
a September 30 measurement date.

Effect on Operations. The components of net pension costs under 
defined benefit retirement plans were as follows:

Fiscal Year ended 
September 30,

2010 2009 2008

Service cost $ 5.6 $ 3.3 $ 4.0
interest cost 12.7 12.6 11.3
expected return on plan assets (13.9) (13.1) (12.4)
amortization of unrecognized  
 prior service cost, net 0.9 0.8 0.7
amortization of actuarial loss 3.0 — —

  net pension costs $ 8.3 $ 3.6 $ 3.6

Obligations and Funded Status. The changes in the projected ben-
efit obligations, plan assets, and funded status, along with 
amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets for defined 
benefit retirement plans were as follows:

September 30,

2010 2009

change in benefit obligation:
 Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 230.2 $ 172.5
   Projected benefit obligation attributable to  

 acquisition of K-Tron 21.4 —
  Service cost 5.6 3.3
  interest cost 12.7 12.6
  actuarial loss 7.3 49.2
  benefits paid (9.4) (8.0)
  Plan amendments — 0.6
   effect of exchange rates on projected  

 benefit obligation 1.5 —

 Projected benefit obligation at end of year 269.3 230.2

change in plan assets:
 Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 155.5 146.7
   Fair value of pension assets attributable to  

 acquisition of K-Tron 24.7 —
  actual return on plan assets 17.3 7.8
  employer contributions 6.1 9.2
  benefits paid (9.4) (8.0)
  administrative expenses paid (0.3) (0.2)
  effect of exchange rates on plan assets 1.8 —

 Fair value of plan assets at end of year 195.7 155.5

Funded status:
 Plan assets less than benefit obligations $ (73.6) $ (74.7)

amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets:
 other assets $ 3.3 $ —
 accrued pension costs, current portion (1.6) (1.5)
 accrued pension costs, long-term portion (75.3) (73.2)

  Plan assets less than benefit obligations $ (73.6) $ (74.7)

net actuarial losses of $76.7 and prior service costs of $5.3, less  
an applicable aggregate tax effect of $30.6, are included as compo-
nents of accumulated other comprehensive loss at September 30, 
2010. net actuarial losses of $75.6 and prior service costs of  
$6.1, less an applicable aggregate tax effect of $30.5, are included 
as components of accumulated other comprehensive loss at 
September 30, 2009. The estimated amount that will be amor-
tized from accumulated other comprehensive loss into net pension 
costs in fiscal 2011 is $4.9.
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Accumulated Benefit Obligation. The accumulated benefit obliga-
tion for all defined benefit retirement plans was $259.4 and 
$213.8 at September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Selected 
information for our plans with accumulated benefit obligations in 
excess of plan assets was as follows:

September 30,

2010 2009

Projected benefit obligation $246.2 $230.2
accumulated benefit obligation 237.4 213.8
Fair value of plan assets 169.2 155.5

Actuarial Assumptions. The weighted average assumptions used 
in accounting for our defined benefit retirement plans were  
as follows:

Fiscal Year ended 
September 30,

2010 2009 2008

discount rate for obligation, end of year 4.8%  5.5% 7.5%
discount rate for expense, during the year 5.3%  7.5% 6.6%
expected rate of return on plan assets 7.6% 7.75% 8.0%
rate of compensation increase 2.4% 4.0% 4.0%

The discount rates presented above and used in the valuation of 
our defined benefit retirement plans are evaluated annually based 
on current market conditions. in setting these rates we utilize 
long-term bond indices and yield curves as a preliminary indica-
tion of interest rate movements, and then make adjustments to the 
respective indices to reflect differences in the terms of the bonds 
covered under the indices in comparison to the projected outflow 
of our pension obligations. The overall expected long-term rate of 
return is based on historical and expected future returns, which 
are inflation adjusted and weighted for the expected return for 

each component of the investment portfolio. The rate of assumed 
compensation increase is also based on our specific historical 
trends of past wage adjustments in recent years.

Plan Assets. The investment strategies and policies are set by the 
plans’ fiduciaries. long-term strategic investment objectives uti-
lize a diversified mix of equity and fixed income securities to pre-
serve the funded status of the trusts, and balance risk and return. 
The plan fiduciaries oversee the investment allocation process, 
which includes selecting investment managers, setting long-term 
strategic targets, and monitoring asset allocations. Target alloca-
tion ranges are guidelines, not limitations, and plan fiduciaries 
may occasionally approve allocations above or below a target 
range or elect to rebalance the portfolio within the targeted range. 
The primary investment strategy currently employed is a dynamic 
target allocation method that periodically rebalances among  
various investment categories depending on the current funded 
position. This program is designed to actively move from return 
seeking investments (such as equities) toward liability-hedging 
investments (such as long duration fixed income) as funding levels 
improve. The reverse effect occurs when funding levels decrease. 
The investment in return seeking assets is not to exceed 60% of 
total domestic plan assets.

Trust assets in our domestic plan are invested subject to the fol-
lowing policy restrictions: short-term securities must be rated  
a2/P2 or higher; all fixed-income securities shall have a credit 
quality rating “bbb” or higher; investments in equities in any  
one company may not exceed 10% of the equity portfolio. our  
common stock represented approximately 1.6% of trust assets at 
September 30, 2010, and is subject to a statutory limit when it 
reaches 10% of total trust assets.

The tables below provide the fair value of our pension plan assets by asset category at September 30, 2010 and 2009. (See note 14 for a 
definition of level 1, 2, and 3 categories.):

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2010

Plan Asset Category Total

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets for 

Identical Assets 
(Level 1)

Significant 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2)

Significant 
Unobservable Inputs  

(Level 3)

Cash equivalents $ 8.0 $  5.1 $ 2.9 $ —
Equity securities 22.5 22.5 — —
Fixed maturity securities:
 Corporate bonds 67.6 11.7 55.9 —
 Municipal bonds 2.4 — 2.4
 Asset backed debt securities in trust 1.6 — 1.6 —
 U.S. Government securities 1.9 — 1.9 —
Other types of investments:
 Government index funds 3.3 3.3 — —
 Equity mutual funds 86.0 86.0 — —
 Real estate 2.4 — — 2.4

  Total $ 195.7 $128.6 $64.7 $2.4
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Fair Value measurements at September 30, 2009

Plan asset category Total

Quoted Prices in 
active markets for 

identical assets  
(level 1)

Significant 
observable inputs 

(level 2)

Significant 
unobservable inputs  

(level 3)

cash equivalents $  1.5 $         — $ 1.5 $ —
equity securities 15.0 15.0 — —
Fixed maturity securities:
 corporate bonds 63.2 17.1 46.1 —
other types of investment:
 Government index funds 0.9 — 0.9 —
 equity mutual funds 74.8 73.5 1.3 —
 lP investment 0.1 — — 0.1

  Total $155.5 $105.6 $49.8 $0.1

Cash Flows. during fiscal 2010, 2009, and 2008 we contributed 
cash of $6.1, $9.2 and $6.0, respectively, to our defined benefit 
retirement plans. We estimate minimum contributions to be $4.0 
in fiscal 2011, although we may make discretionary contributions. 
We are not required to make a discretionary contribution in 2011, 
but will evaluate business conditions and capital and equity mar-
ket volatility to determine if we wish to make a contribution, and 
if so, in what amount. We expect the maximum amount of any 
discretionary contribution to be $30.0.

Estimated Future Benefit Payments. Following are the benefit pay-
ments, which reflect expected future service and are expected to 
be paid from plan assets or company contributions as necessary:

Projected Pension 
benefits Payout

2011 $11.0
2012  11.8
2013  12.6
2014  13.4
2015  14.2
2016–2020  82.1

Defined Contribution Plans

in addition to these defined benefit plans, we also sponsor a num-
ber of defined contribution plans. depending on the applicable 
plan, we may make contributions up to 4% of an employee’s com-
pensation and may make additional matching contributions up to 
3% of compensation. under the various plans, company contri-
butions generally vest over a period of 0 to 5 years. our expenses 
related to our various defined contribution programs were $5.8, 
$5.1 and $4.8 for fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively

Postretirement Healthcare Plan

in addition to our retirement plans, we also offer a domestic post-
retirement healthcare plan that provides healthcare benefits to 
qualified retirees and their dependents and in which employees 
are eligible to participate. The plan includes retiree cost sharing 

provisions and generally extends retiree coverage for medical, pre-
scription, and dental benefits beyond the cobra continuation 
period to the date of medicare eligibility. We use a measurement 
date of September 30 for this plan.

The net postretirement benefit cost recorded during fiscal years 
2010, 2009 and 2008 was $1.2, $1.1 and $1.3, respectively. The 
change in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 
as follows:

September 30,

2010 2009

benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 12.1 $ 9.8
 Service cost 0.6 0.5
 interest cost 0.6 0.7
 actuarial loss 1.3 1.4
 net benefits paid (0.4) (0.3)

benefit obligation at end of year $ 14.2 $ 12.1

amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets:
 accrued postretirement benefits, current portion $ 0.8 $ 0.8
 accrued postretirement benefits, long-term portion 13.4 11.3

  net amount recognized $ 14.2 $ 12.1

Actuarial Assumptions. The weighted average assumptions used in 
revaluing our obligation under our postretirement healthcare plan 
were as follows:

Fiscal Year ended 
September 30,

2010 2009 2008

discount rate for obligation 4.50% 5.25% 7.50%
Healthcare cost rate assumed for next year 7.75% 8.50% 8.50%
ultimate trend rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Fiscal year that the rate reaches the  
 ultimate trend rate 2023 2016 2015

net actuarial (losses)/gains of $(1.0) and $0.3, less applicable  
tax effects of $(0.4) and $0.1 are included as a component of  
accumulated other comprehensive loss at September 30, 2010 and 
2009, respectively. The estimated amount that will be amortized 
from accumulated other comprehensive loss as a reduction to  
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postretirement healthcare costs in 2011 is less than $0.1. a one-
percentage-point increase/decrease in the assumed healthcare cost 
trend rates as of September 30, 2010 would cause an increase/
decrease in service and interest costs of approximately $0.1, along 
with an increase/decrease in the benefit obligation of $1.0.

We fund the postretirement healthcare plan as benefits are paid, 
and current plan benefits are expected to require net company 
contributions for retirees of approximately $0.8 per year for the 
foreseeable future.

8. oTHer lonG-Term liabiliTieS

other long-term liabilities at the end of each period consist of  
the following:

September 30,

2010 2009

casket pricing obligation $ 9.5 $ 10.5
Self-insurance loss reserves 14.1 16.2
other 16.6 17.6

40.2 44.3
less-current portion (5.8) (6.6)

 Total long-term portion $ 34.4 $ 37.7

in connection with Hill-rom’s sale of a subsidiary in 2004, we 
assumed a liability of approximately $17.0 associated with a long-
term pricing program for the future sale of caskets made in con-
nection with prearranged funerals. The program was subsequently 
discontinued for arrangements made after december 31, 2004. 

The remaining liability under the program is being recognized as 
a component of revenue as the related casket sales subject to the 
program are delivered and the related obligation is paid.

9. income TaXeS

The significant components of income before income taxes and 
the consolidated income tax provision were as follows:

Fiscal Year ended  
September 30,

2010 2009 2008

income before income taxes:
 domestic $ 141.2 $ 159.4 $ 152.5
 Foreign 5.2 1.4 0.8

  Total $ 146.4 $ 160.8 $ 153.3

income tax expense:
 current provision:
  Federal $ 62.6 $ 47.5 $ 56.4
  State 8.9 7.2 6.0
  Foreign 1.1 0.6 0.8

Total current provision 72.6 55.3 63.2

deferred provision (benefit):
  Federal (15.5) 3.0 (2.7)
  State (3.3) 0.3 (0.4)
  Foreign 0.3 (0.1) —

Total deferred provision (benefit) (18.5) 3.2 (3.1)

  income tax expense $ 54.1 $ 58.5 $ 60.1

differences between income tax expense reported for financial reporting purposes and that computed based upon the application of the 
statutory u.S. Federal tax rate to the reported income before income taxes were as follows:

Fiscal Year ended September 30,

2010 2009 2008

Amount
% of  

Pretax Income amount
% of  

Pretax income amount
% of  

Pretax income

Federal income tax (a) $51.2 35.0 $56.3 35.0 $53.7 35.0
State income tax (b) 4.5 3.1 4.2 2.6 3.6 2.4
Foreign income tax (c) (0.3) (0.3) (0.1) (0.1) 0.3 0.2
domestic production activities deduction (3.0) (2.0) (3.1) (1.9) (1.8) (1.2)
non-deductible separation costs — — — — 3.1 2.0
non-deductible acquisition costs 0.7 0.5 — — — —
Valuation allowance (1.2) (0.8) 0.2 0.1 0.7 0.5
other, net 2.2 1.5 1.0 0.7 0.5 0.3

 income tax expense $54.1 37.0 $58.5 36.4 $60.1 39.2

(a)    at statutory rate
(b) net of Federal benefit
(c)   Federal tax rate differential
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The tax effect of temporary differences that gave rise to the deferred 
income tax balance sheet accounts were as follows:

September 30,

2010 2009

deferred income tax assets:
 employee benefit accruals $ 64.2 $ 45.8
 rebates and other discount reserves 6.8 6.2
 Self-insurance reserves 5.6 7.3
 original issue discount on the Forethought note 4.0 4.1
 casket pricing obligation 3.7 4.1
 allowance for doubtful accounts 2.4 2.3
 inventory 2.0 1.6
 other, net 10.9 8.0

  Total deferred income tax assets before  
 valuation allowance 99.6 79.4

less valuation allowance (2.0) (2.6)

 Total deferred income tax assets, net 97.6 76.8

deferred income tax liabilities:
 depreciation (9.0) (10.3)
 amortization (75.3) (2.4)
 unremitted earnings of foreign operations (8.2) —
 other, net (15.7) (7.6)

 Total deferred income tax liabilities (108.2) (20.3)

  deferred income tax assets and liabilities, net $ (10.6) $ 56.5

amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets:
 deferred income taxes, current $ 25.1 $ 21.5
 deferred income taxes, long-term (35.7) 35.0

  deferred income tax assets and liabilities, net $ (10.6) $ 56.5

at September 30, 2010, we had $1.8 of deferred income tax assets 
related to state tax credit carryforwards which expire between 
2011 and 2013. The gross deferred income tax assets of $99.6 as 
of September 30, 2010 were reduced by a valuation allowance  
of $2.0 relating to the state tax credit carryforwards and state 
nol carryforwards. The valuation allowance was recorded as it is 
more likely than not that these deferred income tax assets will not 
be realized.

For periods prior to the distribution, Hill-rom has filed consoli-
dated federal income tax returns, as well as multiple state and 
local tax returns that included our operating results. our foreign 
operations file income tax returns in a number of jurisdictions. as 
discussed in note 6, we entered into a tax sharing agreement with 
Hill-rom in connection with the distribution.

in the normal course of business, we (and Hill-rom for the peri-
ods prior to separation) are subject to examination by the taxing 
authorities in each of the jurisdictions where we file tax returns, 
with open tax years generally ranging from 2006 and forward. 
during fiscal year 2010, Hill-rom reached a resolution with the 
irS on two matters unrelated to our operations. The resolution  
of these issues resolved all open tax matters for fiscal 2002  
through 2008. We are currently under examination by the irS  
for fiscal years 2009 and 2010 under the irS compliance assur-
ance Program.

in connection with the acquisition of K-Tron, Federal and state 
income taxes of $8.2 were provided on the historical earnings and 
profits of the K-Tron Switzerland operations. Federal and state 
income taxes have not been provided on accumulated but undis-
tributed earnings of all other foreign subsidiaries, along with the 
post acquisition earnings and profits of the K-Tron Switzerland 
operations, aggregating approximately $12.3, as such earnings 
have been or are expected to be permanently reinvested. The 
determination of the unrecognized deferred income tax liability 
related to the undistributed earnings is not practicable.

There are other ongoing audits in various stages of completion in 
several state and foreign jurisdictions, one or more of which may 
conclude within the next 12 months. The resolution of these 
audits could involve some or all of the following: the payment of 
additional taxes, the adjustment of certain deferred income taxes, 
and/or the recognition of unrecognized tax benefits. We do not 
expect that the outcome of these audits will significantly impact 
our consolidated financial statements.

The activity within our reserve for unrecognized tax benefits was 
as follows:

September 30,

2010 2009

balance at beginning of year $ 8.3 $  6.0
 additions for tax positions related to the current year 0.8 1.4
 additions for tax positions of prior years — 1.2
 reductions for tax positions of prior years (1.7) (0.3)
 Settlements (0.2) —

balance at end of year $ 7.2 $  8.3
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during the year ended September 30, 2010 and 2009, we recog-
nized (released) approximately ($0.2) and $0.5, respectively in 
additional interest and penalties. We had approximately $1.4 and 
$1.6 for the payment of interest and penalties accrued at September 
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, excluded from the table above.

The total amount of gross unrecognized tax benefits as of 
September 30, 2010 and 2009, was $7.2 and $8.3, respectively. 
The gross unrecognized tax benefits includes approximately $3.1 
and $3.7 at September 30, 2010 and 2009, respectively, that if 
recognized, would impact the effective tax rate in future periods. 
The remaining amount relates to items which, if recognized, 
would not impact our effective tax rate.

We estimate that the total unrecognized tax benefit could decline 
by $2.1 over the next 12 months. The decline would result from 
the settlement of examinations by taxing authorities and the expi-
ration of applicable statutes of limitation.

10. income Per common SHare

The calculation of basic and diluted net income per common 
share and shares outstanding for the periods presented prior to 
april 1, 2008, is based on the number of shares outstanding at 
march 31, 2008 (plus unissued fully vested common shares). 
There is no dilutive impact from common stock equivalents for 
periods prior to april 1, 2008, as we had no dilutive equity awards 
outstanding. The dilutive effects of our time based restricted 
stock units and stock option awards are included in the compu-
tation of diluted net income per share in periods subsequent to 
march 31, 2008. at September 30, 2010, potential dilutive  
effects of these securities representing approximately 1.8 million 
common shares were excluded from the computation of income 
per common share as their effects were anti-dilutive. The dilutive 
effects of our performance-based stock awards more fully 
described in note 11 are included in the computation of diluted 
net income per share when the related performance criteria are 
met. at September 30, 2010, potential dilutive effects of these 
securities representing approximately 1.1 million common shares 
were excluded from the computation of income per common 
share as the related performance criteria had not been met, 
although they may be met in future periods. There is no signifi-
cant difference in basic and diluted net income per share and aver-
age common shares outstanding as a result of dilutive equity 
awards for the year ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

11. STocK-baSed comPenSaTion

We have stock-based compensation plans (including the Stock 
incentive Plan and our Supplemental retirement Plan that was 
adopted effective July 1, 2010, into which our former deferred 
compensation plans for directors and executives were transferred) 
under which 8,785,436 common shares are registered and avail-
able for issuance. These programs are administered by our board 
of directors and its compensation and management develop-
ment committee. as of September 30, 2010, options with respect 
to 2,374,286 shares were outstanding under these plans. in addi-
tion, a total of 1,443,577 rSus and Pbus (both defined below) 
were outstanding, and a total of 474,617 common shares had  
been either issued or utilized under these plans as of September 
30, 2010.

our primary program is the Hillenbrand, inc. Stock incentive 
Plan, which provides for long-term performance compensation  
for key employees and members of the board of directors. a vari-
ety of discretionary awards for employees and non-employee 
directors are authorized under the plan, including incentive or 
non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted 
stock, deferred stock, and bonus stock. The vesting of such awards 
may be conditioned upon either a specified period of time or the 
attainment of specific performance goals as determined by the 
administrator of the plan. The option price and term are also sub-
ject to determination by the administrator with respect to each 
grant. option prices are generally expected to be set at the fair 
market price of our common stock at the date of grant, and option 
terms are not expected to exceed ten years.

compensation cost and related income tax benefits charged 
against income for the following fiscal years (including the modi-
fication and acceleration charges recorded in connection with the 
separation during fiscal 2008 previously discussed in note 6) 
were as follows:

Fiscal Year ended 
September 30,

2010 2009 2008

Stock-based compensation cost $7.5 $6.6 $7.5
income tax benefit  2.8  2.5  2.7

 Stock-based compensation cost, net-of-tax $4.7 $4.1 $4.8

The company realized current tax benefits of $0.4 from the exer-
cise of stock options and the payment of restricted stock units 
during fiscal year 2010.
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Stock Options

The fair value of option grants under the Hillenbrand, inc. Stock incentive Plan are estimated on the date of grant using the binomial 
option-pricing model which incorporates the possibility of early exercise of options into the valuation as well as our historical exercise 
and termination experience to determine the option value. The grants are contingent upon continued employment and generally vest 
over periods ranging from one to three years. The weighted average fair value of options granted was $5.71, $3.97, and $4.04 per share 
for fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively (using converted values for grants prior to separation). The following assumptions 
were used in the determination of fair value in each period:

Fiscal Year ended September 30,

2010 2009

Post- 
distribution  

2008

Pre- 
distribution  

2008

risk-free interest rate 0.3–4.0% 0.4–2.9% 1.6–4.3% 2.9–3.9%
Weighted average dividend yield 4.0% 5.0% 3.5% 2.0%
Weighted average volatility factor 42.2% 41.5% 18.6% 21.0%
exercise factor 35.7% 36.3% 37.1% 31.8%
Post-vesting termination rate 5.0% 5.0% 2.1% 5.9%

The risk free interest rate assumption is based upon observed 
interest rates appropriate for the term of the employee stock 
options. The dividend yield assumption is based on the history of 
dividend payouts, and the computation of expected volatility is 
based on historical stock volatility. The expected life of employee 
stock options represents the weighted average period the stock 
options are expected to remain outstanding and is a derived out-
put of the binomial model. The expected life of employee stock 
options is impacted by the above assumptions as well as the post-
vesting termination rate and the exercise factor used in the bino-
mial model. These two variables are based on the history of 
exercises and forfeitures for previous stock options.

The following tables provide a summary of outstanding stock 
option awards:

number  
of Shares

Weighted average 
exercise Price

outstanding at September 30, 2009 2,182,705 $21.76
 Granted 473,617  18.99
 exercised (114,616)  16.80
 Forfeited (58,529)  18.60
 expired (108,891)  24.94

Outstanding at September 30, 2010 2,374,286 $21.38

Exercisable at September 30, 2010 1,457,039 $23.29

as of September 30, 2010, there was approximately $2.1 of unrec-
ognized stock-based compensation associated with our unvested 
stock options expected to be recognized over a weighted average 
period of 1.7 years. This unrecognized compensation expense 
includes a reduction for our estimate of potential forfeitures. as of 
September 30, 2010, the average remaining life of the outstanding 
stock options was 6.3 years with an aggregate intrinsic value of 
$4.3. as of September 30, 2010, the average remaining life of the 
exercisable stock options was 4.8 years with an aggregate intrinsic  
value of $1.1. The total intrinsic value of options exercised by our 
employees and directors during the fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 
2008 was $0.4, $0.2, and $0.1, respectively.

Restricted Stock Units (RSUs) and Performance-Based 
Restricted Stock Units (PBUs)

during the first quarter of fiscal year 2009, we began granting 
performance-based restricted stock and units (collectively “Pbus”) 
as part of our annual grant instead of restricted stock units 
(“rSus”), which were historically contingent upon continued 
employment and generally vest over a period of five years. These 
Pbus are consistent with our compensation program’s guiding 
principles and are designed to (i) align management’s interests 
with those of shareholders, (ii) motivate and provide incentive  
to achieve superior results, (iii) maintain a significant portion  
of at-risk compensation, (iv) delineate clear accountabilities, and 
(v) ensure competitive compensation. We believe that this blend 
of compensation components provides the company’s leadership 
team with the appropriate incentives to create long-term value for 
shareholders while taking thoughtful and prudent risks to grow 
the value of the company. The vesting of Pbus is contingent 
upon the creation of shareholder value as measured by the cumu-
lative cash returns and final period income in excess of the 
weighted average cost of capital over a three year period and a cor-
responding service requirement. The value of an award is based 
upon the fair value of our common stock at the date of grant. 
based on the extent to which the performance criteria are 
achieved, it is possible for none of the awards to vest or for a range 
up to the maximum to vest. We record expense associated with 
the awards on a straight-line basis over the vesting period based 
upon an estimate of projected performance. The actual perfor-
mance of the company is evaluated quarterly, and the expense is 
adjusted according to the new projection. as a result, depending 
on the degree to which we achieve the performance criteria, our 
expenses related to the Pbus may become more volatile as we 
approach the final performance measurement date at the end of 
the three year period.
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The value of rSus and Pbus in our common stock is the fair 
value at the date of grant. The total vest date fair value of shares 
held by Hillenbrand employees and directors which vested during 
fiscal years, 2010, 2009, and 2008 was $1.4, $1.7, and $6.1, 
respectively (including dividends). a summary of the unvested 
rSu and Pbu activity presented below represents the maximum 
number of shares that could be earned or vested:

rSus
number of 
Share units

Weighted average 
Grant date  
Fair Value

non-vested rSus at  
 September 30, 2009 84,558 $24.10
  Granted 117,779 21.41
  Vested (66,503) 21.62
  Forfeited (9,848) 24.73

Non-vested RSUs at  
 September 30, 2010 125,986 $22.85

Pbus
number of 
Share units

Weighted average 
Grant date  
Fair Value

non-vested Pbus at  
 September 30, 2009 569,964 $14.89
  Granted 514,254 18.86
  Vested — —
  Forfeited (63,619) 16.29

Non-vested PBUs at  
 September 30, 2010 1,020,599 $16.80

as of September 30, 2010, approximately $2.1 and $5.0 of unrec-
ognized stock-based compensation was associated with our 
unvested rSus and Pbus (based upon projected performance to 
date), respectively. These costs are expected to be recognized over 
a weighted average period of 2.4 years and 1.6 years, respectively. 
This unrecognized compensation expense includes a reduction for 
our estimate of potential forfeitures. as of September 30, 2010, 
the outstanding rSus and Pbus had an aggregate intrinsic value 
of $2.8 and $23.0, respectively.

dividends payable in stock accrue on both rSus and Pbus and 
are subject to the same specified terms as the original grants. as of 
September 30, 2010, a total of 61,166 stock units had accumu-
lated on unvested rSus and Pbus due to dividend reinvestments 
and are excluded from the tables above. The aggregate intrinsic 
value of these shares at September 30, 2010 was $1.3.

Vested Deferred Stock

Past stock-based compensation programs, like the current rSu 
and Pbu programs, allowed deferrals after vesting to be set-up as 
deferred stock. as of September 30, 2010, 235,826 of our shares 
that had been deferred fully vested and payable in our common  
stock under our stock-based compensation programs and are  

excluded from the tables above. The aggregate intrinsic value of 
these shares at September 30, 2010 was $5.0.

12. commiTmenTS and conTinGencieS

Lease Commitments

rental expense charged to income for fiscal years 2010, 2009, and 
2008 was $7.9, $7.3 and $7.4, respectively. The table below indi-
cates the minimum annual rental commitments (excluding renew-
able periods) aggregating $15.9, for manufacturing facilities, 
warehouse distribution centers, service centers, and sales offices, 
under noncancelable operating leases.

operating 
rents

2011 $7.1
2012 5.4
2013 2.6
2014 0.6
2015 0.2
Thereafter —

Antitrust Litigation

in 2005 the Funeral consumers alliance, inc. (“Fca”) and a 
number of individual consumer casket purchasers filed a pur-
ported class action antitrust lawsuit on behalf of certain consumer 
purchasers of batesville® caskets against the company and our 
former parent company, Hillenbrand industries, inc., now Hill-
rom Holdings, inc. (“Hill-rom”), and three national funeral 
home businesses (the “Fca action”). a similar purported anti-
trust class action lawsuit was later filed by Pioneer Valley casket 
co. and several so-called “independent casket distributors” on 
behalf of casket sellers who were unaffiliated with any licensed 
funeral home (the “Pioneer Valley action”). class certification 
hearings in the Fca action and the Pioneer Valley action were 
held before a magistrate Judge in early december 2006. on 
november 24, 2008, the magistrate Judge recommended that the 
plaintiffs’ motions for class certification in both cases be denied. 
on march 26, 2009, the district Judge adopted the memoranda 
and recommendations of the magistrate Judge and denied class 
certification in both cases. on april 9, 2009, the plaintiffs in the 
Fca case filed a petition with the united States court of appeals 
for the Fifth circuit for leave to file an appeal of the court’s order 
denying class certification. on June 19, 2009, a three-judge panel 
of the Fifth circuit denied the Fca plaintiffs’ petition. on July 9, 
2009, the Fca plaintiffs filed a request for reconsideration of the 
denial of their petition. on July 29, 2009, a three-judge panel of 
the Fifth circuit denied the Fca plaintiffs’ motion for reconsid-
eration and their alternative motion for leave to file a petition for 
rehearing en banc (by all of the judges sitting on the Fifth circuit 
court of appeals).
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The Pioneer Valley plaintiffs did not appeal the district court’s 
order denying class certification, and on april 29, 2009, pursuant 
to a stipulation among the parties, the district court dismissed 
the Pioneer Valley action with prejudice (i.e., Pioneer Valley can-
not appeal or otherwise reinstitute the case). neither the company 
nor Hill-rom provided any payment or consideration for the 
plaintiffs to dismiss this case, other than agreeing to bear their 
own costs, rather than pursuing plaintiffs for costs.

Plaintiffs in the Fca action have generally sought monetary 
damages on behalf of a class, trebling of any such damages that 
may be awarded, recovery of attorneys’ fees and costs, and injunc-
tive relief. The plaintiffs in the Fca action filed a report indicat-
ing that they were seeking damages ranging from approximately 
$947.0 to approximately $1.46 billion before trebling on behalf  
of the purported class of consumers they seek to represent, based 
on approximately one million casket purchases by the purported 
class members.

because batesville continues to adhere to its long-standing policy 
of selling batesville caskets only to licensed funeral homes, a pol-
icy that it continues to believe is appropriate and lawful, if the 
case goes to trial the plaintiffs are likely to claim additional 
alleged damages for periods between their reports and the time of 
trial. at this point, it is not possible to estimate the amount of any 
additional alleged damage claims that they may make. The defen-
dants are vigorously contesting both liability and the plaintiffs’ 
damages theories.

in June 2010, co-defendant Stewart enterprises, inc. announced a 
settlement with the plaintiffs. on July 16, 2010, the district 
court granted the defendants’ remaining motion for leave to file  
a motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. on 
august 2, 2010, the district court heard argument on the defen-
dants’ motion to dismiss for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. 
The court ordered full dismissal of the lawsuit on September 24, 
2010, concluding that “plaintiffs shall take nothing by their suit.” 
in light of this decision, defendants filed a motion requesting that 
the court order plaintiffs to pay costs incurred by batesville and 
Sci in the approximate amount of $0.7. The court denied this 
motion on october 22, 2010.

Plaintiffs had 30 days to declare their intent to appeal the dis-
missal of their lawsuit, and they did so by way of a notice of 
appeal filed on october 19, 2010. Plaintiffs’ notice indicates that 
they intend to appeal both the court’s final judgment of dismissal 
entered on September 24, 2010 and the court’s order denying 
class certification entered on march 26, 2009. The appeal will be 
to the united States court of appeals for the Fifth circuit.

over the next several months, the record will be compiled for 
appeal and extensive briefing will occur. Plaintiffs’ brief appealing 
the denial of the two orders must be filed within 40 days after the 
district court record is certified. although firm dates are not yet 

known, the plaintiffs’ brief will likely be due sometime in January 
2011, with defendants’ brief due in February 2011, and a reply 
brief from plaintiffs due in march 2011. once all briefs are  
submitted, the court of appeals may hear oral argument by the 
parties’ attorneys and then issue its ruling as to whether or not  
the district court’s decisions should be reversed or affirmed. it 
should be noted, however, that the above appellate schedule is 
only approximate and is subject to change dependent upon a 
number of factors, including the granting of any extensions  
of time and the relative congestion of the docket of the court  
of appeals.

if plaintiffs succeed in overturning the judgment, reversing the 
district court order denying class certification, and a class is sub-
sequently certified in the Fca action filed against Hill-rom and 
batesville, and if the plaintiffs prevail at a trial of the class action, 
the damages awarded to the plaintiffs, which would be trebled as 
a matter of law, could have a significant material adverse effect on 
our results of operations, financial condition and/or liquidity. in 
antitrust actions such as the Fca action the plaintiffs may elect 
to enforce any judgment against any or all of the codefendants, 
who have no statutory contribution rights against each other. We 
and Hill-rom have entered into a judgment sharing agreement 
that apportions the costs and any potential liabilities associated 
with this litigation between us and Hill-rom. See note 6 to our 
annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 
30, 2009.

as of october, 2010, we had incurred approximately $27.5 in 
cumulative legal and related costs associated with the Fca matter, 
since its inception.

General

We are involved on an ongoing basis in claims and lawsuits relat-
ing to our operations, including environmental, antitrust, patent 
infringement, business practices, commercial transactions, and 
other matters. The ultimate outcome of these lawsuits cannot be 
predicted with certainty. an estimated loss from these contingen-
cies is recognized when we believe it is probable that a loss has 
been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably esti-
mated. However, it is difficult to measure the actual loss that 
might be incurred related to litigation. The ultimate outcome of 
these lawsuits could have a material adverse effect on our financial 
condition, results of operations, and cash flow.

legal fees associated with claims and lawsuits are generally 
expensed as incurred. upon recognition of an estimated loss 
resulting from a settlement, an estimate of legal fees to complete 
the settlement is also included in the amount of the loss 
recognized.

We are also involved in other possible claims, including product 
and general liability, workers compensation, auto liability, and 
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employment related matters. claims other than employment and 
related matters have deductibles and self-insured retentions rang-
ing from $0.5 to $1.0 per occurrence or per claim, depending 
upon the type of coverage and policy period. outside insurance 
companies and third-party claims administrators establish indi-
vidual claim reserves, and an independent outside actuary pro-
vides estimates of ultimate projected losses, including incurred 
but not reported claims, which are used to establish reserves for 
losses. claim reserves for employment related matters are estab-
lished based upon advice from internal and external counsel and 
historical settlement information for claims and related fees, when 
such amounts are considered probable of payment.

The recorded amounts represent our best estimate of the costs we 
will incur in relation to such exposures, but it is virtually certain 
that actual costs will differ from those estimates.

13. inVeSTmenT income and oTHer

Fiscal Year ended 
September 30,

2010 2009 2008

interest income on note receivable  
from Forethought $ 12.0 $ 12.4 $ 5.8

interest income on arS 0.2 0.9 1.0
equity in net income (loss) of affiliates 3.1 (5.4) —
realized gain on sale or (impairment)  

of investments 0.7 — (0.8)
net realized losses on sale or impairment  

of arS (3.1) — —
Foreign currency exchange gain (loss) — 0.2 (1.2)
other, net (0.2) (0.2) 1.1

  investment income and other $ 12.7 $ 7.9 $ 5.9

14. Fair Value meaSuremenTS

our fair value measurements are classified into one of three cate-
gories as follows based on the measurement inputs:

level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to 
access at the measurement date. an active market for the asset or 
liability is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability 
occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing 
information on an ongoing basis.

level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within 
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
or indirectly. level 2 inputs include: quoted prices for similar 
assets or liabilities in active markets, inputs other than quoted 
prices that are observable for the asset or liability ( e.g., interest 
rates and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals or 
current market) and contractual prices for the underlying finan-
cial instrument, as well as other relevant economic measures.

level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 
unobservable inputs shall be used to measure fair value to the 
extent that observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing 
for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the 
asset or liability at the measurement date. unobservable inputs 
shall ref lect the reporting entity’s own assumptions about the 
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the 
asset or liability (including assumptions about risk).

The following table summarizes the company’s financial assets and liabilities:

Fair Value Measurements at September 30, 2010 Using:

Description 

Carrying Value 
at September 30,  

2010

Fair Value  
at September 30, 

2010

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets 

(Level 1)

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs 

(Level 2)

Unobservable 
Inputs  

(Level 3)

Assets:
 Cash & cash equivalents $ 98.4 $ 98.4 $ 98.4 $     — $      —
 ARS 11.9 11.9 — 11.9 —
 Forethought Note 144.8 127.0 — — 127.0
 Equity investments 3.0 3.0 — — 3.0
 Investments in rabbi trust 5.7 5.7 5.7 — —
Liabilities:
 Revolving credit facility 255.0 241.8 — 241.8 —
 $150 senior unsecured notes 148.4 158.0 158.0 — —
 Derivative instruments 0.1 0.1 — 0.1 —
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Fair Value measurements at September 30, 2009 using:

description 

carrying Value  
at September 30, 

2009

Fair Value  
at September 30, 

2009

Quoted Prices in 
active markets 

(level 1)

Significant other 
observable inputs 

(level 2)

unobservable 
inputs  

(level 3)

assets:
 cash & cash equivalents $     35.2 $     35.2 $     35.2 $      — $   —
 arS and Put right 48.9 48.9 — — 48.9
 Forethought note 142.8 109.0 — — 109.0
 equity investments 4.5 4.5 1.5 — 3.0
liabilities:
 revolving credit facility 60.0 55.7 — 55.7 —
 derivative instruments 1.1 1.1 — 1.1 —

The following table reconciles the change in the company’s level 3 financial assets:

Fair Value measurements using Significant 
unobservable inputs

arS
Put 

right
Forethought 

note
equity 

investments

balance at September 30, 2008 $ 51.1 $ — $105.2 $3.0
 Total gains or (losses) (realized and unrealized):
  included in earnings, net 2.1 (2.0) — —
  included in other comprehensive income (3.7) — — —
  change in fair value, disclosure only — — 3.8 —
 Purchases, issuances and settlements (2.3) 3.7 — —

balance at September 30, 2009 $ 47.2 $1.7 $109.0 $3.0
 Total gains or (losses) (realized and unrealized):
  included in earnings, net (1.4) (1.7) — —
  included in other comprehensive income 1.5 — — —
  change in fair value, disclosure only — — 28.0 —
 Purchases, issuances and settlements (35.4) — (10.0) —
 Transfers in and/or (out) of level 3 (11.9) — — —

Balance at September 30, 2010 $ — $ — $127.0 $3.0

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate 
the fair value of each class of financial instrument for which it is 
practicable to estimate that value:

 •  We estimate the fair value of derivative financial instruments 
based on the amount that we would receive or pay to termi-
nate the agreements at the reporting date.

 •  Prior to July 1, 2010, we utilized a valuation model based on 
level 3 inputs for the arS. We utilized a discounted cash 
flow approach (an “income” approach) to arrive at this valu-
ation. The assumptions used in preparing the discounted 
cash f low model included estimates of, based on available 
data, interest rates, timing and amount of cash flows, credit 
spread related yield and illiquidity premiums, and expected 
holding periods of the arS. in the fourth quarter of fiscal 
2010, we began to value the arS based upon secondary mar-
ket prices on observed transactions. We moved to this  

   approach as we believe the pricing now occurring in the sec-
ondary market represents the “highest and best use” valua-
tion of the arS.

 •  We estimate the fair value of the Forethought note based 
upon comparison to debt securities currently trading in an 
active market with similar characteristics of yield, duration, 
and credit risk adjusted for liquidity considerations. based 
upon market data available to us, we estimate that the fair 
value of the note and accrued interest is approximately 
$127.0 based upon an estimated yield to maturity of approxi-
mately 14% as of September 30, 2010. This is approxi-
mately $17.8 below its carrying value at September 30, 2010. 
an increase or decrease of 1% in the discount rate utilized  
to estimate the fair value of the note (including interest 
receivable) would indicate a change in fair value of approxi-
mately $4.0.
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   during the past twelve months ended September 30, 2010, 
Forethought successfully raised net proceeds of approxi-
mately $101.0 through the issuance of common stock, retain-
ing the a- claims-paying rating of its subsidiary insurance 
operations from a.m. best, and made its first $10.0 interest 
payment on the note. both of these factors increased the like-
lihood that Forethought will be able to continue to meet its 
obligation to us under the terms of the note. additionally, 
the natural accrual of interest under the note increases its fair 
value over time. These were the primary factors which 
increased the estimated fair value of the Forethought note 
(and also increase our overall probability of collection) for 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.

 •  The carrying amount of equity investments, included as a 
component of “investments” within our consolidated bal-
ance sheet, was $3.0 and $4.5 at September 30, 2010 and 
2009, respectively, and approximates fair value. The fair 
value was determined using either quoted prices in an active 
market or using present value or other techniques appropri-
ate for a particular financial instrument. These techniques 
involve some degree of management judgment and as a result 
are not necessarily indicative of the amounts we would real-
ize in a current market exchange.

 •  The fair value of the investments in the rabbi trust were 
based on quoted prices in active markets. The trust assets 
consist of participant directed investments in publicly traded 
mutual funds.

 •  The fair value of our revolving credit facility is estimated 
based on internally developed models, using current market 
interest rate data for similar issues as there is no active mar-
ket for our debt.

 •  The fair value of the 10 year, 5.5% fixed rate senior unse-
cured notes was based on quoted prices in an active market.

The following assets were excluded from the tables above:

 •  The carrying amounts of current assets and liabilities approx-
imate fair value because of the short maturity of those 
instruments.

 •  The carrying amount of the private equity limited partner-
ships, included as a component of “investments” within our 
consolidated balance sheet, was $15.2 and $14.3 at September 
30, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The fair value of these 
equity method investments is not readily available.

 •  disclosures regarding the fair value measurements related to 
our pension plan assets are included in note 7.

15. SeGmenT and GeoGraPHical inFormaTion

in connection with the acquisition of K-Tron, we organized our 
operations into two reporting segments, batesville and K-Tron.  

The following tables provide summary financial information 
regarding these segments and our corporate operations:

September 30,

2010 2009 2008

Net revenues:
batesville $ 640.3 $ 649.1 $ 678.1
K-Tron 108.9 — —

 Total consolidated net revenues $ 749.2 $ 649.1 $ 678.1

Gross profit:
batesville $ 277.7 $ 274.4 $ 280.5
K-Tron (1) 35.6 — —

 Total consolidated gross profit $ 313.3 $ 274.4 $ 280.5

Operating profit (loss):
batesville $ 175.1 $ 178.5 $ 183.8
K-Tron (1) 2.2 — —
corporate (2) (39.4) (23.5) (34.2)

 Total consolidated operating profit $ 137.9 $ 155.0 $ 149.6

Net revenues (3)
united States $ 662.6 $ 606.3 $ 629.5
canada 42.2 35.5 39.7
Switzerland 35.9 — —
all others foreign business units 8.5 7.3 8.9

 Total consolidated net revenues $ 749.2 $ 649.1 $ 678.1

(1)  Gross profit and operating profit have been reduced by $11.6 and $13.3, 
respectively, for the effects of acquisition accounting on K-Tron’s invento-
ries and backlog during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010.

(2)  operating profit has been reduced by $10.5 respectively, for the effects of 
business acquisition costs associated with the acquisition of K-Tron during 
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. costs related to our separation 
from Hill-rom reduced operating profit by $0.1 and $15.6 for the fiscal 
years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

(3)  We attribute revenue to a geography based upon the location of the busi-
ness unit that consummates the external sale.

September 30,

2010 2009

Total assets assigned:
batesville $ 249.0 $ 250.8
K-Tron 561.3 —
corporate 241.8 310.3

 Total consolidated assets $ 1,052.1 $ 561.1

Total goodwill assigned:
batesville $ 5.7 $ 5.7
K-Tron 190.7 —

 Total consolidated goodwill $ 196.4 $ 5.7

Property, net, by physical location:
united States $ 96.2 $ 81.5
Switzerland 10.6 —
all other foreign business units 2.8 3.8

 Total property, net $ 109.6 $ 85.3
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ScHedule ii
Hillenbrand, inc.

ValuaTion and QualiFYinG accounTS
For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2010, 2009 and 2008

additions

description (dollars in millions)

balance at 
beginning 
of Period

charged to 
costs and 
expense

charged to 
other 

accounts

deductions 
net of 

recoveries

balance at 
end of 
Period

reserves deducted from assets to which they apply:
  allowance for possible losses, early pay discounts,  

 and sales returns — accounts receivable:
   Period ended:
    September 30, 2010 $17.3 $  1.6 $1.3 (c) $(0.1)(a) $20.1
    September 30, 2009 $16.1 $   1.3 $    — $(0.1)(a) $17.3
    September 30, 2008 $18.0 $(0.6) $    — $(1.3)(a) $16.1
 allowance for excess or obsolescence — inventories:
  Period ended:
   September 30, 2010 $ 1.1 $  1.2 $1.9 (c) $(1.0)(b) $ 3.2
   September 30, 2009 $ 0.5 $   0.7 $    — $(0.1)(b) $ 1.1
   September 30, 2008 $ 1.2 $   0.1 $    — $(0.8)(b) $ 0.5
(a)    Generally reflects the write-off of specific receivables against recorded reserves.
(b) Generally reflects the write-off of specific inventory against recorded reserves.
(c)    reflects opening reserve balances resulting from the acquisition of K-Tron.

16. unaudiTed QuarTerlY Financial inFormaTion

Quarter Ended

Fiscal 
Year 

Ended

12/31/09 3/31/10 6/30/10 9/30/10 9/30/10

net revenues $161.5 $169.9 $205.8 $212.0 $749.2
Gross profit   72.0   77.0   75.6   88.7  313.3
net income   29.5   29.4   13.3   20.1   92.3
basic and diluted net income per common share   0.48   0.47   0.22   0.32   1.49

Quarter ended
Fiscal Year 

ended

12/31/08 3/31/09 6/30/09 9/30/09 9/30/09

net revenues $166.5 $170.8 $158.7 $153.1 $649.1
Gross profit   69.8   74.3   66.0   64.3  274.4
net income   26.5   27.8   25.4   22.6  102.3
basic and diluted net income per common share   0.43   0.45   0.41   0.37   1.66
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iTem 9. cHanGeS in and diSaGreemenTS  
WiTH accounTanTS on accounTinG and 
Financial diScloSure

There were no changes in or disagreements with the independent 
registered public accounting firm.

iTem 9a. conTrolS and ProcedureS

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

our management, with the participation of our President and 
chief executive officer and the Senior Vice President and chief 
Financial officer (the “certifying officers”), has evaluated the 
effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls 
and procedures (as defined in rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under 
the Securities exchange act of 1934, as amended (the “exchange 
act”)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. based 
upon that evaluation, the certifying officers concluded that our 
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the end of 
the period covered by this report for the information required to 
be disclosed in the reports we file or submit under the exchange 
act to be recorded, processed, summarized and reported within 
the time periods specified in the Sec’s rules and forms and  
such information is accumulated and communicated to manage-
ment as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required 
disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

on april 1, 2010, we completed our acquisition of K-Tron which 
includes its existing information systems and internal controls 
over financial reporting that previously existed when K-Tron was 
a separate publicly traded company. in conducting our evaluation 
of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial report-
ing, we have elected to exclude K-Tron from our evaluation as 
permitted under existing Sec rules. We are currently in the  
process of evaluating and integrating K-Tron’s historical internal 
controls over financial reporting with ours. We expect to complete 
this integration in fiscal 2011.

additionally, during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2010, we imple-
mented a new financial reporting consolidation system to accom-
modate our recent acquisition of K-Tron and support our 
acquisition strategy. in connection with the implementation of 
this system, we also implemented a series of internal controls to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our 
financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements. These new controls were included in management’s 
evaluation process for the year ended September 30, 2010.

other than the changes noted above, there have been no other 
changes to our internal controls over financial reporting. 
management’s report on our internal control over financial 
reporting is included under item 8 above.

iTem 9b. oTHer inFormaTion

none.

ParT iii

iTem 10. direcTorS, eXecuTiVe oFFicerS, and 
corPoraTe GoVernance

information related to executive officers is included in this report 
under Part i, item 1 within the caption “executive officers of the 
registrant.” information relating to the directors will appear in 
the section entitled “election of directors” in our Proxy Statement 
to be filed with the Securities and exchange commission relating 
to our 2011 annual meeting of Shareholders (the “2011 Proxy 
Statement”), which section is incorporated herein by reference. 
The required information on compliance with Section 16(a) of the 
Securities exchange act of 1934 is incorporated by reference to 
the 2011 Proxy Statement, where such information is included 
under the caption “Section 16(a) beneficial ownership reporting 
compliance.” information regarding our code of ethical business 
conduct and the corporate governance matters covered by this 
item is incorporated by reference to the 2011 Proxy Statement, 
where such information is included under the heading “about the 
board of directors.”

iTem 11. eXecuTiVe comPenSaTion

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by 
reference to the 2011 Proxy Statement, where such information  
is included under the headings “The board of directors and 
committees,” “executive compensation” and “compensation 
committee interlocks and insider Participation.”

iTem 12. SecuriTY oWnerSHiP oF cerTain 
beneFicial oWnerS and manaGemenT, and 
relaTed STocKHolder maTTerS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by 
reference to the 2011 Proxy Statement, where such information is 
included under the headings “election of directors” and “equity 
compensation Plan information.”
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iTem 13. cerTain relaTionSHiPS and relaTed 
TranSacTionS, and direcTor indePendence

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by 
reference to the 2011 Proxy Statement, where such information  
is included under the headings “The board of directors and 
committees.”

iTem 14. PrinciPal accounTanT FeeS and 
SerViceS

The information required by this item is incorporated herein by 
reference to the 2011 Proxy Statement, where such information is 
included under the heading “Proposal no. 3 — ratification of 
appointment of the independent registered Public accounting 
Firm.”

ParT iV

iTem 15. eXHibiTS and Financial STaTemenT 
ScHeduleS

(a)  The following documents have been filed as a part of this 
report or, where noted, incorporated by reference:

(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements of the company and its consolidated 
subsidiaries listed on the index to consolidated Financial State-
ments on page 34.

(2) Financial Statement Schedule

The financial statement schedule on page 68 is filed in response to 
item 8 and item 15(d) of Form 10-K and is listed on the index to 
consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) exhibits (See changes to exhibit index below)

The exhibit index, which index follows the signature page to this 
report and is hereby incorporated herein by reference, sets forth a 
list of those exhibits filed herewith, and includes and identifies 
management contracts or compensatory plans or arrangements 
required to be filed as exhibits to this Form 10-K by item 601 (b)
(10)(iii) of regulation S-K.

in reviewing any agreements included as exhibits to this report, 
please remember that they are included to provide you with infor-
mation regarding their terms and are not intended to provide any 
other factual or disclosure information about us or the other par-
ties to the agreements. The agreements may contain representa-
tions and warranties by the parties to the agreements, including 
us. These representations and warranties have been made solely 
for the benefit of the other parties to the applicable agreement 
and:

 •  should not in all instances be treated as categorical state-
ments of fact, but rather as a way of allocating the risk to one 
of the parties if those statements prove to be inaccurate;

 •  may have been qualified by disclosures that were made to  
the other party in connection with the negotiation of the 
applicable agreement, which disclosures are not necessarily 
reflected in the agreement;

 •  may apply standards of materiality in a way that is different 
from what may be viewed as material to you or other inves-
tors; and

 •  were made only as of the date of the applicable agreement or 
such other date or dates as may be specified in the agreement 
and are subject to more recent developments.

accordingly, these representations and warranties may not 
describe the actual state of affairs as of the date they were made or 
at any other time.
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SiGnaTureS

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities exchange act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to 
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Hillenbrand, inc.

by: /s/ Kenneth a. camp

Kenneth a. camp
President and Chief Executive Officer
november 23, 2010

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities exchange act of 1934, this report has been duly signed below by the following persons 
on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title date
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cynthia l. lucchese
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William J. cernugel
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/s/ Thomas H. Johnson
Thomas H. Johnson

director november 23, 2010
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director november 23, 2010
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director november 23, 2010

/s/ edward b. cloues ii
edward b. cloues ii

director november 23, 2010
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eXHibiT 21.1
Hillenbrand, inc.

SubSidiarieS oF THe reGiSTranT

eXHibiT 23.1
conSenT oF indePendenT reGiSTered Public accounTinG Firm

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration Statement on Forms S-8 (nos. 333-149893 and 333-167508) and 
Form S-3 (no. 333-167986) of Hillenbrand, inc. of our report dated november 23, 2010, relating to the consolidated financial state-
ments, financial statement schedule, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, which appears in this Form 10 K.

indianapolis, indiana
november 23, 2010

all subsidiaries of the company are wholly-owned indiana corpo-
rations, unless otherwise noted.

Batesville Services, Inc.

Subsidiaries of batesville Services, inc.
batesville casket company, inc.
batesville casket co. South africa Pty, ltd.,  
 a South africa corporation
batesville international corporation
batesville logistics, inc.
batesville manufacturing, inc.
batesville casket de mexico, S.a. de c.V.,  
 a mexican corporation
Green Tree manufacturing, inc.
mcP, inc.
modern Wood Products, inc.
WcP, inc.
bcc JaWacdaH Holdings, llc
acorn development Group, inc.
The Forethought Group, inc.
bV acquisition, inc.

Subsidiaries of batesville casket company, inc.
northStar industries, llc

Subsidiaries of batesville international corporation
bc canada company, ulc,  
 a nova Scotia unlimited liability corporation
batesville Holding uK limited,  
 a united Kingdom corporation

Subsidiary of bc canada company, ulc
batesville canada ltd., a canadian corporation

Subsidiary of batesville Holding uK limited
batesville casket uK limited, a united Kingdom corporation

Subsidiary of batesville casket de mexico, S.a. de c.V.
industrias arga, S.a. de c.V., a mexican corporation

Jointly owned by Green Tree manufacturing, inc. and  
 modern Wood Products, inc.

 Global Products co., S.a. de c.V., a mexican corporation

Jointly owned by mcP, inc. and WcP, inc.
nadco, S.a. de c.V., a mexican corporation

K-Tron International, Inc., a new Jersey corporation

Subsidiaries of K-Tron international, inc.
K-Tron investment co., a delaware corporation
K-Tron Technologies, inc., a delaware corporation

Subsidiaries of K-Tron investment co.
K-Tron america, inc., a delaware corporation
K-Tron (Schweiz) aG, a Swiss corporation
Premier Pneumatics, inc., a delaware corporation
Pennsylvania crusher corporation, a delaware corporation
Gundlach equipment corporation, a delaware corporation

Subsidiaries of K-Tron (Schweiz) aG
K-Tron deutschland GmbH, a German corporation
K-Tron France S.a.r.l., a French corporation
K-Tron Great britain limited, a u.K. corporation
K-Tron asia Pte ltd, a Singapore corporation
K-Tron china limited, a Hong Kong corporation
K-Tron (Shanghai) co., ltd., a china corporation
Wuxi K-Tron colormax machinery co., ltd.,  
 a china corporation

Subsidiaries of Pennsylvania crusher corporation
Jeffrey rader corporation, a delaware corporation

Subsidiaries of Jeffrey rader corporation
Jeffrey rader ab, a Swedish corporation
rc ii, inc., a Georgia corporation

Subsidiaries of rc ii, inc.
Jeffrey rader canada company, a canadian corporation

Subsidiaries of K-Tron america, inc.
K-Tron colormax limited, a u.K. corporation
K-Tron PcS limited, a u.K. corporation



76

eXHibiT 31.1
cerTiFicaTionS

cerTiFicaTion oF cHieF eXecuTiVe oFFicer 
PurSuanT To SecTion 302 oF  
THe SarbaneS-oXleY acT oF 2002

i, Kenneth a. camp, certify that:

1.  i have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of 
Hillenbrand, inc.;

2.  based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the  
circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the periods covered by this report;

3.  based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other 
financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of opera-
tions and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and i are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and pro-
cedures (as defined in exchange act rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in exchange act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the 
registrant and have:

 a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused 
such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating 
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is 
made known to us by others within those entities, par-
ticularly during the period in which this report is being 
prepared;

 b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or 
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 c)  evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure con-
trols and procedures and presented in this report our conclu-
sions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and 
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report 
based on such evaluation; and

 d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s inter-
nal control over financial reporting that occurred during  
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the regis-
trant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and i have disclosed, 
based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit 
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons per-
forming the equivalent functions):

 a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the 
design or operation of internal control over financial report-
ing which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the  
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report 
financial information; and

 b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves manage-
ment or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

date: november 23, 2010

Kenneth a. camp
President and chief executive officer



77

Hillenbrand, inc.  2010 annual rePorT

cerTiFicaTion oF cHieF Financial oFFicer 
PurSuanT To SecTion 302 oF  
THe SarbaneS-oXleY acT oF 2002

i, cynthia l. lucchese certify that:

1.  i have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of 
Hillenbrand, inc.;

2.  based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any 
untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material 
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the  
circumstances under which such statements were made, not 
misleading with respect to the periods covered by this report;

3.  based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other 
financial information included in this report, fairly present in 
all material respects the financial condition, results of opera-
tions and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods 
presented in this report;

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and i are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and pro-
cedures (as defined in exchange act rules 13a-15(e) and 
15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as 
defined in exchange act rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the 
registrant and have:

 a)  designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused 
such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under 
our supervision, to ensure that material information relating 
to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is 
made known to us by others within those entities, par-
ticularly during the period in which this report is being 
prepared;

 b)  designed such internal control over financial reporting, or 
caused such internal control over financial reporting to be 
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assur-
ance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 c)  evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure con-
trols and procedures and presented in this report our conclu-
sions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and 
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report 
based on such evaluation; and

 d)  disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s inter-
nal control over financial reporting that occurred during the 
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially 
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the regis-
trant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer and i have disclosed, 
based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over 
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit 
committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons per-
forming the equivalent functions):

 a)  all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the 
design or operation of internal control over financial report-
ing which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the  
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report 
financial information; and

 b)  any fraud, whether or not material, that involves manage-
ment or other employees who have a significant role in the 
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

date: november 23, 2010

cynthia l. lucchese
Senior Vice President and chief Financial officer

eXHibiT 31.2
cerTiFicaTionS
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cerTiFicaTion oF cHieF eXecuTiVe oFFicer 
PurSuanT To 18 u.S.c. SecTion 1350, aS  
adoPTed PurSuanT To SecTion 906 oF  
THe SarbaneS-oXleY acT oF 2002

in connection with the annual report of Hillenbrand, inc. (the 
“company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending September 30, 
2010, as filed with the Securities and exchange commission on 
the date hereof (the “report”), i, Kenneth a. camp, President 
and chief executive officer of the company, certify, pursuant to 
18 u.S.c. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of 
the Sarbanes-oxley act of 2002, that:

(1)  The report fully complies with the requirements of section 
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities exchange act of 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of opera-
tions of the company.

Kenneth a. camp
President and chief executive officer
november 23, 2010

a signed original of this written statement required by Section 
906 has been provided to Hillenbrand, inc. and will be retained 
by Hillenbrand, inc. and furnished to the Securities and exchange 
commission or its staff upon request.

cerTiFicaTion oF cHieF Financial oFFicer 
PurSuanT To 18 u.S.c. SecTion 1350, aS  
adoPTed PurSuanT To SecTion 906 oF  
THe SarbaneS-oXleY acT oF 2002

in connection with the annual report of Hillenbrand, inc. (the 
“company”) on Form 10-K for the period ending September 30, 
2010, as filed with the Securities and exchange commission on 
the date hereof (the “report”), i, cynthia l. lucchese, Senior 
Vice President and chief Financial officer of the company, cer-
tify, pursuant to 18 u.S.c. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to 
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-oxley act of 2002, that:

(1)  The report fully complies with the requirements of section 
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities exchange act of 1934; and

(2)  The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all 
material respects, the financial condition and results of opera-
tions of the company.

cynthia l. lucchese
Senior Vice President and chief Financial officer
november 23, 2010

a signed original of this written statement required by Section 
906 has been provided to Hillenbrand, inc. and will be retained 
by Hillenbrand, inc. and furnished to the Securities and exchange 
commission or its staff upon request.

eXHibiT 32.1
cerTiFicaTionS

eXHibiT 32.2
cerTiFicaTionS
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on Wednesday, Feb. 23, 2011, at Hillenbrand’s head-
quarters at One Batesville Boulevard, Batesville, 
Indiana.

Independent Auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers llP
101 W. Washington Street, Suite 1300
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204
Phone: (317) 453-4100

Investor Relations
Requests for the Hillenbrand Annual Report on 
Form 10-k or other information about the com-
pany should be directed in writing to:

Mark R. Lanning
vice President, Investor Relations, and Treasurer
Phone: (812) 931-6000
Fax: (812) 931-5184
Website: www.HillenbrandInc.com
E-mail: Investors@HillenbrandInc.com

Transfer Agent
Our transfer agent, Computershare, can help you 
with a variety of shareholder-related services, 
including change of address, transfer of stock to 
another person, lost stock certificates and addi-
tional administrative services. Please include your 
name, address and telephone number with all cor-
respondence, and specify the most convenient time 
to contact you.

Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
Mailing Address
P.O. Box 43078
Providence, Rhode Island 02940

Overnight Deliveries
250 Royall Street Mailstop 1A
Canton, Massachusetts 02021
Toll-free: (877) 745-9349

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
A

nn
ua

l R
e

p
o

rt
 D

e
si

g
n 

b
y 

C
ur

ra
n 

&
 C

o
nn

o
rs

, I
nc

. /
 w

w
w

.c
ur

ra
n

-c
o

nn
o

rs
.c

o
m

Ray J. Hillenbrand

Mark C. Deluzio

Eduardo R. Menascé

Thomas H. Johnson

William J. Cernugel

neil S. novich

James A. Henderson

W August Hillenbrand

kenneth A. CampF. Joseph loughrey

Edward B. Cloues II Stuart A. Taylor II



CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

One Batesville Boulevard
Batesville, Indiana, USA 47006

Phone: (812) 934-7000

www.hillenbrandinc.com


